AGENDA
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, AUGUST 01, 2022
7:00 PM AT COMMUNITY CENTER, 528 MAIN STREET

Call to Order by the Mayor

Roll Call

Approval of Minutes

1.

Regular meeting of July 18, 2022.

Agenda Revisions

Special Presentations

2.

Proclamation recognizing August 2022 as Gastroparesis Awareness Month.

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City

business.)

Special Order of Business

3.

Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2022
Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 5.

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 22, 2022)
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk.

c¢) Staff comments.

d) Public comments.

e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost
for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 5.

Old Business:

4.

Pass Ordinance #3014, amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing certain
property located at 2209 North Union Road from the R-1, Residence District and placing the same in
the A-1, Agricultural District, upon its second consideration.

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)

5.

Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of July 18, 2022 relative to the
following items:

a) City Council Meeting Procedures.

b) Cedar Falls Rotary Memorial Plaza — West 1st Street.

c¢) Private Shared Parking Requirements.

d) West 12th Street Speed Limit — Barnett Drive to Union Road.

Page 1 of 3




|

|~

|

|©

Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to
Boards and Commissions:
a) Charles Blair-Broeker, Library Board of Trustees, term ending 06/30/2028.

Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to the certified list for
the position of Public Safety Officer.

Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of June 2022.

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:

a) Vintage Iron, 104 Main Street, Class B wine — renewal.

b) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street, Class C beer & Class B native wine - renewal.

c) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal.

d) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow/Carter House Market & Cafe, 115-119 Main Street, Class B
liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal.

e) Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.

f) David’'s Taphouse and Dumplings, 200 West 1st Street, Class C liquor — renewal.

g) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.

h) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street — Plaza, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service —
temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (August 12-13, August 19-20, August 26-27,
September 9-10, & September 23-24, 2022)

i) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary expansion of outdoor
service area. (August 1- October 1,2022)

j) Fast Track Racing, 200 block West 2nd Street, Class B beer & outdoor service - 5-day permit.
k) The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - new - change in ownership.

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered

separately.)

Resolution approving and adopting revised City Council Meeting Procedures.

Resolution approving and adopting amendments to the City’s Accounting Policies and Procedures
and Purchasing Manual.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Second Amendment to Agreement for
Professional Services with Operation Threshold for Community Development Block Grant (CDGB-
CV3 funding relative to the CARES Act.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with lowa Northland
Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for grant administration and technical services for
activities relative to FY2023 (FFY2022) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding
project delivery.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with lowa Northland
Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for grant administration and technical services for
activities relative to FY2023 (FFY2022) HOME Investment Partnership Program funding project
delivery.

Resolution approving a Hwy-1, Highway Commercial Zoning District site plan for construction of a
financial institution to be located at 1000 Brandilynn Boulevard.

Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Benton's Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the
2022 University Avenue Bio Cells Project.

Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Blacktop Service Company for the
2022 Seal Coat Project.

Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the bid of Peterson
Contractors, in the amount of $2,699,537.74, being the only bid received for the Olive Street Box
Culvert Replacement Project.

Page 2 of 3




19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the
Professional Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC for addtional services
relative to the Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project.

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of thirty Owner Purchase Agreements, and
approving and accepting thirty Temporary Construction Easements, in conjunction with the Main
Street Reconstruction (6th Street to University) Project.

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Joint Funding Agreement for Water Resource
Investigations with the U.S. Geological Survey relative to the Cedar River Streamgage Station.

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with
Ritland+Kuiper Landscape Architects for design services relative to the Seerley Park Improvements
Project.

Ordinances:

23. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances
relative to electric vehicle (EV) charging parking spaces, upon its first consideration.

Allow Bills and Claims
24. Allow Bills and Claims for August 1, 2022.
City Council Referrals
City Council Updates
Staff Updates

Adjournment

Page 3 of 3




53893 -

53894 -

53895 -

52896 -

52897 -

53898 -

53899 -

COMMUNITY CENTER
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JULY 18, 2022
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, met in Regular Session,
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member
thereof, at 7:30 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBubhr,
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the minutes of the Regular
Meeting of July 5, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion
carried unanimously.

The Mayor then asked if there were any agenda revisions. City Clerk Danielsen
noted that item #2 under Special Presentations was being removed from the
agenda.

Mayor introduced Colonel Garrett Gingrich who spoke about the Ironman
Battalion and accepted the proclamation that was presented at the July 5, 2022
City Council Meeting.

Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, commented on the need for convenient
public restrooms in the Downtown area and requested a taskforce to complete a
study. She also commented on the speed limit on South Main and asked for a
review from University Avenue to the Western Home Community, requesting one
speed limit for the entire length of the roadway.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to receive and file bids
received for the sale of $3,860,000 General Obligation Loan Notes, Series 2022.
Following a brief summary of the proposed sale and comments on the City’s AAA
bond rating by Jon Burmeister, PFM Financial Advisors, LLC, the motion carried
unanimously.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,858,
directing the sale of $3,860,000 General Obligation Loan Notes, Series 2022, be
adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers
voted. Aye: Ganfield, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: Sires. Motion
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,858 duly passed and adopted.

Mayor Green announced the continuation of the public hearing on the FY2023
(FFY2022) Annual Action Plan for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
and HOME Consortium. Planner Il Pezley provided a brief summary of the
proposed plan in response to Council concerns. There being no one else present
to speak about the proposed plan, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and
passed to the next order of business.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #22,859,

Iltem 1.




53900 -

53901 -

53902 -

539083 -

53904 -

53905 -

-2-

approving the FY2023 (FFY2022) Annual Action Plan for Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Consortium, be adopted.
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Harding, Kruse,
Sires and Schultz, and responses by Community Development Director Sheetz
and Planner lll Pezley, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of
the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Dunn,
Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then
declared Resolution #22,859 duly passed and adopted.

Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 11,
2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the Status of Funded
Activities for the State Award of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-
CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. It was then moved by Ganfield and
seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously.

The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed on the
status of funded activities. Upon being advised that there were no written
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Community
Development Director Sheetz provided a brief summary of the status of activities
and description of remaining work. There being no one else present wishing to
speak about the status of funded activities, the Mayor declared the hearing
closed and passed to the next order of business.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #22,860,
approving the Status of Funded Activities for the State Award of Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act, be
adopted. Following a question by Mayor Green and response by Community
Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the motion and
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield,
Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The
Mayor then declared Resolution #22,860 duly passed and adopted.

Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 8,
2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed rezoning
from R-1, Residence District to A-1, Agricultural District of property located at
2209 North Union Road. It was then moved by Ganfield and seconded by
Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed
on file. Motion carried unanimously.

The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the
proposed rezoning. Upon being advised that there were no written
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner IlI
Weintraut provided a brief summary of the proposed rezoning. There being no
one else present wishing to speak about the proposed rezoning, the Mayor
declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3014,
amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing certain

Iltem 1.




53906 -

53907 -

53908 -

53909 -

-3-

property located at 2209 North Union Road from the R-1, Residence District and
placing the same in the A-1, Agricultural District, be passed upon its first
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the
guestion on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse,
Harding. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 6,
2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments
to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Planning & Zoning
Commission review of site plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT). It
was then moved by Harding and seconded by Schultz that the proof of
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried
unanimously.

The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the
proposed amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planning &

Community Services Manager Howard provided a brief summary of the proposal.

There being no one else present wishing to speak about the proposed
amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next
order of business.

It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that an ordinance, amending
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Planning & Zoning
Commission review of site plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), be
passed upon its first consideration. Following questions by Councilmembers
Harding and Kruse, and responses by City Attorney Rogers and Planning &
Community Services Manager Howard, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by
Sires to petition the Planning & Zoning Commission to include review of any site
plan that would expand the floor plan or where residential is being added, similar
to language in Section 26-196, C.2.b. Following comments and questions by
Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, Dunn, Harding and Sires, and responses by
Howard, it was moved by Harding to call the question on the original motion.
Motion failed 3-4, with deBuhr, Kruse, Ganfield and Sires voting Nay. Following
comments by Mayor Green, and questions and comments by Councilmembers
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Dunn and Schultz, the Mayor put the question on the
motion to petition the Planning & Zoning Commission. Motion carried 4-3, with
Dunn, Schultz and Harding voting Nay.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3013,
amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances
relative to prohibiting parking on portions of South Lawn Road, be passed upon
its third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr,
Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance
#3013 duly passed and adopted.

Iltem 1.




53910 -

53911 -

-4 -

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that the following items on the
Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved:

Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment
of members to Boards and Commissions:

a) Tori Hale, Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending
06/30/2024.

b) Lorene Hosler, Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending
06/30/2025.

Receive and file the following resignation of members from Boards and
Commissions:
a) Sarah Corkery, Parks & Recreation Commission.

Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to
the following certified lists:

a) Cultural Programs Supervisor.

b) Information Systems Technician .

¢) Public Works & Parks Supervisor.

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:

a) Dollar General, 1922 Valley Park Drive, Class C Beer & Class B Wine -
renewal.

b) Smokin Oak Wood Fired Pizza, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class B beer —
renewal.

c¢) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service
- renewal.

d) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal.

e) Octopus, 2205 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.

f) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service -
renewal.

g) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street — Plaza, Special Class C liquor &
outdoor service — temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (September 3-4,
2022)

Motion carried unanimously.

It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions
be introduced and adopted:

Resolution #22,861, approving and authorizing execution of a Cooperative
Agreement with the lowa Civil Rights Commission for FY23.

Resolution #22,862, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product
Agreement with Amperage Marketing relative to FY23 Digital Advertising.

Resolution #22,863, approving and authorizing execution of a Red House Studio
Lease relative to the use of 224 West Seerley Boulevard as artist studio space, in
conjunction with the Hearst Center’s Visiting Artist Program.

Resolution #22,864, approving and authorizing execution of a Subrecipient

Iltem 1.




53912 -

53913-

53914 -

-5-

Agreement for Federally Funded Project with Operation Threshold for
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the
CARES Act.

Resolution #22,865, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the
purchase of two polymer mixing pumps for biosolids handling operations of the
Water Reclamation Division.

Resolution #22,866, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental
Agreement No. 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder &
Associates, Inc. for administration and design services relative to the Oak Park
Boulevard Sewer Replacement Project.

Resolution #22,867, approving and authorizing execution of twenty-three Owner
Purchase Agreements, and approving and accepting twenty-three Temporary
Construction Easements, in conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction
(6th Street to University) Project.

Resolution #22,868, receiving and filing, and setting August 1, 2022 as the date
of public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract &
estimate of cost for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 5.

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.
Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. Motion
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,861 through #22,868 duly
passed and adopted.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #22,869,
approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with the University of
Northern lowa relative to a City Employee Climate Survey, be adopted. Following
guestions and comments by Councilmembers Sires, Kruse, Harding, Dunn and
Ganfield, and responses by Human Resources Manager Schindel, City Attorney
Rogers, City Administrator Gaines and Mayor Green, the Mayor put the question
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers
voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: None.
Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,869 duly passed and
adopted.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,870,
approving and authorizing execution of a Master Service Agreement with
Heartland Business Systems, LLC relative to migration of the City's computer
network to Microsoft 365, be adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers
Harding and Kruse, and responses by Information Systems Manager Sorensen,
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr,
Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution
#22,870 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,871,
approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with

Iltem 1.




53915 -

53916 -

53917 -

53918 -

539109 -

-6-

Inteconnex relative to replacement of the City’s door access control systems, be
adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers
voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: None.
Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,871 duly passed and
adopted.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of July
18, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers
voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: None.
Motion carried.

Following comments by City Administrator Gaines, it was moved by Sires and
seconded by Kruse to direct staff to request from UNI, an amendment to the
Employee Climate Survey, that would include former full-time employees who left
the City two years ago from July 1, 2022, to be considered as a separate set of
data from current employees, and indicating the relevance of the data. Following
comments by Councilmembers Harding, deBuhr, Kruse and Dunn, and
responses by Gaines, the motion carried 6-1, with Dunn voting Nay.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to refer to the Community
Relations & Planning Committee a discussion to determine if a public restroom
study downtown is warranted. Motion carried unanimously.

Community Development Director Sheetz responded to a request by
Councilmember Dunn for an update on the Cedar River Project. Sheetz also
responded to a question by Mayor Green.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to adjourn to Executive
Session to discuss Property Acquisition per lowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to
discuss the purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature
disclosure could be reasonably expected to increase the price the governmental
body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the governmental
body would receive for that property. Upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse,
Harding. Nay: None. Motion carried.

The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 9:23 P.M.
Mayor Green reconvened the Council meeting at 9:58 P.M.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned
at 9:59 P.M. Motion carried unanimously.

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

Iltem 1.




Item 2.

\ P~

=~

MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN \\
srve M

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA gmwwresw
220 CLAY STREET Awarengss

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

GASTROPARESIS AWARENESS MONTH
August 2022

WHEREAS, Gastroparesis is a paralysis of the stomach which causes extreme
pain, nausea, vomiting, early satiety, and can lead to serious complications
such as malnourishment, dehydration, extreme weight loss, overwhelming
fatigue, a severe decrease in quality of life, and in some cases, even death; and

WHEREAS, Gastroparesis is a chronic illness affecting more than 5 million
people in the United States, yet public awareness and medical understanding
of this condition is severely lacking; and

WHEREAS, no known cure exists for Gastroparesis, and the few treatment

options available can lead to even more serious complications such as sepsis; and

WHEREAS, those affected by Gastroparesis seek more research, additional
treatment options and effective medications, better patient support, and hope
for a future free of the constant suffering and pain; and

WHEREAS, the people of Cedar Falls can benefit from increased awareness of
the devastating effects of Gastroparesis for the good of public health and to
better support those inflicted with this disorder;

THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby
designate August 2022 as Gastroparesis Awareness Month in Cedar Falls,
and I do hereby encourage residents to learn about Gastroparesis and to seek
out ways to support our neighbors who suffer from this debilitating illness.

Signed this 11th day of July, 2022.

Zoaudu./

Mayor Robert M. Green




DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613
Phone: 319-268-5161
Fax: 319-268-5197

Item 3.

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

TO:  Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council
FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer
DATE:  August 1, 2022

SUBJECT: 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project — Zone 5
City Project Number: SW-000-3293
Public Hearing

Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs
and Quantities for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project — Zone 5.

This project involves the replacement of deficient sidewalk adjacent to various property owners.
The project will replace the deficient sidewalk for the adjacent property owner and assess the
cost of replacement to the property owner.

Once the replacement has been completed, the Engineering Division will submit a bill to the City
Clerk. The City Clerk will then send notice of bill in the mail to the adjacent property owner. The
adjacent property owner will have 30 days to pay the bill without interest or penalty. If the
adjacent property owner fails to pay the bill in 30 days, the cost of replacement will be applied to
the property owners’ property taxes.

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $40,591.00.
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the Plans,
Specifications and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project

— Zone 5.

XC: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works
Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer |

Engineering Division

11




Item 3.

BID TABULATION
2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NO. SW - 000 - 3293
Base Bid

ITEM ITEM UNIT TOTAL

NO. CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST
1 2010-108-D-3|OFF SITE TOPSOIL C.. $100.00 17.25( $ 1,725.00
2 7030-108-A-0 |REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK SY. $40.00 2171 $ 8,684.00
3 7030-108-E-0 [SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH SY. $80.00 209.90( $ 16,792.00
4 7030-108-E-0 |SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH SY. $150.00 7.20| $ 1,080.00
5 8030-108-A-0 [TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. $10,000.00 1.0] $ 10,000.00
6 9010-108-B-0 |SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. $2.50 924.0] $ 2,310.00

TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

$40,591.00

12




Iltem 4.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Phone: 319-273-8600

Fax: 319-273-8610

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM
Planning & Community Services Division

TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council
FROM:  Thom Weintraut, AICP, Planner Il
DATE: July 11, 2022
SUBJECT: Rezoning Request 2209 N Union Road (RZ22-002)

REQUEST: Rezone property from R-1: Residence District to A-1: Agriculture District.
PETITIONER: Kel-Mar, LC (Shawn and Paula Kelly)

LOCATION: 2209 N. Union Road

PROPOSAL

The proposal is to rezone approximately 0.98 acre portion of the property located at 2209 N
Union Road, formerly the Martyrs Retreat, and 8.86 acres of a 17.86 acre parcel located
adjacent to the south of 2209 N Union Road from the R-1: Residence District, to A-1:
Agriculture District.

BACKGROUND

This property was established as the American Martyrs Retreat House by the Archdiocese of
Dubuque in 1960. The property was annexed into Cedar Falls in 1971 at which time a 1,450 x
600’ area was zoned to R-1 to accommodate the existing private institutional use, which was
not permitted in an agriculture district. In 2019, the facility closed and Mr. Kelly purchased both
tracts.

In February 2021, Mr. Kelly approached the City with a request rezone Tract 2 (shown in blue
on the next page and attached zoning illustration) and the portion of Martyrs Retreat property,
Tract 1 (outlined in black), to R-1 to create a buildable lot for the construction of a new
residential structure. However, this was not possible, because in order to rezone the property
to R-1, city services would have to be extended to the lot per City Code requirement. The
nearest available utilities are greater than 2,000 feet to the south and the existing railroad right-
of-way would make extending the utilities cost-prohibitive.

In March 2021, staff set up a meeting to discuss possible options that would allow the owner to
achieve their goal of building one house on the property. At that meeting, staff suggested

13




Iltem 4.

exploring the possibility for reconfiguring the existing parcel lines with plats of survey.
Research by Mr. Kelly’s surveyor identified two existing lots of record, which could be
reconfigured to allow a house to be built in the desired location overlooking the Cedar River.
This reconfiguration of the lots of record involve two plats of survey: a transfer of the portion of
Tract 1 outlined in black to Tract 2; and the transfer of the portion of Tract 2 outlined in red,
which contains the existing Martyrs Retreat building, to Tract 1. The condition for a plat of
survey is that no new building lots can be created nor can the transfer area constitute more
than 25 percent of a parcel after the transfer takes place. Staff also recommended rezoning
the portion of the property not associated with the Martyrs Retreat building from R-1
Residential to A-1, Agricultural District, both to acknowledge the lack of city services and so
that zoning boundaries coincide with the new parcel lines created with the plats of survey. In
other words, the proposed rezoning will clean up the split zoning on these tracts.

City Corporate Boundary /

Tract1

Transferto Tract 2

A-1

f Tract 2
= /‘/ /

Transferto Tract 1

Union Road

Ral7ro g/

In February 2022, VJ Engineering, Mr. Kelly’s surveyor, requested further discussion about the
next steps for the rezoning. Staff recommended completing a plat of Survey for Parcel ‘E’ to
define the area involved in the request to rezone from R-1 to A-1. As part of the approval of the
plats of survey for the property, staff recommended Tract 2 share access from N. Union Road
with the Martyrs Retreat property and a note be added to the plats of survey stating no building
permits can be issued for the transfer areas unless merged with the receiving parcels. Cedar
Falls Utilities requested utility easements be dedicated for electric and communication services
and that all existing utility easements be maintained. Staff also recommended a meeting with
Mr. Kelly to discuss the future use of the Martyrs Retreat property.

On April 18, 2022, the applicant’s surveyor submitted a plat of survey for Tract 2 and a survey
showing the location of easements for both utilities and access.

On May 9" 2022, staff met with Mr. Kelly and his daughter to finalize the documentation

needed for the rezoning and to discuss future options for the Martyrs Retreat property. The
owners do not have any immediate plans for re-use of the Martyrs Retreat building, but the
recent zoning code amendment that allows consideration of requests for alternative uses of

14




Iltem 4.

defunct institutional buildings will provide more flexibility for an appropriate adaptive re-use of
the building with Board of Adjustment approval of a conditional use permit. In the meantime,
the owner has acknowledged that any re-use of the building must be approved by the City
according to City Code requirements and that the property will not be used for residential
purposes.

ANALYSIS

CURRENT ZONING
R-1 Residence District and A-1 Agriculture District

The R-1 Residence District allows one and two unit dwellings and a limited number of other
uses, including private institutional or community recreation centers; however, all subdivision of
property in the R-1 Residence District requires the installation of public sewer and water.

The purpose of the A-1 Agriculture District is to act as a “holding zone” in areas of the city that
are undeveloped and not served by essential municipal services.

PROPOSED ZONING

The request is to downzone approximately 0.98 acre of land at 2209 N Union Road and 8.86
acres on the adjacent tract to the south from the R-1 Residence zoning district to A-1
Agriculture. The requested change will place those portions of the reconfigured parcel that do
not have adequate services available back into the “holding zone” and clean up the split zoning
on the parcel. The remaining R-1 zoned area where the Martyrs Retreat building is located will
remain zoned R-1 to allow the potential for an adaptive reuse of the building under the R-1
standards.

The A-1 district allows no more than one single-unit or one two-unit residential dwelling in the
following circumstances:
1. as an incidental use to a permitted agriculture use, such as growing crops, grain, and
limited animal production (20 acres minimum lot area) or
2. if located on a lot of record as of August 1, 1979 with a minimum lot area of three acres.
The existing Tract 2 (see image above) is considered a lot of record, so it would be
allowed one single-unit dwelling, as proposed by the applicant.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The Future Land Use Map identifies this entire property and the properties south of the rail line
as Low Density Residential. The characteristics of this designation include an emphasis on
single-family residential forms and civic uses. The intent is that at build-out development is
provided a full range of municipal services (see map next page). Staff finds that the proposed
rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan as the long term goal is for low density
residential development. At this time, however, the A-1 Zoning is appropriate to acknowledge
the lack of city services.

15




Item 4.

City Corporate Boundary

Subject
Property

Legend

Low Density Residential [
Greenways & Floodplain (|

ACCESS TO PUBLIC SERVICES

The property is located in an area of the city where public services are not currently available
and it is difficult to extend water and sewer because of the railroad right-of-way. This lack of
services indicates that the A-1 Agricultural District is an appropriate zoning district, because it
is considered a holding zone until adequate city services are extended to allow for residential
development at an urban density.

ACCESS TO ADEQUATE STREET NETWORK

The property currently has access from N. Union Road. There will be no new streets proposed
to serve this area until city services are available. Therefore, the request to downzone the
property from R-1 to A-1 is warranted and will keep traffic volumes low. A single private drive
that shares the street access point with the Martyrs Retreat property will serve the proposed
single unit dwelling. With the new zoning, no additional development can occur beyond the
construction of the one residential dwelling proposed.

PUBLIC NOTICE
City staff mailed letters to the surrounding property owners notifying them of the rezoning
request. A notice of Public hearing was published in the Courier on June 15, 2022

TECHNICAL COMMENTS

The City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities, has no concerns with the proposed
rezoning request. The two plats of survey that reconfigure the parcel lines to coincide with the
proposed zoning boundaries can be approved administratively by the Zoning Administrator,
per the City Subdivision Code regulations.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The Community Development recommends approval of RZ22-002, A request to rezone
approximately 0.98 acre portion of the property located at 2209 N Union Road, formerly the
Martyrs Retreat, and 8.86 acres of a 17.86 acre parcel located adjacent to the south of 2209 N
Union Road from the R-1: Residence District, to A-1: Agriculture District.

16




Iltem 4.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

Introduction
6/8/2022

Discussion
& Vote
6/22/2022

Attachments:

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided background
information. He explained that this is a request to rezone approximately 9.94 acres
of the Martyrs Retreat and a parcel to the south property from R-1, Residential to A-
1, Agricultural, which would allow for one residence to be built on the tract of land.
No further residential development would be allowed. The new zoning boundaries
will then match the lot boundaries. Staff recommends that comments be gathered
from the Planning and Zoning Commission and the public and a public hearing be
set for the next Commission meeting on June 22.

Mr. Holst made a motion to move the item forward to public hearing. Ms. Saul
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Crisman,
Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays.

The first item of business was a public hearing regarding a rezoning request for 2209
North Union Road. Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided
background information. He stated that the request is to rezone approximately 9.94
acres of land located at 2209 North Union Road and displayed a rendering of the
location and rezoning plat. The petitioner would like to rezone the area from R-1,
Residential to A-1, Agriculture to allow for the addition of one residential structure.

Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The
motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch
and Saul), and 0 nays.

Location Map
Rezoning Plat

Zoning lllustration
Letter of Request
Published Public Notice

17




Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission

June 8, 2022

Corporate Li

4

N

o \
3 Access £ Dennecis Rd W-Dunken
%
L~ € lone Tree =
: Waskrlod
4 5 Regona)
./‘6 _'; Ajrpor
@
‘ 2 wncoln-S1-W Alrim & Hay—
~ P11 STT— R E 15181 1
rFalls & i
= Ceda Is ‘; G;?uhd
s RPTR =
S
V134 St L2
“,
be Raabg,
W2IhS o~ Universiy AV 8 O
¥ = =y
Q l = Orchard Dr =" %
S, = o~
PR ol— £ Grasnhill Rd— g Orser® -
EGrasah x‘ R 2 B
| N o>
WikisgRa SG-Evikn®
w Vimg | .
Incuswial Park =
2209 N Union Road
-
= ===\ Riigaway A¥
_ : R-1to A-1
Location ”
Map &
=




(
Rezon | ng Plat Legal Description of land to be rezoned from R-1 to A-1: Rezone Request -
R-1 R id ial . The West 1450.0 feet of the North 300.0 feet of the Northwest Quarter (NW3) of Section Three (3), Township
-1, Resl ential to A-1 ) AQFICU|tUFa| Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the Fifth (5th) Principal Meridian, except the North 70 feet
. f the East 700 f fthe Northwest Fractional rter of the Northwest Fractional rter of sai ion
KeI-Mar, LC, 2209 N. Union Road of the East 700 feet of the Northwest Fractional Quarter of the Northwest Fractiona Qu? tero s?dSe?to 3, "
and that part of West 1450.0 feet of the South 300.0 feet of the Southwest Quarter (SW3z) of Section Thirty-four S
(2]
(34), Township Ninety (90) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the Fifth (5th) Principal Meridian, Black Hawk §
County, lowa, lying within the Southeast Quarter of said Southwest Quarter except that parcel of land recorded
on File 2018-00018291 in the office of the Black Hawk County Recorder .
Keith & Cathy Dahlstrom Kel-Mar, LC — Owner:
2305 N. Union Road 2209 N. Union Road 70.10 Kel-Mar, LC ol | |
623 E. 19th Street HEFEES
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 i =
LO)|
N
N
0
v
>
O
X )
e o Kel-Mar, LC =5 =
50.02' _Uni £
_\ Kel-Mar, LC 2209 N. Union Road gy
2209 N. Union Road N89°21'32"E 1326.27' 23!
W1/16N to N1/4 Do 5
S89°21'32'W - z .§ _%
44057 \ Kel-Mar, LC > 5
2209 N. Union Road p——
ay . 8 35
1°09'01"E — NS oy
278.30' 300 éo/b“bfb §
&
°
@
e’
X u |
c ©
Sl 55 1
c 3
o 3¥|
| 2 ® N10°57'56"W S
= | 278.82' < N43°27'06"W
'052773601'2‘ Kel-Mar, LC ) 9.78
: iy SR 100')
\ 2209 N. Union Road CSI NORTH Kel-Mar, LC m
| N7o 2209 N. Union Road @
. 607 > o
| ogs8W T (602, \ & ®
\ | Sﬂ« 04.20 st «« 208! 2 Y O O
(50 ' e
\\1\ Taylor Morris Residence Trust 588°13'24"W cs -
1901 N. Union Road 462.50' 87 5
e U~ ~U ( . . . N\ - — - —
NITOSesE LEGEND T i bttt optiotod ot Il E=IC =
_— \\\\\\\oV\b‘\’ °°°°° /////,/ personal supervision and that lam a duly licensed Land Surveyor o D
Notes: 0 75 150 300 S\\\\o?\ \9%;///2 under the laws of the State of lowa. qN) E Z
: - N7A 2%
1.) All dimensions are in US Survey feet and decimals thereof. — e — EXISTING R-1 ZONING R X:=so
2.) Proprietor: Kel-Mar, LC, 623 E. 19th Street, Cedar Falls, 1A 2% 12088 ;"%ss WENDELL J. LUPKES, P.L.S. DATE - — O
REQUESTED A-1 ZONING | %k, S | License numoer 12088 L O
//’///,/ IOWP\ \\\\\\\} My license renewal date is December 31, 2022 m X 19
Il//llll/m"“\\\\\\\\\ Pages or sheets covered by this seal: , -
\ 218007)




Prepared by: Thomas Weintraut, Planner 111, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, A 50613 (319) 273-8600

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,
IOWA FOR APPROXIMATELY 9.94 ACRES OF LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN,
REMOVING SAID AREA FROM THE R-1, RESIDENCE DISTRICT AND ADDING IT TO
THE A-1, AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT

WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning
Commission to rezone approximately a 0.98 acre portion of the property located at 2209 North
Union Road and 8.86 acres of a 17.86 acre parcel located adjacent to the south of 2209 North
Union Road from the R-1: Residence District, to A-1, Agricultural District: and

WHEREAS, said A-1, Agricultural District allows for the establishment a single-unit
residential dwelling on a lot of record as of August 1, 1979 and recognizes the A-1: Agriculture
District as a holding district for property(s) until services are available; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the rezoning request and
find that said rezoning is consistent with the City of Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan and the
intent of the A-1, Agricultural District; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval of said
rezoning under case #RZ22-002; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of Cedar Falls, lowa, deems it to be in the best interests of
the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, to approve said rezoning; and

WHEREAS, Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article IlI,
Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar
Falls, lowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance;

Iltem 4.

20




WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such
hearing held on the proposed amendment; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA:

Section 1. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, be and the same is
hereby amended to show the property legally described below, as now being in the A-I,
Agricultural District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City
of Cedar Falls, lowa, as amended.

The West 1450.0 feet of the North 300.0 feet of the Northwest Quarter (NW %) of
Section Three (3), Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the
Fifth (5TH) Principal Meridian, except the North 70 feet of the East 700 feet of the
Northwest Fractional Quarter of said Section 3, and that part of West 1450.0 feet of the
South 300.0 feet of the Southwest Quarter (SW ¥4) of Section Thirty-four (34) Township
Ninety (90) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the Fifth (5th) Principal Meridian, Black
Hawk County, lowa, lying within the Southeast Quarter of said Southwest Quarter except
that parcel of Land recorded on File 2018-00018291 in the office of the Black Hawk
County Recorder.

INTRODUCED: July 18, 2022
PASSED 15T CONSIDERATION: July 18, 2022
PASSED 2"P CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 3RP CONSIDERATION:

ADOPTED:

Iltem 4.

Robert M. Green, Mayor
ATTEST:

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

21




MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES
Community Center
July 18, 2022

The meeting of Standing Committees met at the Community Center at 5:36 p.m. on July 18, 2022, with
the following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Daryl
Kruse, Simon Harding, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires. Staff members from all City
Departments and members of the community attended in person.

Administration Committee:

Chair Dunn called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Administration Committee
agenda, City Council Meeting Procedures and introduced Mayor Green. Mayor Green gave a brief
overview of the two additional change requests for Council Meeting Procedures. Chair Dunn opened for
guestions from Council; Councilmembers discussed changes and came to the consensus on the below
items.

1. Rename the Standing Committees to: Administration, Finance & Business Operations, Public Safety,
Community Development, Public Works and Committee of the Whole.

2. Limit on remarks (Rule 4.14) — Consensus: each member shall limit remarks to a reasonable length.
Remove, as determined by the presiding officer.

3. Council referrals presented in writing (Rule 8.2) - Consensus is to change to: Except for the exigent
circumstances in Rule 8.4, all council referrals requests should (instead of shall) be provided to the
City Clerk in writing no later than 5:00 pm on the Monday prior to the next regular council meeting.
The request should (instead of shall) contain sufficient information to enable the council to determine
if the request merits referral to a council standing committee, a city board or commission, or to staff
for further consideration.

Community Relations & Planning Committee:

Chair Ganfield introduced the first item on the Community Relations & Planning Committee agenda,
Cedar Falls Rotary Memorial Plaza — West 15t Street and introduced Mike Butler & Gale Bonsall. Mr.
Butler & Mr. Bonsall stated the Rotary will be turning 100, February 2024. The Rotary would like to
celebrate with a bike path and memorial to Essential Workers between the Little Red School House and
the Behrens Rapps Station on First Street. Materials will be paid for by Rotary fundraising. Mr. Butler &
Mr. Bonsall stated the levee will be avoided, 2-3 trees may need to be removed and the current signs and
bench will be relocated. Councilmembers discussed concerns with removal of the trees; consensus by
Council was to recommend to staff to work with CF Rotary on the project and save the trees if possible
but shall replace any trees that are removed.

Chair Ganfield introduced the second item on the Community Relations & Planning Committee agenda,
Private Shared Parking Requirements and introduced Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services
Manager. Ms. Howard gave an overview of current zoning regulations for off-site shared parking options,
on-street parking as shared parking and time of day rules for shared parking. Councilmembers discussed
concerns with 600’ walking distance in the shared parking section and on-street public parking directly
abutting the project site counting toward the shared parking requirement. Council discussed various other
potential distances that might be acceptable. Councilmembers consensus is to refer the shared parking
regulations to the Planning & Zoning Commission, with consideration including but not limited to the
location and time of day rules for shared parking in Downtown.

Public Works Committee:

Chair Schultz introduced the only item on the Public Works Committee, West 12t Street Speed Limit —
Barnett Drive to Union Road and introduced David Wicke, City Engineer. Mr. Wicke informed
Councilmembers of the traffic study that is being conducted between Barnett Drive to Union Road. The
posted speed limit is 45 mph, the 2007 data shows the 85" percentile of speed (safest % of speed that
motorist feel comfortable traveling) at 47.82 mph (Westbound), 49.28 mph (Eastbound) and in 2018 data
shows the 85™ percentile at 46.87 mph (Westbound, 43.37 mph (Eastbound). Mr. Wicke stated within the
last 10 years 6 accidents have occurred and if a significant decrease or increase is implemented and the
85! percentile is not factored in this decision could impact accidents to increase or decrease on this minor
arterial roadway. In 2009 around 2,400 motorist per day traveled this roadway and in 2017 around 2,500
motorist per day. Mr. Wicke stated data of the traffic study should be complete within 2-4 weeks, pending
acceptable data. Councilmembers discussed crosswalks, volume of motorists, different radar trailers and
requested a radar trailer be placed on 12t Street when school starts. Councilmembers consensus is for
staff to present data/report when traffic study is complete.

Meeting adjourned at 7:19 p.m.

Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor

Item 5.

22




FROM:
TO:
DATE:
SUBJECT:
REF:

MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
PHONE 319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126
www.cedarfalls.com

Z”"d"“/

Mayor Robert M. Green

City Council

July 26, 2022

Reappointment to the Library Board of Trustees
Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-407

1. Inaccordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), | hereby
nominate Mr. Charles Blair-Broeker for reappointment to the Library Board of Trustees for
a six-year term ending June 30, 2028.

2. Please contact me with any questions you may have about this re-appointment.

Xc: City Administrator
Director, Finance and Business Operations
Library Director

it

Item 6.

23




CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION
City of Cedar Falls
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

July 20, 2022

Honorable Mayor Green and City Council
City Hall, 220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, |IA 50613

Mayor Green and City Council Members:

The Civil Service Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa authorized administration of a
testing process and instruments for the position of Public Safety Officer. Listed below are the
names of the top ranked candidates with their combined weighted average test scores, applicable
Veteran’s Preference scores, and total combined average scores with preference, as applicable.

Tied percentages are presented in alphabetical order by applicant name, if applicable.

Iltem 7.

Veteran's
Combined Preference Total Combined
Rank Name Averaged Score Points Averaged Score
1 Kye Richter 361 361
2 Samuel Gingrich 327 327
3 Cory Brucker 321 321
4 Zachary DePriest 301 301

Respectfully_Submitted,

/././fdﬂ -

"Paul Lee, Commission Chairperson

e

Crystal Ford, Commissioner

Cathy Showalter, Commissioner

Orig:

Cc:

Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk

Civil Service Records,
Craig Berte, Director of Public Safety
Mark Howard, Assistant Director of Public Safety/Police Chief

24




TO:
FROM:
DATE:
SUBJECT:

Please contact Administrator Gaines with any questions about the accomplishments of city staff

OFFICE OF CITY ADMINISTRATOR

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, {OWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
PHONE 319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126
www.cedarfalls.com

Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council Members
Ron Gaines, City Administrator

July 25,2022

Departmental Monthly Reports Submission — June 2022

contained in this monthly report.

Encl: (1) City of Cedar Falls Departmental Monthly Reports.

HiH

“OUR CITIZENS ARE OUR BUSINESS”

Item 8.

25




CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

DEPARTMENTAL MONTHLY REPORTS

June 2022




JUNE 2022 MONTHLY REPORTS
Table of Contents

Finance & Business Operations

Financial Services DIVISION. ... vttt ittt et e e e e e et e e e e enaeeeens 1
Human ReSources DiVisSiOn . susuumisas s s s s s s &5 4 i sl 5uiiss 45 s s b aiss 2
Information Systems DivISION. . s seyssnsligs vvimssie s o b i ssss s S S s er ety 4
Legal Services DIVISION. ... ..uuentt ettt ettt et e et et e e e ee e e ne e eae e e 6
Public RECOIAS DIVISION. ¢.tutittit ettt et ettt e e et e et e e e e eneeeaeaneeae 7
Cedar Falls Library & Community Center s s sn ipmaimsssmmmmms 9
Community Development
Inspection Services DiVISION. sussmssansmsssssmssmsmmimsssmmssissmm s s e a5 10
Planning & Community Services DiViSION. sumumesmmas s s s st e smme s aam. 12
Recreation & Community Programs. ..........oooiuiiiiieiiie i eaes 16
Visitors & Tourism and Cultural Programs. .........cooeevriereeer e ineennecineensaes 18
Municipal Operations & Programs
Engineering DIVISION. ... ...ttt e e 21
Public Works & Parks DivISION. .. ...t et et ee e 24
Water Reclamation DiviSion ... ... ... sssssmsssmrmms mimssinmmios s miiass s oasimk i 25
Public Safety Services
POliCe/FIre OPerations. .. ..o e e 27

Item 8.

27




Item 8.

FINANCIAL SERVICES
JUNE 2022

Treasury

Financial Services is responsible for maintaining accounting and cashflow as it relates
to the city treasury, monitoring securities and investing idle cash to provide safe
investments while maximizing interest earnings. Currently, the City has $34,026,370
invested in CD's and $68,000,000 in a liquid money market.

The FY22 Cash Management report was presented to the Committee of the Whole on
June 8", The report outlines the fund balances for the City's major funds and projects
balances and investments for FY23.

Investments Transactions Amount

CD's Matured 2 $1,631,000.00

CD's Purchased 6 $16,221,000.00

PFMM Deposit 0 $0.00

PEFMM Withdrawal 1 $32,000,000.00

CD/Investment Interest $87,807.15
FY22 Audit

Work began on the FY2022 Financial Audit in June and will continue through October.
During the last week of June, financial services staff completed supply inventories with
all of the departments in the City. The inventory will be included in the FY22 audit.

Miscellaneous Financial Activities

For June, 109 payroll checks and 751 direct deposits were processed. Accounts
receivable were processed and 262 invoices were mailed out to customers. 3,158
transactions for accounts payable were processed and approved by the City Council
for payment and 603 checks were mailed out to vendors. CY2021 employee salaries
were published in the Courier according to lowa Code.

28




FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

HUMAN RESOURCES
June 2022

SUMMARY OF PROJECTS, TRAINING & STAFF ACTIVITIES

Risk Management Committee meeting held June 1% and 8"

Public Entity Insurance renewal approved and bound

Annual Firefighter physicals completed

Reviewed four contracts/agreements for required insurance

Review and follow-up of fifteen public event permits

Tht? job classification for DEI Specialist position was approved by City Council on June
20

The Public Works & Parks Supervisor job classification was approved by City Council
on June 6"

Union seniority lists were updated and provided to the Teamsters Business
Representatives in compliance with union contract requirements

Public Sector Community Service Best Practices Training was offered to all employees
Recruitment/Employment tasks related to:

o FT positions: Building Inspector (Residential), Community Services Coordinator,
Cultural Programs Supervisor, Engineering Technician Il, Information Systems
Technician I, Land Surveyor, Public Safety Director, Public Safety Officer, and
Public Works & Parks Supervisor

o PT positions: Administrative Assistant, Community Service Officer, Financial
Clerk, Laborer, Library Assistants (Reference), Library Intern, and Office
Assistant (V&T)

o Seasonal/Special Purpose/Misc. positions for Community Development and
Public Works departments (Aquatics, Engineering Interns, Recreation Front
Desk, Recreation Programming, Hearst Front Desk Assistant, Hearst Youth
Instructor, Seasonal Laborers, and contracted Custodians)

BENEFITS & COMPENSATION

Staff submitted the FY23 Wellmark Administrative Services Agreement and the FY23
Wellmark Stop Loss Policy for City Council review. Both agreements were approved at
the June 20th meeting

The City entered an agreement with National Insurance Services and Madison National
Life for life and accidental death and dismemberment insurance coverage replacing the
Standard Insurance Company

City Council approved an amendment to the City’s long-term disability insurance
coverage with National Insurance Services and Madison National Life that reduces the
City's premium rate and increased the maximum annualized covered salary

Health and Dental open enrollment and enrollment changes were received from
employees and processed with Wellmark and Delta Dental for July 1, 2022 start date.
Delta Dental's plan was renewed for another year with a 5% increase.

Link to machine readable files of health insurance information was added to the City’s
website as required by the Transparency in Coverage Rule

The City's COBRA plans were renewed in WEX Health Inc.’s portal in preparation for
COBRA open enroliment period

FY23 full and part-time benefit summary updates were gathered for revisions

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION

Preparations for and follow up to the June 15 and 22 meetings were completed
Information Systems Technician I, Public Safety Officer, and Public Works & Parks
Supervisor candidates were approved to test and forwarded the testing instruments to
complete and return for scoring 2

Item 8.

29




e The testing processes, candidate selection rubrics, questionnaires, and rating forms for
the Building Inspector and DEI Specialist were forwarded to Carlson Dettmann for
review and final versions of the former was approved by the Civil Service Commission.
The DEI Specialist testing process and documents are expected to be approved in July.

= The DEI Specialist job classification was discussed and was approved as an “entry”
position for testing

e Testing related communications were completed and a certified list was approved for
Cultural Programs Supervisor

HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION
e Preparations for and follow up to the June 13 main Commission and June 29 Executive
Committee meetings were completed
e Follow up to the May 26™ Commission recruitment event was completed and
preparations for new commissioner interviews began

Item 8.

30




Item 8.

Finance and Business Operations
Information Systems Division
Monthly Report June 2022

Summary of projects, training and staff activities
e Library conversion to the City’s Network:
e Swapped out 20 checkout laptop hard drives for SSDs
e Worked on getting base image for Youth Department computers
e Set up our private wireless network for use by the library staff.
e Central Square CJIS Software implementation
o Meetings were attended to finalize the RMS portion of the system.
e Website Refresh and New Mobile App launch
e Started work on the new Recreation Center website
e Finalized mobile app and tested links, and images.
e  Firehouse migration into ESO
e Kicked off the project to migrate End of Live Software Firehouse into new ESO estimated completion
date is September 1.
e 5years’ worth of NFIRS records were exported from Firehouse and given to ESO for the migration.
e An ESO workbook was completed in order to begin migrating data from Firehouse to the new ESO
platform.
s 0365 Migration
e Met with several vendors to discuss Microsoft licensing and migration to 0365
e Filled out several questionnaires for the vendors to help them better understand our environment.
e ity Hall Remodel
e  Various old cabling was cut out of the City Hall construction area to make room for new cable and
allow for drywall installation.
e Met to discuss dais needs for the council chambers.
e Order new boxes for dias for all audio visual needs.
e Graphic Artist began coordinating City Hall mural art piece.

Software Purchase/Installation/Upgrade Activities
e 61 software installations for 11 different departments

e Installed 6 new software for 2 departments

Equipment Purchase/Installation/Upgrade Activities/Repairs
e 17 new pieces of equipment purchased for 6 different departments

e 16 new equipment installations for 6 different departments

Problem Resolution Activities & Assistance Activties
e 58 problem resolution or assistant activities took place for 12 different departments

Grapic Design Activities
e Hearst Center: promotional, direct mail, and exhibition materials,

e  Tourism: lowa Travel Guide ad
e  Other: website updates, social media maintenance/graphics/series, business cards, Cable TV graphics,
promotional/communications graphics, laminating, PS stickers, website redesign assignments, Currents,

HRC nametags, Fireworks materials, Public Safety miscellaneous materials, Rec flier

31




Channel 15 Programming Activities

Cable TV Summary of projects

e This month we produced 7 public meetings, covered five Cedar Falls High School baseball and softball
games, and 16 Sturgis Falls Events/concerts.

e We recorded Customer Service Training for mandatory staff training and the Public Safety
Recognition Awards.

Regular productions included:

e Aired 4 new Panther Sports Talk show.

e Produced 3 new City News show

e  Continued planning for Public Safety recruitment video.

o  Continued weekly encoding and programming of church services for Public Access.

= Programmed CFU and Mediacom cable providers for Channel 15 and Public Access.

e Updated & added Community Calendar events to the Channel 15 Announcements

Factlity Upgrades

e  Worked with CFU, City staff, electricians and trenchers to devise a plan for live coverage from
Overman Park for Municipal Band and Sturgis Falls, as well as a long term solution to restore conduit
to Overman Park or a live path from the Overman Park.

e Continued planning for improvements in re-wiring of city council chambers and Channel 15 studio.

e Installed cables through City Hall basement for live coverage of Sturgis Falls Parade.

Drone Shoots

e Technology Parkway Expansion

e (Cedar Falls High School New Construction

e West 18th Street Construction

=  South Main & Greenhill Roundabout Construction

e  City Hall Remodel — HVAC Installation

e Industrial Park

e CFU Exteriors for Heat Wave/Energy Conservation story

e City Mural Photos: Public Safety, Public Works, Falls Aquatic Center

Geographical Information Systems (GIS) Activities

GIS Summary of projects

e Updated pavement layer for core areas

¢ Assisted legal and public works with easements on Parkway Ct
e Assisted legal with land purchase documents

e  Met with Finance and admin staff for GIS training

e Provided Parks with a listing of private trees to be cut down

e Assisted planning with a rezoning verification

e  Met with county and vendor staff to verify all €911 boundary layers
Completed 3 web and database projects 2 for different departments
Completed 3 different data requests for 3 different entities.
Provided 19 maps for 4 different departments.

Created 12 new addresses.

Item 8.

32




FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS
LEGAL SERVICES
June 2022

REPORT FROM SWISHER & COHRT — SAM ANDERSON:

Traffic Court:

City Cases Filed: 133 (this number includes both City and State tickets)
Cases Set: 6 (Traffic) 2 (Code Enforcement)

Trials Held: 1 (Traffic) 0 (Code Enforcement)

REPORT FROM KEVIN ROGERS, CITY ATTORNEY

e Review, Revise and Advise on 6 agreements

e Advise on municipal infraction issues; consider change to citation form
e Advise on Sewer Connection Fee District

e Advice, drafting of Council Procedural Rules changes

Item 8.

33




FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS
PUBLIC RECORDS
JUNE 2022

Public Records Activity

Staff prepared agendas, minutes and electronic packets for two Regular City
Council meetings, two Standing Council Committee meetings, two Planning &
Zoning Commission meetings and one Technical Review meeting. Meeting
follow-up communications, minutes and legal documents were drafted,
processed, recorded and filed.

Responded to eight (8) requests for public records.

Licenses / Permits Processed & Issued

70 Petlicenses
9 Paw Park permits
2 Pouliry licenses
16  Public Event permits
6 Mobile Merchant permits
0 Sidewalk Café permits
0 Tables & Chairs permit
10 Cemetery Interment Rights
18  Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor permits
19 Liquor licenses and beer/wine permits

Filed the FY2022 Lobbyist Client Report to the lowa Legislature.
Staff attended Knowbe4 computer security, GIS, and Best Practices Training.

The unemployment rates for the month of May 2022 were 2.3% for the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls Metropolitan Area, 2.7% in lowa, and 3.4% in the U.S.

Parking Activity

Enforcement
687 Parking citations issued.
$ 8,350.00 Citations paid.

Collection Efforts
$ 1,440.00 Collections from delinquent parking accounts.
$ 800.00 Vehicle immobilizations (16 vehicles).

Permits
$ 2,595.00 Parking permits issued (43).

Item 8.

34




Parking remains free in the College Hill municipal parking lots during the months of
June and July, as requested by the College Hill Partnership.

Plans are being made to designate a second electric vehicle (EV) charging space on
West 2™ Street, adjacent to the current designated space. Data is showing
increasing demand for these types of spaces.

Item 8.

35




Item 8.

FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS
LIBRARY & COMMUNITY CENTER

JUNE 2022
Library Activity
Usage Statistics April 2022 May 2022 May 2021
| Customer Count 12,559 10,991 3,772
Circulation 35,109 31,353 25,154
Event 1,463 371 750
Attendance

Special events in June included the following:
e Camp Co-lab, a series of maker programs for adults
* SummerFest, a kickoff event for the summer library program. This year’s SummerFest
was a carnival in the library parking lot in collaboration with the Friends of the Cedar
Falls Public Library, who are celebrating their 40" anniversary this year.
o Author talk with Nate Trainor, author of Nate’s Triumph

e Summer Library Program for all ages

Community Center Activity

Programs at the Community Center included Walking Wednesdays walking club, cards, billiards,
senior fitness classes, Tai Chi, and ceramics. Rentals in June included a stamp club, a band, and
a graduation party. City meetings were held at the Community Center during the City Hall

remodeling project.

36




Item 8.

City of Cedar Falls

Community Development Services

Inspection Services Division

Monthly Report for: Jun-22

Total for Month

Total for Fiscal Year

Total Same Month - LAST YEAR
Total for Fiscal Year - LAST YEAR

&

$5,7 0
$89,969,285.00
$10,964,265.00

$185,609,764.00

Construction Type

Monthly Summary

Yearly Summary

Issued Dwelling Units Valuations Fees Issued Dwelling Units Valuations Fees
Single Family New ) 1
) 7 0 $2,684,369.00 $19,523.20 82 0 $24,659,676.00 $181,679.85
Construction
Multi-Family New
Construction
Res Additi d
S Rl 99 0 $1,752,550.00 $26,148.00 814 0 $12,275,059.00 $191,673.40)
Alterations
Res Garages 3 0 $12,200.00 $24%.00 48 0 $1,190,627.00 $15,484.00
Commercial/Industrial New
. 6 0 $35,949,227.00 $159,972,50
Construction
Commercial/Industrial
6 . . 15,06 .00 ,827.70
Additions and Alterations o $1,036,594.00 $7,613.25 110 0 $15,064,004.0 $90,82
C ial/Industrial
pameieis)/industie 1 0 $85,000.00 $1,54500
Garages
Churches 2 0 $144,887.00 $1,466.00: 5 0 $401,787.00 $3,785.00
Institutional, Schools, _ "
" _.cﬁ_o:m n s % 0 $133,000.00/ 51,226.00] 13 ! 0 $343,905.00 $3,983.00
Public, and Utility |
— m -
Agricultural/Vacant n
Plan Review 5 0 50,00} $6,853.00, 93 0 $0.00 $153,376.00
Total 123 0 $5,763,600.00, $63,078.45] $89,969,285,00 $802,323.45

1172 0




Item 8.

City of Cedar Falls

Community Development Services

Inspection Services Division

38

Monthly Report for: Jun-22
. Monthly Summary Yearly Summary
Construction Type
issued Dwelling Units Valuations Fees Issued Dwelling Units Valuations Fees
Electrical 63 0 $0.00 $5,708.90 588 0 $0.00 $53,375 90
Mechanical 109 0 $0.00 $8,401.00 981 0 $0.00 $85,979,00
Plumbing 64 0 $0.00 $4,929.50 820 0 $0.00 $67,472.00
Refrigeration 8 0 $0.00 $870.00
Total 236 $19,039.40, 2397 $207,696.90
Constractor Monthly Summary Yearly Summary
Registrations Issued Dwelling Units Valuations Fees Issued Dwelling Units Valuations Fees
—
Electrical 2 0 $0.00 $300.00° 73 0 $0.00 $1,050-80
Mechanical 2! 0 $0.00 $300.00
Plumbing 6 0 $0.00 $900.00¢
Refrigeration
Total 2 5300.00| 151 $2,250.00
Building Totals 123 0 $5,763,600.00/ $63,078.45| 1172| o” $89,969,285.00! $802,323.45
Grand Total 361 0 $5,763,600.00: mmm\ﬁu.mm_ 3584 0 $89,969,285.00, $1,012,270.35




Item 8.

PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION
MONTHLY REPORT

June 2022

MONTHLY MEETINGS:

Planning & Zoning Commission — Meetings were held on June 8 and June 22.

June 8, 2022 Meeting

Applicant

Project

Recommendation

Action Taken

Kel-Mar, LC (Shawn
and Paula Kelly)

Rezoning — 2209 N. Union

Road (RZ22-002)

Discuss and set
date of pubilic

Public hearing set
for June 22, 2022

hearing
Cedar Falis City Zoning Text Amendment — Make Recommended
Council P&Z review of certain site recommendation approval

plans in the CD-DT (TA22-

to City Council

12

003)
June 22, 2022 Meeting
Applicant Project Recommendation | Action Taken
Kel-Mar, LC (Shawn | Rezoning — 2209 N. Union Make Recommended
and Paula Kelly) Road (RZ22-002) recommendation | approval
to City Council
Group Rental Committee — Meetings were heid on June 7 and June 21.
Requested
Address Unit | Owner Occupancy Approved for GRC BRHA
Requested Requested
1803 and 1803 % 3/unit and additional additional
Franklin Street 2 Chris Olsen ”__élﬂnit information information
Southgate Properties
622 Seerley Blvd 1 I, LLC 4/unit 4/unit 6/21/2022
Southgate Properties
2422 Walnut Street 1 I, LLC 4/unit 4/unit 6/21/2022
Pending
updates
Southgate Properties from
2500 Walnut Street 2 I, LLC 2/unit Inspection 6/21/2022
Southgate Properties | 3/unit and 3/unit and
2504 Walnut Street 2 (1, LLC 2/unit 2/unit 6/21/2022
Southgate Properties
2705 Walnut Street 1 ", LLC 4/unit 3/unit 6/21/2022
1/unitand | 1/unit and
| 2404 Olive Street 2 KOG Properties LLC 2/unit 2/unit 6/21/2022
2/unitand | 2/unit and
| 2415 Olive Street 2 KOG Properties LLC 2/unit 2/unit 6/21/2022 N

39




Board of Rental Housing Appeals — Meeting held on June 23, 2022

Item 8.

N Requested
Address Unit _OWner Occupancy Approved for GRC

BRHA

4 with the
condition that all
basement
windows are
compliant with

721 W 20" 1 Brian Wingert 4 access code 3

4 with the
condition that all
basement
windows are
compliant with
access code

Board of Adjustment — No meeting was held.

Other Commissions, Board Meetings & Staff Liaison Responsibilities:

Date Notes/Actions
Bicycle and Pedestrian 6/7/22 Staff presented a PowerPoint intended for
Advisory Committee Council to aid in their potential consideration

to make the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory
Committee a codified (official) board or
commission. Given the options in the
PowerPoint, the committee remained in favor

of becoming a codified independent

commission. An update was given on Bike
Month activities. The committee also had
some continued discussion regarding the
bicycle registration program. Engineering staff
gave updates on various ongoing trail and
network concerns listed on the agenda.

College Hill Partnership 6/13/22 Approval of the ED Grant contract with the
City. Discussion of establishing a fund for
CHP at the Community Foundation. Dave
Deibler as the representative to the Parking

Tech Committee.

Historic Preservation 6/14/22 Commission provided update on the ongoing

Commission educational project for setting up house tour
around Overman Park Neighborhood,
planning to do the event on August 18.
Committee provided design inputs on a map
and brochure for the public to reference for
that tour. Commission did not have any
updates on the College Hill project, at the
meeting. Commission also brainstormed
some ideas about City’s history wall project.

Housing Commission 6/14/22 The Housing Commission Reviewed and
made recommendation of approve of the FY
2023 Annual Action Plan. Discussed the
Housing Needs Assessment and how the

commissioners will be involved with the study

13

40




Item 8.

Community Main Street 6/24/22 Discussed the Challenge grant application

Design Committee that was received for “Scratch Cupcake”
space revitalization. Committee also
discussed the fagade grant application
received for “the Other Place” restaurant.
Besides that, the committee provided several
thoughts about “Downtown Gateway feature”.
City staff provided update on the recently
updated site plan application for projects in
CD-DT and mentioned that, once staff
received a complete application, they would
share details with the committee to provide
update on ongoing projects in the district.

LAND USE INQUIRIES AND PERMITTING
e 340 general inquiries, including walk-ins, and staff responses with information/assistance.
e 106 land use permits were issued.

OTHER PROJECTS FOR JUNE INCLUDED:

e The project to update the Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan is now concluded. The Plan was
approved by Council on June 16.

e The Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee has requested to become an official board
or commission. Staff is preparing information to present to Council on the matter.

e The Cedar Falls Resilience Plan was received and filed at the June 20 Council Meeting.

e Work on updating the design and project bids for the Cedar River Recreation Project. The
city received notification on June 22, the grant from Economic Development Administration
was approved.

e Ongoing effort to address enforcement of rental paving ordinance.

¢ Various enforcement actions related to zoning and rental code violations.

e Four property owners accepted purchase offers for the North Cedar Flood Buyout.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:

e Continued coordination with consultant on design work for the expansion of the West Viking
Road Industrial Park.

e Met with several existing businesses regarding expansion plans in the Cedar Falls Industrial
Park.

e Attended monthly Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation board of directors
meeting.

e Met with a Cedar Falls business regarding future expansion plans.

e Completed a business retention and expansion visit with an existing Cedar Falls business.

o Continued working with Grow Cedar Valley on a new Livability Magazine annual publication
for Cedar Falls and the Cedar Valley.

e Processed annual tax rebate payments for businesses with active rebate agreements.

* Provided industrial park site information for an out of state company looking to potentially
locate in lowa.

e Presented to the Grow Cedar Valley Community Development Council regarding current and
future economic development projects.

41

14




Item 8.

e Prepared yearly economic development grant contracts for Community Main Street, College
Hill Partnership and Grow Cedar Valley. City Council approved those contracts on 6/20/22.
e Attended Good Morning Cedar Valley meeting at VGM in Waterloo.

CDBG

e Work with INRCOG on administering the funds for projects and services agencies based on
the last Annual Action Plan.

e Continue to monitor sub-recipients of CARES ACT funds through the CDBG program.

e Amend the CARES-CV 2 contract with the State.

o Started the public review process for the FFY 22 Annual Action Plan including the Housing
Commission’s review.

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM

Waiting List 526 Rent Subsidies (HAP payments) $94,026
New Applications Taken 22 Utility Payments $ 1,084
Units under Contract 201 Admin Fees $ 14,844
Initial Vouchers Issued 3

Current Open Vouchers 8 Lease Up Goal 220

New Admissions 0

Ongoing

e All active files have been scanned. Continuing to scan in terminated files.
e Added new landlords
e Continuing to issue new vouchers/pulling from waitlist

ADD A DOLLAR REPORT
There were no applications received for utility assistance in June. There was a balance of
$43,332.16 as of June 31, 2022

15

42




Item 8.

RECREATION & COMMUNITY PROGRAMS
Monthly Report for June

Administrative:

The Recreation and Community Programs Manager attended an IAPRA Pool
Facility Operator School and obtained CPO certification.
The Park and Rec Commission had monthly meeting in Bess Streeter Park.

» Our Tot Lot area opened and was used for little summer campers activities.

s The exercise room received new painting. :

e Public Works reconstructed some curb in the handicap parking area that was in
bad need of repair.

» Created a new hire training checklist as well as customer service training videos
for front desk staff.

e Fall Programs developed as well as a registration set-up.

Aquatics:

Public Safety Officers were on hand at the Falls Tuesday through Sunday

- evenings from 5:00 pm through 8:00 pm. They assisted with removing

- individuals who would not follow the direction of the managerfassistant

Participation ' _Indoor Pools Falls

managefs. We have had great community response with their presence there.
Things continue to go very well so they will be scaling back their hours.

Session I of our summer swim lessons kicked off June 6 and ended June 21 after
2 days needed to be made up due to bad weather. Session Il started June 22"
at both locations and will go through July 6.

Water walking continues to be very popular this year. Patrons are able to walk
Monday — Friday mornings from 11:00 am to 11:55 am, and Tuesday / Thursday
evenings from 8:15 pm until 9:15 pm. 1,046 individuals participated in water
walking in June.

Swim Passes Sold 712
Open Recreational Swimming/Lap Swimming 281 32,997
Aquatic Program Usage 4,327 5,470

(swim clubs, lessons, lifeguarding, staff training)

16

43




Item 8.

Recreation Programs:
e Summer Youth Programs began.
e Adult Softball Leagues started.
» \We had 644 usage hours for rentals, programs, and school ball field usage.

Program Monthly Participation
Camp Cedar Falls 1,236
Coach Pitch Baseball 498
Coach Pitch Softball 160
3" & 4" Grade Travel Team Softball 180
3" & 4™ Grade Travel Team Baseball 504
5" & 6™ Grade Travel Team Baseball 180
AM Tball/Bbaseball/Softball Programs 655
Tennis Lessons 705
Rugby 140
Adult Bags League 24
Men's Softball League 432
Mixed League Softball 288
Church League ‘Softball 216
Tot Lot 141

Fitness/Wellness:

e Our outdoor fitness classes at the plaza continue to be well-attended and
appreciated! Patrons are also excited that we were able to order some new small
fitness equipment with the fiscal year budgets to replace some of the older worn
equipment in the facility.

Fitness/ Wellness

Classes Offered 192
Fitness Class Attendance 1,846
Personal Training Sessions 70
Massages: 34
Child Care 72
Facility Rentals 6
Shelter Rentals 76
Beach House Rentals 9

44

17




CEDAR FALLS TOURISM & VISITORS BUREAU

Monthly Report - June 2022

MEETINGS/CONVENTIONS/SPORTS

e Cedar Falls hosted the Iron Sharpens Iron wrestling camp, CV Soccer Moonlight Classic, Sturgis Falls
Celebration, Cedar Basin Music Festival, ISTA Trapshoot and eight other conferences and events in
June for an estimated economic impact of $9,373,186 for events i

that had bureau engagement.

e Staff assisted the USS Sullivan Reunion secure a Meet In lowa grant.

e Staff secured two events for 2022-2023.

e Staff sent five proposals for events in 2022-2023, generated three
new leads, and hosted an in-person site visit.

e Promoted Iron Sharpens iron wrestling camp and CV Soccer
Moonlight Classic on KWWL.

LEISURE

e Hosted ribbon cutting for new Prairie Pathway Kiosk in George Wyth State Park.

COLLABORATION

Worked with Community Main Street on new promotional photos of Cedar Falls.
Promoted Sturgis Falls Celebration, Cedar Basic Music Festival, College Hill Arts Festival and more.
Attended Lost Island Themepark media event to learn about the new Cedar Valley attraction.
Began project with Community Main Street to take new promotional photos.

Registered two trail events, notifying all jurisdictions.
Berhens-Rapp Station open for seasonal visitor information.

e Attended 8 Over 80 Awards where Lois Wishmeyer, a tourism volunteer, was honored.

e Published Hospitality Highlights newsletter x4, Weekender newsletter x1.
e Attended Cedar Valley Sports Commission meeting.

e Attended lowa Travel Industry Partners annual meeting.

e Assisted with Sturgis Falls Kids Parade, had representation in Sturgis parade, assisted with emceeing

at Overman Park during Sturgis Falls Celebration.

GROUP TOUR

e Coordinated a motorcoach group stop at the Visitor Center for July.

Item 8.

June 2022 May 2022 June 2021 (last year)
Visitor Center Traffic 582 597 786
Website Traffic 8,873 17,907 8,600
CedarValley365.com Users 1,685 1,374 1,513
Facebook - Visitor Center 9,203 9,207 9,061
Instagram 2,238 2,218 2,023
Linkedin 438 428 296
Visitor Guide Distribution 1,668 3,852 1,522
Volunteer Hours 75 42 44

18

45




Item 8.

CEDAR FALLS CULTURAL PROGRAMS . o
Monthly Report | June 2022 l hearst
o

e The Cultural Programs Supervisor position is open and qualified applicants are
going through the Civil Service process.

e Two leases were renewed for the Red House Studios. We awarded the UNI
Alumni Studio to a recent grad, Kami Lily. We are working to fill the final studio
space.

e A new exhibition, DEAN SCHWARZ AND FAMILY AND FRIENDS, opened June 4-
July 17. This exhibition features a tribute film to present in the gallery by
professor emeritus Roy Behrens. An opening reception was well attended on June
18™.

e Staff assisted the Public Art Committee with the upcoming installation of artwork
on River Plaza Place and an upcoming RFP for a mural project on the Main Street
Bridge underpass.

o The Hearst programs staff hosted an off-site event with the AMVETS for Flag Day,
were part of the Gallagher Bluedorn Block Party at Orchard Hill Church, hosted a
backyard concert with Avey Grouws Trio (196 ppl), hosted a hybrid book talk with
a Civil War scholar and hosted a Virtual Artist Talk on the environment.

e Promotion of Hearst summer events and live music is underway through social
media, newsletters, radio ads and billboards.

e The Hearst education staff hosted two summer camps in June, staff and
instructors are working hard to make this an exceptional experience for students.

e In addition the education team hosted art activities at the College Hill Arts
Festival and did face painting at Sturgis Falls Celebration Kidsway Tent.

e Ceramics staff offered two ceramic wheel throwing classes, and one “Pottery on
the Patio” workshop.

e The Art & Culture Board continued discussion to move Hearst expansion plans
forward. A presentation to council is planned for this summer.

Dream House (coming soon to River Place Plaza), Dean Schwartz Exhibit

46

19




Item 8.

Last Month This Month Last Year
Hearst Center Usage Statistics May FY22 June FY22 June FY21
In-Person and Virtual Attendance* 2397 2345 2626
Public Programs Offered** 8 6 3
Exhibition walk-in Viewers 400 277 426
Classes/Workshops Offered*** 15 9 5
Rentals/Birthday Parties 7/2 2/0 11
Volunteers/# of Hours 8/19 4/19 5/34.5
Facebook Views 74072 147381 46229
Facebook Followers 2758 2817 2457
Instagram Followers 1021 1034 874
Ads, videos, press releases, articles 4 3 4
Friends Members/new or renewed 296/12 300/11 300/10

*includes door counter, estimated garden attendance, and virtual program attendance. Does NOT include views of recorded
material; **includes on-site and virtual programs; ***includes themed take-home kits and virtual classes/workshops

20

47




ENGINEERING DIVISION

Item 8.
PROJECT MONTHLY REPORT - JUNE 2022
Contractor/
Type Project No. Project Description Status Budget Developer
Bridge BR-000-3259 2022 Bridge Inspections Inspections Final Out Remains $40,000 Foth
Bridge BR-106-3215 Olive Street Box Culvert Box Culvert Design $1,160,000 AECOM
Flood FL-033-3088 Cedar River Safety & Recreation Recreation Design $50,000 Engineering Division
Parking TBD College Hill Parking Resurfacing Out for Bid $150,000 Engineering Division
Sanitary SA-002-3182 Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Sanitary Sewer Letting $800,000 Water Reclamation/ Snyder
Santiary RC-000-3240 27th Street Improvements (Sanitary) Reconstruction Final Out Remains $270,000 AECOM/Pirc Tobin
Santiary SA-000-3297 2022 CDBG Santiary Sewer Rehab Sanitary Sewer Letting $250,000 Engineering/Water Rec
Sidewalk SW-000-3266 2021 Sidewalk Repair and Infill Sidewalks & Trails Construction Underway $157,876 Cobalt/Engineering Division
Sidewalk SW-000-3293 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Sidewalks & Trails Design TBD Engineering Division
Sidewalk RT-000-3217 2021 CDBG INFILLS Sidewalks & Trails Punch List Remains $181,492 OEL/Engineering Division
Sidewalk SW-000-3217 Union Road Trail Sidewalks & Trails Punch List Remains $510,299 Engineering Division/Snyder
Stabilization MC-091-3218 Mandalay Slope Stabilization Slope Stabilization Final Out Remains 8D Snyder
Storm Water | ST-000-3252 2021 Permeable Alley Storm Water Final Out Remains $107,500 E”Q'”eseerr':t‘gnz"'s"’”
Storm Water |  ST-077:3146 Clay Street Park Storm Water Final Out Remains $273,000 Sy
Benton's S&G
Storm Water ST-115-3147 University Ave Biocell Storm Water Contracts $108,647 Benton's Sand and Gravel
Downtown Street-Scape & ) . Snyder
Streets RC-000-3242 Reconstruction Phase I Reconstruction Active $2,450,000 K. Cunningham
Streets RC-000-3230 2022 Street Construction Street Repair Beginning Soon $3,266,000.00 |Engineering Division ~ PCl
Streets RC-173-3228 Ereenbil Boad i SChINED Reconstruction Construptlon Elanned i $3,400,000 Shive Hattery
Intersection Improvements Begin April 2022
Boulder
Streets RS-000-3275 2021 CFU Street Patching Project | Street and Sidewalk Repair Punch List Remains $161,198 Contracting/Engineering
Division/CFU
4
21 8




ENGINEERING DIVISION
SUBDIVISION MONTHLY REPORT - JUNE 2022

Item 8.

Contractor/
Project No. Project Title Description Status Budget Developer
SU-442-3165 Autumn Ridge 10th Addition New Subdivision Construction Underway e BNKD Inc./CGA
SU-413-3199 e e et New Subdivision Final Out Remains ——— | New Aldea/Fehr Graham
Aldea West Campus
SU-454.3257 Wild Horse 5th Addition New Subdivision Final Out Remains e CGA
5U-330-3151 Arbors Fourth Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond ememens Skogman/CGA
. " - ) BNKD Inc.
SU-442-3121 Autumn Ridge 8th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond B = o
Shoff Engineering
SU-282-1904 Gateway Business Park New Subdivision Maintenance Bond ———— Shige Hatteryl
Baker Construction
SU-445.3021 Greenhill Village Estates New Subdivision Maintenance Bond LGRS
Development
SU-345-3186 Park Ridge Estates New Subdivision Maintenance Bond - Bnanc\év/l‘{]gerl
SU-379-3207 Pheasant Hollow 7th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond CGA
SU-197-3134 Prairie Winds 4th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond e Bnar}l\grgen
SU-168-3187 Prairie Winds 5th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond e Bnarz)\(/s\lrgert
SU-173-3138 Sands Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond e Jim Sands/VJ
SU-217-3193 Western Homes 9th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond e Claas;?]r;n/\gvsestem
5U-445-3020 Wild Horse 4th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond —eeeanes Skogman/CGA
SU-440-3239 Autumn Ridge 9th Addition New Subdivision Preliminary Plat ——— CGA
SU-184-3160 GreenhillVillage New Subdivision Preliminary Plat — Panther Farms/CGA
Townhomes I
TBD West Fork Crossings New Subdivision Preliminary Plat/Plan Review e ISG

22

49




Item 8.

ENGINEERING DIVISION
COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION MONTHLY REPORT - JUNE 2022
_ Detention Project
Project Description SWPPP Status Cales | Developer/ Engineer St ¢
Status | anis
918 Viking Road 918 Viking Road Approved P Dahlstrom Active
Creekside Condos Cedar Heights/Valley High To Be Submitted Approved Larson/Fehr Graham Under Review
Dupaco CCU 126 Brandilynn Blvd Approved Approved Dupaco/VJ Active
Greenbhill Village Car Wash 1125-Fountains Way Approved Owner/Rabinson Eng Active
Greenhill Village Estates 4705 Algonquin Drive Approved Approved Peters/Axiom Active
High School W 27th Street Approved Approved City of Cedar Falls’AECOM Active
Mercy Health OBGYN Bluebell Rd Approved Approved Mercy/CGA Aclive

23

50




Department of Public Works
Operations and Maintenance Division
Monthly Report for June 2022

Streets Section:
e Various asphalt repairs were performed throughout the month
e Street sweeping operations were conducted utilizing two sweepers
e Permeable alley cleaning was done on several alleys to ensure proper functionality
e Replaced section of concrete trail and added sub drain on Green Hill Rd near Round St.
e Alarge storm drain structure was reconstructed at the 900 block of west 3" st.

Traffic Operations:
e 97 traffic control signs and labels were repaired or replaced
e Installed audible crosswalk buttons at 31 & Hudson
e Replaced the signal cabinet at Hudson & Viking due to vehicle accident
e Began annual city wide pavement marking project

Fleet Maintenance:
o 1,221 transactions were recorded through the City’s fuel dispensing sites
e Used 15,339 gallons of fuel (6,934 ethanol, 8,405 diesel)
e 131 work orders were processed through the fleet section for the month
e Maintained all city fleet as normal for the month

Public Buildings:
e Worked with contract service to solve deficiencies in service and to provide supplies and
recyclable materiat collections
e Assisted traffic operations with street line painting
o Rebuilt circulation pump for HVAC system at the Library

e Removed 33 trees on city right of way that were dead or in decline

e Prepared for Sturgis Falls celebration

e Trimmed trees along parade route for Sturgis Falls

e Preformed maintenance on recreation trail lighting under bridges and underpasses.
e Began repairs of pedestrian bridge at Central Park

e Installed memorial benches at Washington Park and Sturgis Park

e (Cleaned and maintained beach and sand volleyball courts at Island Park

Cemetery:
e Performed twenty three (23) interments — Two (2) Saturday service
e Six(6) space sold in Greenwood Cemetery, five (5) in Fairview Cemetery

Refuse:
e 696 tons of residential solid waste was collected. Tota!l of 733 three yard container dumps were
recorded. Crews responded to 159 residential bulk item collections
e Crews collected 158 tons of yard waste from curbside cart collection
e The Transfer Station hauled 82 loads of solid wasted to the Black Hawk County Landfill totaling
1,120 tons.
e Atotal of 137 tons of household recyclable material was collected for the month

24

Item 8.

51




DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
WATER RECLAMATION / SEWER DIVISION
MONTHLY REPORT - JUNE 2022

PLANT OPERATIONS

Plant performance was good for June, meeting all discharge permit limits.

Our permit requires disinfection of our effluent to occur from March 15th through
November 15th. The system is operational and performing well. Grabs were taken in
June per permit requirements with the geometric mean result was 9.6 MPN, well below
the limit of 126.

PROJECTS

Staff has continued working on pump replacement and rebuilding at lift stations in the
collection system.

WRF received the report from the USEPA pretreatment and biosolids inspection that
took place April 13" There were no follow-up requirements and the inspector
concluded that both programs “adequate and well managed”.

INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT

Viking Pump’s permit renewal was completed in June. No major changes were required
to their permit at this time.

BIOSOLIDS

We were able to process 179,000 galions through our belt filter press system for
application later. Another 188,000 gallons of liquid biosolids was applied to the City
owned farm.

A total of 6.8 tons of gritty, inorganic solids were hauled to the landfill.

SEWER CALLS AND COLLECTION SYSTEM ISSUES

Staff processed 646 requests for utility locates in construction areas for the lowa One
Call system. Of those, 114 were pertinent and required a sewer line to be located.

We received four calls regarding sewer problems from residents, with one involving an
issue with the City's main. The issue in the main that was plugged was due to road
construction with rock being pushed into a manhole stopping normal flow. Staff was
onsite quickly and the issue was resolved with no overflow occurring. There were four

25

Item 8.

52




alarm calis from a lift stations this month. Two were related to a communication loss
with our alarm monitoring system and two were related to a power loss. Each issue was
resolved quickly with no backups or overflows.

Crews were able to do clean 14,600 feet (2.8 miles) of sanitary sewer lines. This brings

our annual total to 13.2 miles. Our annual goal is to clean at least forty miles A total of
480 feet (0.1 miles) of sanitary sewer lines were televised this month..

26

Item 8.

53




CEDAR FALLS POLICE
Police Statistics

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

MONTHLY REPORT

JUNE 2022

First Shift Second Shift  Third Shift

Item 8.

Calls for Service 401 566 284 M First Shift
Traffic Stops 53 130 182 .
Arrests 13 22 42 Wisecond Shift
Accidents 21 50 8 % Third Shift
CEDAR FALLS FIRE
Fire Statistics Blue Shift Green Shift Red Shift 100 _ B
Calls for Service 79 71 64 | u Blue Shift
Fire 2 3 0 80
Rescue/Medical 45 47 42 = Green Shift
Service Call 3 5 6 & Red Shift
Good Intent 11 3 7
False Alarm/Call 13 12 6
Hazardous_ Condition 3 0 3 Fire Calls for Service
Weather/Disaster 1 1 0
911 Citizen Complaint 1 0 0
POLICE CALLS FOR SERVICE
. Jan | Feb |[Mar |Apr |May |Jun | Jul Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec
Type of Incident (Monthly) | 0" | 55" [0 |92 |92 |22 |22 |92 |22 |22 |22 |22
Group A Serious Crimes 108 | 100 | 131 125 | 110 | 128
Group B Other Crimes 74 52 41 57 78 62
Traffic Accidents 98 113 88 78 85 92
Other Calls 1582 | 1213 | 1308 | 1378 | 1389 | 1382
CFS Totals 1862 | 1478 | 1568 | 1638 | 1662 | 1664
Type of Incident (per year) 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Group A Serious Crimes 1570 1468 1469 1702 1467 1437 1407 1681
Group B Other Crimes 620 674 579 613 683 661 565 745
Traffic Accidents 708 734 790 720 774 613 228 1030
Other Calls 15,421 | 13,828 | 12,573 | 13,244 | 13,936 | 14,819 | 14,590 | 15,856
CFS Totals 18,319 | 16,704 | 15411 | 16,279 | 16,860 | 17,530 | 16,790 | 19,312
FIRE RESCUE CALLS FOR SERVICE
. Jan | Feb |Mar |Apr |May |Jun |Jul | Aug |Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec
Type ofIncident  (Monthly) | 5" | on |0 |92 |22 [922 |22 |22 |22 |22 |22 |22
Medical & Rescue 133 | 126 98 112 | 148 | 134
Cancelled, False Alarms,
Good Intent 41 38 56 34 36 52
Fire, Heat, Hazard, Weather
Related & Other B |rj8jaa)e |-
Totals 202 | 191 172 | 170 | 213 | 214
Type of Incident (per year) 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Non-Medical CFS 948 840 911 900 772 841 783 758
Rescue / EMS Related 1051 1367 1570 1437 1022 1272 1328 1541
Totals 1999 2207 2481 2337 1794 2113 211 2299

27

54




Item 8.

POLICE STATISTICS: June 2022 Total 2022
Group A Crimes
Murder/NonNeg Manslaughter 0 1
Kidnapping/Abduction 0 1
Forcible Rape/Sodomy/Fondling 4 27
Robbery 1 3
Assault 19 106
Arson 0 0
Extortion/Blackmail 1 2
Burglary/B&E 10 46
Theft 40 259
Motor Vehicle Theft 5 32
Counterfeit/Forgery 0 25
Fraud 9 76
Embezzlement 1 1
Stolen Property 0 8
Vandalism 18 84
Drug Offenses 18 85
Porno/Obscene Material 0 1
Op/Pro/Asst. Gambling 0 0
Weapon Law Violation 2 6
Group B Crimes
Bad Checks 0
Disorderly Conduct 12
Driving Under Influence 64
Drunkeness 44
Non-Violent Family Offense 1
Liguor Law Violation 5
Runaway 5
Trespassing 9
All Other Offenses 135
Group A Total: 610
Group B Total: 276
Total Reported Crimes: 886
Traffic Accidents
Fatality 0 0
Personal Injury 11 56
Hit and Run 13 112
Property Damage 68 400
Total reported Accidents 92 568
Calls for Service 1664 9872
Total Arrests 86 393

28

55




Item 8.

Cedar Falls Public Safety
Grid Map

Butier

Finehfara
Outside City Limits
F:5P:0
Non Specified
- F:7P:5
x
S F:1P:12 -
¢ Creak
geove
F:6 F:5 F:2
P22 P:27 P: 17
e o, Mt -:::':_"
- Cedar 1
F: 1 il
F:2 ;2 F Fil F:3
P8 M P Py | P22
Bensop . . .. F:3 g o5t |
o S P21 L -.‘“%c,—---
o | Fo b T
P:64 s 1 - Y s WS
Frd menn P: 7 P:?l 5 F;e frade Pes
’_F:]i-' » lar 1
B & I | F:4 |78 “
P 19 P:15 | P16 (P 54 P13
' F:3 iy )| ’ HE P:&?
U 8] :z[}v-l]g:sﬁ.’,_ P: 41 \;h
i; : _ - ji;.:,'.l.s,', ’ Il:'. (N b P:60
sl 2 : T3 | : : 8
P: 1 p: F:6 P: 58
1 40 P 47
I: 40 F: 1
F:6 F: 16 P: 110 P:5
P: 16 P: 106
F:5
: F: 19
P:2% p.g2

56

29




Cedar Falls Public Safety Experience Survey
(June)

Cancelled, False
Alarms, Good
Intent
3%

Fire, Heat, Hazard,
Weather Releated
2%

Medical
7%

Reportable Crimes ;
10%

Item 8.

30

57




DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES

POLICE OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

319-273-8612

MEMORANDUM

Item 9.

To:
From:

Date:
Re:

Mayor Green and City Councilmembers
Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director
Mark Howard, Acting Police Chief

July 25, 2022

Beer/Liquor License Applications

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and
recommend approval.

Name of Applicants:

9)
h)

Vintage Iron, 104 Main Street, Class B wine — renewal.
King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street, Class C beer & Class B native wine - renewal.
Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal.

The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow/Carter House Market & Cafe, 115-119 Main Street, Class
B liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal.

Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.

David’'s Taphouse and Dumplings, 200 West 1st Street, Class C liquor — renewal.

The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street — Plaza, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service —
temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (August 12-13, August 19-20, August 26-27,

September 9-10, & September 23-24, 2022)

Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary expansion of outdoor
service area. (August 1- October 1,2022)

Fast Track Racing, 200 Block West 2nd Street, Class B beer & outdoor service - 5-day permit.

The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - new.

58




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 14

CFD 1121: City Council Meeting Procedures
Approved XXXX, 2022 by the Cedar Falls City Council

Adopted & Amended:

01/28/91; 04/2003; 10/2006; 12/2013, 09/15/2014; 10/06/2014; 03/07/2016; 03/06/2017,
04/03/2017; 04/16/2018; 02/01/2021; 05/03/2021; 08/16/2021; 05/02/2022

Purpose:

The Cedar Falls City Council operates under the authority of state law (lowa Code Chapter 372)
and has established these special rules to ensure the orderly conduct of the council’s business
during its meetings. The mayor and committee chairs shall be responsible for enforcing these
rules. All members are encouraged to familiarize themselves with the standing rules, to aid in
their proper use, and to suggest improvements as may be needed from time to time.

Procedure:

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1. General Rules

Definitions. In this text, “member” shall be defined as any member of the Cedar Falls
City Council. “All members” shall be defined as the seven City Council seats, whether or
not the seat is vacant. “A two-thirds majority” shall mean at least five of seven members.

Scope of rules. These rules shall govern the conduct of the mayor and members and
shall be interpreted to ensure fair and open deliberations and decision-making as
required by the lowa Open Meetings Law (lowa Code Chapter 21).

Applicability of rules. These rules shall apply to the council when meeting in regular
council meetings, in committee, and during council work sessions. Presiding officers will
endeavor to fairly apply these rules; nonetheless, nonconformance with any part of these
rules shall not affect the legality of any action of the council.

Reference to and applicability of Robert’s Rules of Order. The Cedar Falls City
Council has adopted Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised (RONR), Twelfth Edition,
as its underlying parliamentary procedure. In cases not provided for by the Cedar Falls
Code of Ordinances, or not specifically provided for in these City Council Meeting
Procedures, Robert’s Rules of Order shall prevail.

Consent required to suspend or amend the rules. These rules may be temporarily
suspended by consent of three-fourths of the members present, but shall not be
repealed, altered or amended unless by concurrence of two-thirds of all the
members.(see RONR 25:7; 25:14)

Matters not covered. Any matter of order or procedure not covered by these rules shall
be referred to the presiding officer, who shall decide the matter with the assistance and
advice of the city attorney in conformity with the purpose of these rules in a fair and

Item 10.

59




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 14

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

1.10.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4,

expeditious manner.

Council prevalence in meeting decisions. Any determination by a presiding officer
may be reversed by a two-thirds majority of all members.

Interpretation. These rules supplement and shall be interpreted to conform to the
statutes of the State of lowa and the ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls.

Duty to vote; conflict of interest. Each member who is present when a question is
stated by the presiding officer shall vote thereon unless directly interested in the
guestion, in which case the member shall abstain from voting. When any member
refuses to vote when not excused, the member’s vote shall be recorded in the negative.
(See RONR 45.4)

Informational requests. During the consideration of any matter, or in the course of a
hearing, members may request and receive information, explanations or the opinions of
the mayor, city administrator, city attorney, city clerk, department director, or their
designee.

2. Time and Place of Meeting

Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Cedar Falls City Council shall be held the
first and third Monday of each month at 7:00 P.M. in the City Hall Council Chambers,
except when Monday falls on a legal holiday, then the meeting shall be held at the
regular hour on the next succeeding day not a holiday; provided, however, council may,
by resolution, reschedule any regular meeting to another date and time, or may cancel a
meeting. All hearings shall be scheduled for 7:00 P.M. the day of a regular meeting.
(Sec. 2-45(a))

Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the mayor or by any four or more
members who separately file a special meeting request with the city clerk. Such request
shall include the proposed agenda item(s) for the special meeting. As with regular
meetings, the agenda for the special meeting shall specify the day, hour and subject of
the meeting and shall be posted in City Hall and notice given to the media at least 24
hours in advance.

Quorum. A majority of all members shall constitute a quorum for transaction of
business. (see lowa Code 372.13.1)

Remote Attendance. Members may attend City Council meetings via remote means, as
long as a quorum (4 members) is present in person. Members attending remotely shall
provide advance notice to the City Clerk by noon on the business day prior to the
meetings, unless unexpected circumstances arise. If members participate via video
conference, it is preferred that members have their cameras on and remain visible
throughout the meeting. Unless otherwise approved by the mayor, the presiding officer
of council and committee meetings must be in physical attendance at the meeting.

Item 10.

60




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 14

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

3. Meeting Agenda

Preparation of agenda. Prior to each regular council meeting the city clerk shall
prepare an agenda that contains all items the council anticipates acting upon at the
meeting. The order of business shall be as follows:

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance (led by presiding officer)
Approval of Minutes

Agenda Revisions

Special Presentations (if necessary)

- 0o o0 T @

Public Forum (5 minutes maximum per speaker)
Staff Updates

Special Order of Business(primarily public and quasi-adjudicative hearings and

2 @

related actions)

i.  Old Business
j- New Business:

1. Consent Calendar

2. Resolution Calendar

3. New ordinances that do not require public hearings
k. Bills and Claims
I.  Council Referrals
Council Updates and Announcements.

Executive Session (if necessary)

© 5 3

Adjournment

Consent and Resolution Calendars. In preparing an agenda, the city clerk shall
separately designate items as Consent Calendar or Resolution Calendar, which may be
acted upon by the council under Rules 5.16 and 5.17. These items shall consist of
routine non-controversial items that in the city clerk's determination can be appropriately
considered in bulk at the council meeting or a listing of resolutions which are subject to
council action on that date. (see RONR 41:32)

Agenda deadline. Any member, the city administrator, city attorney, city clerk, or
department director, with the mayor's approval, may have an item included upon the
agenda by requesting the city clerk to include the item by 5:00 P.M. on the Monday one
week prior to the council meeting. Items requested or filed after this time shall not be
included upon the agenda unless the mayor deems the item of sufficient urgency to
warrant immediate council action.

Item 10.

61




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 14

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

4.5.

Published agenda. Agendas and meeting materials shall be made available to the
public at 5:00 P.M. on the Wednesday preceding the council meeting via web link on the
City website. Members will receive a printed copy of the council packet upon request.

Mayor withdrawal of items. The mayor may withdraw any item prior to the council
meeting, but in withdrawing the item shall state to the council the reason therefore. An
item withdrawn by the mayor may nonetheless, in the discretion of the council, be acted
upon in its regular order.

Council action to defer, continue or not act. A member may not withdraw any item
prior to the start of council meetings, provided however, a member wishing council to
defer action or continue an item may move to continue, defer or not act on any item
considered before any other action which council may consider.

Public agenda requests. Anyone from the public may request to have an item placed
on the agenda by filing such request in writing with the mayor prior to 5:00 P.M. on the
Monday one week prior to the regular council meeting. The mayor may either grant the
request by placing it on the next agenda or deny the request for stated reasons,
conveyed to the requester. Anyone may utilize the Public Forum portion of the meeting
agenda to raise any issue not on the formal agenda, which issue shall then be governed
by the rules set forth in Part 10 of these rules.

4. Conduct of Meetings

Presiding officer. The mayor, or in the mayor's absence or incapacity the mayor pro
tem, shall be the presiding officer at all council meetings. If both the mayor and mayor
pro tem are absent, the most senior member in terms of council service shall preside.

Control of discussion. The presiding officer shall control discussion of the council on
each agenda item to assure full participation in accordance with these rules. (See RONR
843; 47:19).

Roll call. Before proceeding with the business of the council, committee, or work
session, the city clerk shall call the roll of members present and enter those names in
the minutes. The city clerk shall determine the presence of a quorum as required by law
and these rules.

Presiding officer to decide question of priority of business. A question relating to
the priority of business shall be decided by the presiding officer without debate.

Order of consideration of agenda. Except as otherwise provided in these rules, each
agenda item shall be considered in the numerical order assigned by the city clerk. Each
agenda item shall be separately announced by the presiding officer, or city clerk, for
purposes of discussion and consideration. To announce an item, it shall be sufficient to
identify the item by the number assigned by the city clerk, unless greater specificity is
requested by some person in attendance. This rule shall not apply to consideration of

Item 10.

62




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 5 of 14

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

4.10.

4.11.

4.12.

4.13.

4.14.

4.15.

4.16.

4.17.

items under Rule 5.16 or Rule 5.17.

Presiding officer to recognize speaker. When two or more members rise at once to
speak at a council meeting, the presiding officer shall name the member who is to
speak.(See RONR 42:2)

Speaking on questions restricted. No member shall speak more than twice on one
guestion before the council without leave of the council, nor more than once in any case
until every member choosing to speak shall have spoken.

Motions to be seconded; when to be written. No motion shall be put or debated
unless seconded. When a motion is seconded, it shall be stated by the presiding officer
before debate and every motion shall be reduced to writing if required by the presiding
officer or any member.

Gaining the floor. Every member, previous to speaking, shall address the presiding
officer, and say, “Mister / Madam Chair” and shall not proceed with remarks until
recognized and named by the presiding officer.

Order of consideration of agenda. Except as otherwise provided in these rules, each
agenda item shall be considered in the numerical order assigned by the city clerk. Each
agenda item shall be separately announced by the presiding officer, or city clerk, for
purposes of discussion and consideration. To announce an item, it shall be sufficient to
identify the item by the number assigned by the city clerk, unless greater specificity is
requested by some person in attendance. This rule shall not apply to consideration of
items under Rule 5.16 or Rule 5.17.

Order required while others are speaking. While a member is speaking, no other
member shall hold any private discourse or interrupt except as allowed for a Point of
Order (Rule 4.18) and Point of Privilege (Rule 4.19).

Order required when question is being put. While the presiding officer is putting the
guestion, no one shall walk across or out of the council chambers.

Discussion. A member shall speak only after being recognized by the presiding officer.
A member recognized for a specific purpose shall limit remarks to that purpose. A
member, after being recognized, shall not be interrupted except by the presiding officer
to enforce these rules.

Limit on remarks. Each member shall limit remarks to a reasonable length.

Presiding officer's right to enter into discussion. The presiding officer may enter into
any discussion.

Presiding officer's right to speak last. The presiding officer has the right to close
debate.

Closing debate. Discussion, including public participation, shall be closed on any item

Item 10.

63




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 6 of 14

4.18.

4.19.

4.20.

5.1

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

by the presiding officer with the concurrence of a majority of members. Except as
provided by Rule 5.8, a call for the vote shall not close discussion if any member of the
council still wishes to be heard or the presiding officer determines the continued
participation of the public will be helpful to the council.

Bringing a Point of Order. At any time during a meeting, a member may interrupt to
declare a “Point of Order” to address a perceived discrepancy or a violation of these
rules. The presiding officer shall determine the best action based on the point made,
without debate.

Bringing a Point of Privilege. At any time during a meeting, a member may interrupt to
declare a “Point of Privilege” to address an urgent matter relating to the rights of the
members or the assembly, including ability to hear speakers and room comfort. The
presiding officer shall determine the best action based on the point made, without
debate.

Calling member to order; appeal. A member called to order while speaking at a
council meeting shall immediately cease speaking unless permitted to explain. If there is
no appeal, the decision of the presiding officer shall be conclusive, but if the member
appeals the decision of the chair, the council shall decide the question without debate.

5. Council Action

Motions. At any appropriate place on the agenda, any member may make a motion for
the council to act upon any matter if the motion is relevant to the matter under
consideration.

Motion required. All action requiring a vote shall be first moved by a member and
seconded by another member.

Consideration out of agenda order. With the consent of the council, any agenda item
may be considered out of its listed order on the agenda at the request of a member.

Recording names of moving members. The city clerk shall record the name of the
member making each motion and second.

No motions by presiding officer. The presiding officer may suggest a motion, but may
not make a motion. A member acting as presiding officer may second a motion.

Majority vote required for adoption. No resolution or ordinance shall be adopted
without a concurrence of a majority of all of the members of the council by call of the
ayes and nays that shall be recorded. Passage of a motion requires a majority vote of a
guorum of the council. As used in this section, “all of the members” refers to all of the
seats of the council including a vacant seat and a seat where the member is absent, but
does not include a seat where the member declines to vote by reason of a conflict of
interest.

Item 10.

64




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 7 of 14

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

5.10.

5.11.

5.12.

5.13.

Preferential motions.
a. When a question is under debate the only motions in order shall be:

First To adjourn.

Second The previous question.

Third To lay on the table.

Fourth To postpone to a certain time.
Fifth To adjourn to a certain day.
Sixth To refer.

Seventh To amend.

b. Such motions shall be given precedence in the order herein arranged, the first
three (3) to be decided without debate.

Calling the previous question. When a member desires to cease debate and to vote
on the pending question, the member shall request the floor and state: “I move to call the
previous question.” If seconded, then the council shall then vote, without debate, on
whether to call the question. If carried by a two-thirds majority of members present, all
proposed amendments and all further motions, debates and public participation shall be
excluded, and the original motion shall immediately be voted on.

Debate of motions to table, amendment. A motion to lay a question on the table
simply is not debatable, but a motion to lay on the table and publish, or with any other
condition, is subject to amendment and debate.

Motions postponed to a certain time. When a motion is postponed to a certain time,
the proposed date shall be specified as part of the motion.

Precedence of motions to refer to committee. A motion to refer to a standing
committee shall take precedence over a similar motion for a special committee.

Motions to amend. Amendments shall be governed by the following:

a. A motion to amend an amendment shall be in order, but a motion to amend an
amendment to an amendment shall not be entertained.

b. An amendment modifying the intention of a motion shall be in order, but an
amendment relating to a different subject shall not be in order.

c. Motions to strike and insert. On a motion to strike out and insert, the paragraph to
be amended shall first be read as it stands, then the words proposed to be struck
out and those to be inserted, and finally the paragraph as it would stand if so
amended.

Withdrawal of a motion. After a motion or resolution is stated by the presiding officer, it
shall be deemed to be in the possession of the council, but may be withdrawn at any

Item 10.

65




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 8 of 14

5.14.

5.15.

5.16.

5.17.

5.18.

5.19.

5.20.

5.21.

5.22.

time before decision by the original mover by stating “Mister/Madam Chair, | ask
permission to withdraw the motion”. If any amendment has been proposed or adopted,
the main motion shall not be withdrawn without the consent of the mover of such
amendment. (See RONR 33:11)

Division of question containing distinct propositions. If a question in debate
contains several distinct propositions, any member may have the same divided prior to
the vote thereon when the sense of it requires such division.(See RONR §27)

Separate consideration. Except as otherwise allowed by these rules, each agenda item
shall be voted upon separately and shall be recorded by the city clerk.

Action on Consent Calendar. Items on the Consent Calendar shall be acted upon by
voice vote in a single motion without separate discussion, unless the presiding officer, a
member, or the public requests that a specific item be considered separately.

Action on Resolution Calendar. Items on the Resolution Calendar shall be acted upon
by roll call vote in a single motion without separate discussion, unless the presiding
officer, a member, or the public requests that a specific item be considered separately.

Announcement of Items in the Consent and Resolution Calendars. Items in the
consent and resolution calendars may be announced by having the full titles read,
summarized, or by stating the number assigned to the item by the city clerk. Any item in
the Consent Calendar or Resolution Calendar which is pulled for separate consideration
shall have its full title read aloud by the presiding officer prior to entertaining a motion
and a second on the measure.

Recording of Resolution Calendar votes. The city clerk shall record the yes and no
votes on each resolution calendar item separately as if each item had been moved and
voted upon separately. Rule 4.10 shall not apply here.

Action on multiple items. With the consent of a majority of the council, Rule 5.15
notwithstanding, the council may consider for voting purposes more than one item, but in
such event the vote upon each item will be separately recorded by the city clerk noting
specific yes or no votes of each member on each item.

Public hearings. Any other rule to the contrary notwithstanding, unless required by
statute or necessary to conform to proceedings required for a special purpose, a hearing
shall commence when declared open by the presiding officer and shall close when
closed by the presiding officer or by other formal action of the council.

When motions may be reconsidered; renewal of motion. A motion may be
reconsidered at any time during the same meeting at which the motion was made, or at
the first meeting held thereafter. A motion for reconsideration, being once made and
decided in the negative, shall not be renewed before the next meeting. (See RONR
37:9)

Item 10.

66




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 9 of 14

5.23.

5.24.

5.25.

5.26.

5.27.

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

Who may move to reconsider. A motion to reconsider must be made and seconded by
members who voted on the prevailing side, or by those who were absent and did not
vote upon the motion to be reconsidered (See RONR 37.10)

Reconsideration when member is absent. Rule 5.23 notwithstanding, when less than
seven members are in attendance at a meeting and an agenda item fails to receive a
majority of affirmative or negative votes of those in attendance, then the agenda item
shall, upon the request of any member in attendance at the meeting, be placed by the
city clerk on the agenda for the next council meeting, and continued thereafter upon the
agenda for subsequent meetings until it shall receive a majority of affirmative or negative
votes of those in attendance. An ordinance continued under this rule shall not be
considered to have been read or considered for its first or any subsequent passage until
it receives four affirmative votes.

Council Updates and announcements. Members may use this time during a Council
meeting to ask for updates from staff on projects or issues and to make announcements
to the public and to council on civic matters. The presiding officer shall ensure that such
discussion remains in compliance with the lowa Open Meetings Law (lowa Code
Chapter 21); as a safeguard, no motions will be entertained at this time. Matters
requiring deliberation by council for final action shall instead be submitted for inclusion
on a future regular council or committee meeting agenda to ensure transparency and
public participation.

When motion to adjourn is in order. A motion to adjourn the council shall be in order
except:

When a member is in possession of the floor.

While the members are voting.

When adjournment was the last preceding motion.

When it is decided that the previous question shall be taken.

oo oW

Amendment, debate of motions to adjourn. A motion to adjourn simply cannot be
amended, but a motion to adjourn to a given time may be and is open to debate. (see
RONR §21).

6. Standing and Special Committees

Purpose of committees. Committees exist to allow members to consider certain topics
in detail prior to final consideration in the regular council meeting.

Powers of committees. Committees are only empowered to make recommendations to
the City Council; all final actions pertaining to a referred item must be determined by the
City Council at a regular or special meeting called for that purpose. (see RONR 850)

Referral by council or mayor. Committees may receive referrals through an approved
referral request as described in Part 8 of these rules, or as determined by the mayor.

Item 10.

67




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 10 of 14

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

6.9.

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

Standing committees. The following shall be the Council’s standing committees:

Administration.

Finance & Business Operations.
Public Safety.

Public Works.

Community Development.
Committee of the Whole.

~o o0 oW

Appointment of committee members.. All standing committees shall be appointed by
the mayor annually at the first regular meeting of the council in January of each year, or
as soon thereafter as practicable. Special committees shall be appointed by the mayor
unless otherwise directed by the council. The first person named on each committee
shall be the chair. (Sec. 2-68) Absence of Committee Chair. In the absence of the
committee chair, the Mayor Pro-Tem may preside if such action is approved by the
designated chair or by the mayor.

Number of committee members. The standing committees of the council shall consist
of all seven members. All special committees shall consist of five members each, unless
some other number is specified. (Sec. 2-69)

Motion to recommend; continuance. After any presentations and initial discussion,
members may move to recommend a course of action to the City Council; this will
typically be a recommendation for council approval or disapproval of a certain action or
resolution. Members may also move to continue the discussion in a future committee
meeting prior to making a recommendation to the City Council.

Procedure for committees to report. Standing and special committees of the council
to whom referrals are made shall report the state of facts and the committee’s
recommendation through the approved committee minutes unless another form of report
is specified by the council.

Acceptance of final report discharges special committees. On the acceptance of a
final report from a special committee of the council, the committee shall be considered
discharged without a vote, unless otherwise ordered.

7. Ordinance Adoption

Ordinances to be presented in writing. All ordinances shall be presented in writing
before being considered by the council. (Sec. 2-125)

Consideration and passage of ordinances. Ordinances must be considered and voted
upon for passage at three separate council meetings, unless this requirement is
suspended by a recorded vote of not less than three-fourths of all of the members of the
council. (Sec. 2-126)

Procedure for passage of ordinances. The following procedure shall be followed by

Item 10.

68




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 11 of 14

7.4.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

the council in the passage of all ordinances:

a. A motion to pass the ordinance upon its first consideration or a motion to
suspend the rules requiring ordinances to be considered at three (3) separate
council meetings.

b. In the event the ordinance is passed upon its first consideration, the ordinance
shall be given the second and third considerations either in adjourned meetings
of the meeting of its passage on first reading, or at some following special or
regular meetings of the council.

c. In the event that a motion to suspend the rules has passed, a motion shall be
made to adopt the ordinance upon its third and final consideration.

d. Upon the passage of the third and final consideration of the ordinance, the mayor
shall declare the ordinance duly passed and adopted.

Contents of amendments to ordinances. An amendment to an ordinance must
specifically repeal the ordinance, or the section, subsection, paragraph, or subpart to be
amended, and must set forth the ordinance, section, subsection, paragraph, or subpart
as amended. (Sec. 2-127)

8. Council Referrals

Referral initiation. During the Council Referrals portion of a regular council meeting,
any member may move to refer any topic or question to a council standing committee,
city board or commission, or to staff for further consideration, using the process outlined
in Rules 8.2 and 8.4.

Council referrals presented in writing. Except for the exigent circumstances in Rule
8.4, all council referral requests should be provided to the City Clerk in writing no later
than 5:00 pm on the Monday prior to the next regular council meeting. The request
should contain sufficient information to enable the council to determine if the request
merits referral to a council standing committee, a city board or commission, or to staff for
further consideration.

Referral discussion. Upon a motion and second, the council may choose to discuss the
referral in question. The presiding officer shall ensure that the deliberation is focused on
the desirability of referral approval, rather than the merits of the proposed initiative.

Moving an exigent referral. In some cases, a council agenda item or other discussion
may necessitate an immediate referral to committee without the prior documentation or
notice to the council as required by Rule 8.2. In these instances, a member may move
an exigent referral.

Validity of an exigent referral. The presiding officer shall determine the validity of an
exigent referral. Referrals not deemed exigent shall be ruled out of order by the

Item 10.

69




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 12 of 14

8.6.

8.7.

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

9.7.

9.8.

presiding officer. This determination may be overruled by a two-thirds majority vote of all
members per Rule 1.7.

Referrals at work sessions. In addition to the above processes, the City Council may
directly refer topics to committee via consensus during a work session.

Withdrawal of referrals. The requesting member may withdraw a requested referral
from the council agenda at any time.

9. Council Work Sessions

Purpose of Work Sessions. From time to time the mayor or city council may direct that
a work session be held for informal study and discussion of a topic prior to formal council
action. Additionally, a work session may be used to facilitate a meeting between the
Cedar Falls City Council and other entities.

Session Agenda. Work sessions shall be preceded by a published agenda, which shall
include the meeting location and time, in accordance with all applicable provisions of the
lowa Open Meetings Law (lowa Code Chapter 21).

Parliamentary procedure not applicable. Unlike council meetings and committee
meetings, council work sessions are not required to follow the regimentation of
parliamentary procedure.

Direction to staff by consensus. No votes shall be taken at a work session, but council
consensus shall be gauged in order to provide direction to staff for further staff action.

No final action during work sessions. In no case shall a work session consensus be
construed as a final council decision for action. Each action consented to during a work
session shall then be placed on the agenda for a future council meeting, committee
meeting, or work session (as appropriate) for further consideration.

Mayor and/or facilitator responsibilities. The mayor or a trained expert shall serve as
the work session facilitator to ensure that the council has sufficient information and
guidance to develop a consensus (if needed) on the topic at hand.

Public participation in work sessions. The public is encouraged to observe the
deliberations of the council during work sessions, but public comment will not be
solicited or allowed during these meetings.

Recording work sessions. All work sessions shall be recorded.

Item 10.

70




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 13 of 14

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10. Public Participation

General Considerations.

a.

Identification of the Speaker. Any person desiring to speak in Public Forum or
public comment shall first be recognized by the presiding officer and then shall step
to the podium, state their name, address, and group affiliation (if any) for the public
record, and will speak clearly into the microphone.

Speakers to address the presiding officer. Speakers shall be required to direct
their comments to the presiding officer only, and not to individual members or staff.
(See RONR 43:22).

Public comment during public hearings and on agenda items.

a.

While an item is being considered for action at a council or committee meeting, the
public will be granted an opportunity to comment prior to a vote by the members.

Speakers shall be limited to speaking once, for up to five minutes, unless additional
time is granted by the presiding officer or by motion and approval of a two-thirds
majority of members. The presiding officer will advise the speaker when one minute
remains.

Total speaker input on any subject under consideration can be limited to a fixed
period by the presiding officer. A majority vote of the council may extend the time
limitations of this rule. (See RONR 43:16)

Speaker comments must remain civil and be directed to the subject under
consideration. The presiding officer shall rule on the relevance of speaker
comments. Speakers making comments that could be construed to be obscene,
integral to illegal conduct, inciting imminent lawless action, threatening or
slanderous remarks towards another party shall be ruled out of order and barred by
the presiding officer from further comment at the current meeting. (See RONR
9:29)

Speaking during public forum.

a.

Applicability. Anyone may address the presiding officer during the Public Forum
segment of the agenda, regarding any issue not on the agenda. The topic must be
related to City operations or business, as determined by the presiding officer. No
formal action on the subject presented by the speaker may be taken by the council,
other than a referral to City staff or a council committee or placement on an
upcoming council agenda, in accordance with State law. The presiding officer may
seek information from city staff in response to comments or questions by the public.

Time limit. Speakers shall be limited to speaking once, for up to five minutes,
unless additional time is granted by the presiding officer or by motion and approval

Item 10.

71




CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 14 of 14

10.4.

10.5.

10.6.

10.7.

of a two-thirds majority of members. The presiding officer will advise the speaker
when one minute remains.

c. Campaigning prohibited. Public Forum is not to be used as a platform to promote
individuals running for elected office or ballot measures at any governmental level.
Such conduct will result in the speaker being barred from further comment at the
current meeting. Campaign materials for specific candidates, political parties or
ballot measures at any governmental level are also prohibited from display to
ensure good order during council meetings.

City employees not to speak on employment matters. Employees and collective
bargaining groups will not be recognized to speak about employment-related issues to
avoid violating adopted policies, collective bargaining agreements and State and Federal
law.

Visual Aids. Any visual aids that a speaker desires to have displayed in public forum
during public comment must be submitted to the City Clerk by 10:00 a.m. on the day of
the Council meeting for the presiding officer’s review and approval.

Recording. The public may use cameras or recording devices at any open council
session. The presiding officer may make and enforce reasonable rules for the conduct of
council meetings to assure those meetings are orderly, and free from interference or
interruption by spectators. (See lowa Code 21.7)

Written Communications. On any matters before the city council, the public may
choose to submit comments in writing (whether in letter or e-mail form). This
communication should be directed to the City Clerk for inclusion in the council packet by
e-mailing cityclerk@cedarfalls.com, by dropping the correspondence off at City Hall
(attn.: City Clerk) or by mailing it to City Clerk, Cedar Falls City Hall, 220 Clay Street,
Cedar Falls, IA 50613. Any public correspondence sent to the City Clerk regarding
council agenda items will become a public record. Correspondence arriving before 5 pm
on the Monday before the council meeting will be included in the council packet for
mayor, council and public consideration. Members of the public who file written
communications may also make verbal comments at the meeting, per Rules 10.2 and
10.3 above.

Item 10.

72



mailto:cityclerk@cedarfalls.com

R

o

TO:
FROM:
DATE:

SUBJECT:

Item 11.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Mayor Green & City Council Members
Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer
July 25, 2022

Updated Purchasing Manual

Attached is the Accounting Policies and Procedures and Purchasing Manual. The
manual has been updated to incorporate the following revisions:

If you have

Updated Finance & Business Operations Organizational Chart

Section 11: Public improvement bidding threshold requirements as set by the
State of lowa have been updated

Section 17: Overnight and out-of-state travel requests are approved by the
City Administrator, as well as all non-budgeted travel requests are approved
by the City Administrator and Department Director per Personnel Policy 403.
The addition of sample forms: Request for Travel and Statement of
Expenses and the Employee Reimbursement.

Section 19: Conflict of Interest has been updated per Personnel Policy 807.
Section 29: City General Obligation bond rating has been updated to Aaa
rating.

As well as miscellaneous formatting, job titles, and minor adjustments to
processes have been updated in the manual.

any questions regarding the manual, please feel free to contact me.

CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations

73




CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
AND
PURCHASING MANUAL

Prepared by the Department of Finance & Business Operations

Item 11.

74




SECTION
SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

5

6

7

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

AND
PURCHASING MANUAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PURCHASING RESOLUTION ...ccoiiiiiiiceciniiicnnnisessnessnnessnssnss s 1
INTRODUCTION.....oooiiiiienieeeecanesnsssnsssnsssnessnressmesnnsennsesnesmsessnssans 3
ORGANIZATION AND AUTHORITY
3.01  Organization ..........ccccoeeiiimiiiiunicsaees et 5
3.02 Authority and DULIES ........cccoiimmimeieiiecic i 7

RELATIONSHIP OF FINANCIAL SERVICES TO CITY
DEPARTMENTS IN THE PURCHASING PROCESS

4.01
4.02
4.03
4.04
4.05
4.06
4.07
4.08

SPE
5.01
5.02
5.03
5.04

Cooperative Relationship..........ccocueeemriiiiiiiiiniiiiiinian 9
Financial Services Division Responsibilities ................ccc...... 9
Departments’ Responsibilities...........coceveiieiiinmnincneneen. 9
PUrchase Orders..........ccvecceeeecermmuecsnsrasssssesssrsssssemsnseessnes s 10
Element and Object Number............cccocviiiniinnnnninninnnnes 10
Project NUMDEr ... 1
SIGNAUIES....ocv e 12
Purchasing Process OVeIVIEW .........ccccceviiininnniiinnsiessnnanens 12
CIFICATIONS
9= 1101 o] o P PRSP OP 13
Requirements for Specifications ..........ccceemniniiiiiiinins 13
Types of Specifications............ceve s 13
Requesting Department’s Responsibilities................ccccoveeee 14

REQUISITIONS FOR PURCHASE FORM AND BUDGET
AMENDMENT FORMS

6.01 Reaquisition for Purchase FOrm ... 17
6.02 Budget Amendment Request..........cccccmiiniiiniininnnicninnnns 19
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

7.01  INtrodUCHON ....vveeeeecercreecinte e aes e me e cbsis e rns s s annnn e 23
7.02 ProCedUre ......ccccoiceeiieiiiieiiiensscissassassneaassisasaesastssasaasrsnsenns 23
7.03  ROUNG woiiiisiiniiaiisiissisommimidoniiis weivesiissidoidaniaviinmi 24
7.04  APPIOVAL...c.ociiiciriiiiiinanrnra e sae et s s 27
7.05 Electronic Funds Transfers (EFT).......cccuccivemiinnininnesrennnans 28

Item 11.

75




SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

10

11

12

13

14

7.06 Bank Reconciliations ...........ccoocviveinciiiniicniiinssnesee e
7.07 Accounting for Debt Service Payments .........cccccocoeeiiiiinne
7.08 General Ledger Financial AGtivity ..........ccooeivieciiciciiiinen.

PURCHASE ORDER

8.01 PUrchase OFder...........oooivveiiiiriiirieermreeasarmsneesssnsnsssasasmsssasass
8.02 RoULING ..o iR s
8.03 Safety BOOS ...ccocvcveeriiiiiiiniciicnssiis et enn s
[ Ao P - L0 o (= S SN

BLANKET CONTRACTS

9.01  DefiNitioN...ccciiveeeeecceiereeers e s sares s ean e s
0.02 Areas of Responsibility ..........cccocviuiniiivninninniiiiii.
9.03 Purchase and Payment ...........ccccvvimmirimnnneninmienieinnisan.

EMERGENCY AND RAPID NEED PURCHASES

10.01 Emergency PUrchases........cccceevrveecececiciniiiciiieiiniiscsiennas
10.02 Rapid Need Purchases..........ccooomreeciiininiiiniie
10.03 Payment of Emergency or Rapid Need Purchases.............

QUOTATIONS AND BIDS
11.01 Basis for QUOtations .........c.cceovriiiiiin s
11.02 Public Improvement Bidding Procedures..............cccccco.....
11.03 Highway, Bridge, and Culvert Bidding Procedures .............
11.04 Written QUOLAtIONS ........cccoviiiiiiiiiciieinisine e ease e
11.05 Competitive Negotiations ...........ccecviniininniinniinnininniinne
11.06 Professional Consultants...........c.ccuiimininirierinninnisesnees
11.07 Special Evaluation Criteria...........ccocmeeeeninniinciss e
11.08 Change Order Policy — Formal Contracts ...........c.cccceeeeeee
11.09 Appraisal CONtracts ............ccocvcieivirriimiinesiensses i
11.10 Lease-Purchase and Rental Agreements...................c...ce.
11.11 Payments and Retention from Payments on Formal
070111 - 1o (- RO

RECEIVING, INSPECTION, AND TESTING

12.01 INSPECHON ...ttt e s s
12.02 TeStiNG susiieiimviiss s isiie oo sHsiiassss m i srmsassisssmass
12.03 Completion of Receiving Report .........cccoovirevereiiiniinnnne,

MATERIALS MANAGEMENT
13.01 INVENLOTY w.oveeiiei e s
13.02 Small Equipment INVentory ..........ccvoeeeiimiiciiiieniiecininean

SURPLUS PROPERTY
B 00l T 0 1= T (7o o TS,
14.02 Responsibilities. ...

Item 11.

76




SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

15

16

17

18

19

20

14.03 Methods of DISPOSal ...cccccmmrririciiiiiiee s 63
14.04 Disposal of Police and Public Safety Badges ..................... 64

FOLLOW-UP AND EXPEDITING

15.01 FOlOWAUD .ecvveenveereeerecresnesssesnesssesraesranersansssessseesseasaassaenne 65
15.02 EXpediting.....c.ccceiiieiiiiiiin e 65
15.03 Requesting Department Responsibilities ...............ccci. 65
15.04 Financial Services Division Responsibilities ..............c........ 65

REIMBURSEMENTS FROM PETTY CASH
16.01 DeSCriptioN ..cccoveveiiii ettt e 67
16.02 Request for Reimbursement Procedure .................cocieiie 67

TRAVEL AND EDUCATION REPORTS

17.01 Travel and Education REpoOrms .........cccccvsirivrrrmaruneassinnesenans 69
17.02 Reimbursement Procedure............covcveeinimnerencriannesssnnnsenns 72
17.03 Employee Reimbursement Report..........ccccciiiiiiiiiiinnnn 73

Missing Meal Receipt Form ... 75

EQUIPMENT PURCHASE, VEHICLE MAINTENANCE,
AND DATA PROCESSING

18.01 Specifications..........ccrveeriiniiriee 77
18.02 Requisition for PUrChase..........cccoveeieiiiciniiniieesinnnnniasassenns 77
18.03 Solicitation of Bids and/or Quotations ..........ccccceeeviciiiniiinnna 77
18.04 PUICRASE. ciiivisssnasssissiniansnnsvsnissnsaisissnssnss ibsonasnssrvasssossapannsnnes 78
18.05 Asset Status of Equipment.............ccveiiiiiiieneeiinen e 78
18.06 Computer Hardware and Software ..........ccoceeciiriiciinne 79
18.07 Requisition for Purchase............cccooiiiiiiiniiiiiii 79
18.08 Solicitation of Bids and/or Quotations ...........c.ccccviimiieinneeens 79
18.09 PUIChase....imeriiissisiiinmmsissiiasmivssisistisiinssassssansssssnianssisanes 79
18.10 Capital Asset Purchase — Capital Assets..........ccoccevvinennne 80
18.11 Depreciation..........ccccumviiinimmirmrers e s 87

Sample Capital Asset Input Data Collection Forms ............ 89

Bid Quotation/Selection Summary Form..........cccceveeiniinns 96

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

19.01 PONCY .....ceecereinnn e btsssesssssiussssissnnsassarapssassas sonsnssunsanssasernnrs 97
19.02 COMPUANCE.........eiicvirieiirerrarsrnsnaee e e e 97
UNIFORMS

b0 0 T 1= 113 11 (oY T RS 101
20.02 UNIfOIMS ......eerememe e ivisisvissimsssssiiinsssssiussiaaisesssssispapsemsnonss 101
20.03 Safety EQUIPMENL ......coerrrimrmimresrneereereerseesee e 101

Item 11.

77




SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

CELL PHONE ALLOWANCES

21.01 PUMPOSE ..oorrecriiinieitniinic e s smn s e bssn st s smaa s b

21.02 Cell PRONES ...ccviiiiiiieiiec e cis st ssne s eneesbasnnssans
Cellular Telephone Authorization Form ..o,

PROCUREMENT CARD PROGRAM
22.01 PUMPOSE ..ottt iiascirasiassas s s be s sb s
22.02 Roles and Responsibilities............cccconmiii i
22.03 Application and Card Issuance Process ...........ccccevnaninnn
22.04 SECUMLY .....evvie e eies st e e
22.05 Transaction Dollar Limits and Excluded Items..................
22.06 Use of Card and Transaction Records.............cccooeciiiiii
22.07 Reconciliation of Charges........cccceveviviirieieciiiiiiiiiniiinnins
22.08 Program Violations ............ccceevveeeinniciiiniciiciisieesesnnis
Application/Enrollment and Account Change Form ..........
Cardholder Agreement FOrm .........ccccciiviimiinemeninresanensnnes
Missing P-Card Receipt FOrmM........ccoccciiiiiiiiiinnieicnncnes
Written Statement for Unallowable Purchase Form..........

CASH RECEIPTS
23.07 INTrOTUCHION .ceeeeeiceeeiiscreenerrsunneseesseabnseaeasessnrsssesesscasiss
23.02 PrOCEAUIE ..oceeeeeeeiiemreresrerrsessrseenseeesesesssnsnsssnsnansnsannnnnnsnsasass

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
24.01 INtroduction.....ccunimavisim. it s isoensss
24.02 ProCEAUIE ....covevvveeceviiivsnesnransssessnsmsssssssaasssssssassessnssanisnesaens

PAYROLL

25.01 INtrodUCHION .....ceviieeiieieieirieeeseeescssssssseasras s b ee s e snaanaans
25.02 Department Responsibilities............cciini
25.03 Financial Services Responsibilities.............cccccoveiiiinnnecnnn

LOANS
26.01 Economic Development Loans..........ccccccceeneee e
26.02 CEBA LOANS .......cccicimisimininivmessismeismsansrsssnsasivsiinnasasannnsisnsns

Tax Increment Financing (TIF) POLICIES

27.01 PUMPOSE cvuscrsmssimissiastisssspsinsonssesossnsnasyssnessassonsynsnsmrasapssns
27.02 Tax Increment Financing ...........cccoriiiiciiinnnnsennnnsnssessinnes
27.03 Tax Increment Financing Incentives ..........cccocoeiiicciinn.
27.04 Incentive Negotiations .........ccoceeeeeeniiiccciiiiiiiiiinncinin.

OUTSIDE AGENCY FUNDING
2B.01 PUIPOSE iuiiiiesisssivsssasassmssssssossysnssssssnsstpsssnsassmmnessanassassssnnsse
28.02 Application Procedure..........ooceerveeeeeieiiiinnnssisscssnnennens

Item 11.

78




SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

29

30

31

28.03 FUNMING SOUICES.....ccicvrmmmrmmrsmmsrmrsimemsueesnsennsesnnasnssssasasasaes 135
DEBT MANAGEMENT

29.01 PUMPOSE ..coeiiieiirieriirieciceiss s esae s s bbb et 137
29.02 DefinitioNs......... it aasiisiesia i 137
29.03 Debt Planning Guidelines ...........ooeiioiiiciiiniiiiniiniienenn 137
29.04 Debt Administration PoliCies.........cc.covvrrrmriiriricniiiiiiinenn 139
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

30.01 PUIPOSE ...ccecerersnisasissassnsisssissasansssanansassssssamsmssisvhaminiissiaiians 149
30.02 Background .............ccciciiiiiiminmnnnmsnesssss e 149
30.03 Obligations Subject to the Rule ... 149
30.04 DefiNItiONS.....ovieveeeceirerieecserees e essns e siar s s s esn e s snnassne s 149
30.05 Disclosure Coordinator ............oevveereermereeiiisiisiiririninnesinns 150
30.06 ResponSibilities..........ccovvrverrmeerernicce e 150
30.07 Review and Approval of Official Statements................... 151
30.08 Submissions of Official Statements .............cccccccoviiiies 152
30.09 Annual Report Filings Overview .........cc.cceeeeeeriniiinnninennes 152
30.10 Disclosure of Listed Events .........c..ocoiiiiivneciniinieee 153
30.11 Documents to be Retained ...........cccoeeeiiiiiiiiinnniienaes 154
30.12 Education and Training..........cccvvmrinememssinnsinnnncenssiicsiiens 154
30.13 Public Statements Regarding Financial Information.......... 154
Exhibit A — Listed EVENtS.......ccccccieieiiiiciniiininnsinnsessisvanseseesansans 156
Exhibit B — Suggested Practices in Submitting Annual Financial
Information 10 EMMAT ...t i 158

APPRAISAL OF PROPERTY AND THE ESTABLISHMENT OF
JUST COMPENSATION

31,071 PUTPOSE ..ottt 161
31.02 Appraisals or Compensation Estimates to be Utilized to
Determine the Value of Property or Property Interests Being
Involuntarily Acquired for City Projects ... 161
31.03 Establishment of Fair Market Value for Property Interests
Being Involuntarily Acquired for City Projects..........cc.cccnrnniis 162
31.04 Release of Appraisals, Compensation Estimate, or Appraisal
INFOrMALION .........eoveriuveemeisisiessissinnsssnsnarssssssnnssonsnesssssnpnsersanpnsssnans 163

Item 11.

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 1.5", Tab stops:
1", Left + 1.5, Left + 6.5", Right,Leader: ...

79




SECTION 1

RESOLUTION NO.

Item 11.

80




Item 11.

SECTION 2

INTRODUCTION

This accounting procedures and policies and purchasing manual is a description and
explanation of procedures that the departments in the City of Cedar Falls government
must follow in the procurement of supplies and contractual services, and accounting for
the purchases. Although primarily a manual of instruction to employees in ordering
departments, it also includes the procedures and responsibilities of the Financial
Services Division and explains purchasing policy and the relationships of the Financial
Services Division and requesting departments. It also explains the accounting
procedures performed by the Financial Services Division.

The objective of coordinated purchasing between departments is the procurement of
supplies and contractual services at the lowest possible cost consistent with the quality
needed to meet the required standards. It involves both the using department and
Financial Services personnel and requires their complete cooperation.

The goal of this manual is to assist using departments in the City's procurement
process, and ensure that sound business judgement is utilized in all procurement
transactions and that goods and services are obtained efficiently and economically and
in compliance with applicable federal and state laws and to ensure that all procurement
transactions will be conducted in a manner that provides full and open competition.

It is essential for all concerned to have a clear definition and understanding of the aims
and purposes of this manual. The purpose of this manual is to point out City policies
with respect to purchasing and accounting, and to serve as a guide for consistent
purchasing and accounting operations. The policies and procedures outlined are always
in conformity with the City’s ordinances and resolutions.

Requests and suggestions for changes to this manual may be submitted to the
Financial Services Division by Department Directors at any time. When it appears that
a proposed change may be inconsistent with state law or local ordinance, the matter
shall be submitted to the City Attorney for opinion. All changes in this manual shall be
approved by City Council resolution to be effective. When changes are implemented,
new pages covering such changes will be sent to all recipients of the manual. Those
who have copies shall keep them up to date by replacing the old pages with the change
supplements.

81




Item 11.

SECTION 3

ORGANIZATION AND AUTHORITY

3.01 ORGANIZATION:

The Financial Services Division is organized and maintained as a division of the
Finance & Business Operations Department and is under the direction of the
Director of Finance & Business Operations and managed by the Controller/City
Treasurer. In the absence of the Controller/City Treasurer, the Director of
Finance & Business Operations, or his/her designee, shall act as Controller/City
Treasurer under the terms of this manual.

82




Item 11.

Isieads
uo1oNpPold 03pIA

Josinedng
uonaNpold O3pIA

|

]

83

Josinadng
SUOIIUNWILLIODDIB ] |-
AL ®lge)
sjuepually  |— | 'Yyos L —
Bunjied welsAg oju|
sun]-\ed swi]-ued
welsissy — ueisissy - | 'yos L i sw|L-Hed
SAEsIuIWLpY SAjjelIsIuILIpY wo)pAs "ojuj 38D Tii
|eloueulq
swij-\ed
juejsissy — uejsissy — s -yed Il "yosL — swi]-yed
ONJBJISIUILPY aAeJISIuIWPY 1slieoadg = WeISAS "o WMo -
HH [eloueul
ejsissy - elsissy -
uepeiqr m aARessiuIWpY AjRLSIUILIPY Isyeroeds — 1s|ieroads — He|0 —
Joneg HH voddngpioman [eoueu| 4
uejsissy - juelsissy =
ueyeiqn i SAEISIILPY OAJRJISIUILPY 1sileoads — awi | -yed — ueIuYd3 | -
Jolusg yH Jsubisaq owydeln HH/oAed
Josinedng Josinadng JoJeulploo?) b= — =
— juejsissy SAljelSIUIWPY Bupjied ‘uiwpy Ainb3 1shleuy S|O JUEUNO2DY
aAesisiulwpy AJeqr] T T
|
$80UN0S3Y UBWNH SLWI9)SAS UofeLwIo| Jainseal] Al
Jopaig Aelqn 3910 Ao Rsulony AuD Jabeuepy labeuepy J9jj04ju0D)
| | | ] | ]
auwl | -Jed

uenIuyoa | [eloueuld

suoneiedQ ssauisng %
@oueuid Jo Joyaig

suoneladQ ssauisng @ aoueul

emo| ‘s|jed Jepa) jo Au9




Item 11.

3.02 AUTHORITY AND DUTIES:

1. The Department of Finance & Business Operations is empowered by Ordinance
No. 2825 to function as the City purchasing, budgeting and financial authority.
Under this authority, it is the responsibility of the Department to ensure that
all purchases comply with the policies established by the City Council.

Specifically, Ordinance No.2825 prescribes that the Department of Finance &
Business Operations function as the City's purchasing agent for all purchases
made by the City. All City Departments shall furnish the Finance & Business
Operations Department with purchase specifications, bids or other information
deemed helpful to the purchasing agent making the final purchase.

2. Afull-fledged purchase order system is not currently cost-effective due to
limited staffing. The following set of procedures is established to ensure that
the requested purchase is budgeted, quotes have been received, and
mayoral and City Council approval granted when necessary prior to purchase
or contract acceptance.

3. A City Department making a purchase over $10,000.00 in value not associated
with a larger project which has been previously endorsed by City Council through
the budget, CIP, or vehicle replacement process, shall submit a requisition for
purchase to the Financial Services Division for evaluation.

The Department of Finance & Business Operations shall determine whether
appropriate quotation or bid procedures were conducted by the requesting
department, determine if there are sufficient funds to make the requested
purchase and the appropriateness of the purchase according to State law
and the City ordinances.

4. Using Agencies: Except as provided herein (refer to Sections 7 and 10) it
shall be unlawful for any City officer or employee to order the purchase of any
supplies or make any contract in excess of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00)
until approval has been obtained from the Department of Finance & Business
Operations, and any purchase order or contract made contrary to the provisions
hereof may be disapproved by the City, and the City shall not be bound thereby.

84




Item 11.

5. Itis the City Council's responsibility to approve all contracts entered into by the
City. The approved contracts shall be signed by the Mayor and City Clerk.
However, contracts that are a continuation of current services and do not change
the terms of the contract, other than the service period, may be signed by the
Department Director responsible for that service, unless otherwise provided for in
this manual. Examples of these types of contracts may be insurance renewals,
benefit administration, and professional services. If the monetary terms of the
contract change, the contract shall be approved by the City Council unless
special circumstances apply. In that case, staff shall notify City Council members
of the change. If a majority of Council members desire that the contract be
reviewed, they may request it to be placed on the next City Council agenda.

85




Item 11.

SECTION 4

RELATIONSHIP OF FINANCIAL SERVICES TO CITY DEPARTMENTS
IN THE PURCHASING PROCESS

4.01 COOPERATIVE RELATIONSHIP:

The Financial Services Division is a service and support agency for all other
departments of the City, and to gain maximum efficiency and economy requires
the cooperation of all departments. All personnel involved in procuring supplies
and services, whether in the Financial Services Division or in the requesting
department, must have a thorough understanding of these procedures. It is
recommended that new employees, such as Department Directors, Division
Managers, and supervisors receive, as part of their orientation, instructions on
purchasing procedures.

4.02 FINANCIAL SERVICES DIVISION RESPONSIBILITIES:

1.

2.

The Financial Services Division shall receive requisitions for purchases of
non-budgeted items over $10,000.00 from the Departments and approve
requisition for purchase based on the following criteria:

a. The item is an appropriate purchase for a municipality to make.

b. The purchasing department has the money remaining in the budget to
make the purchase.

c. The appropriate quotation or bid procedures were conducted by the
requesting department.

Financial Services shall process requisitions in a timely manner.

4,03 DEPARTMENTS' RESPONSIBILITIES:

1.

Follow appropriate quotation or bid procedures as described in Section 11 of
this manual.

Requesting Departments shall provide full and accurate descriptions of
requested items, and work with the Financial Services Division in the
preparation of requisitions.

Departments/Division should strive to be good stewards of public funds by
obtaining the "best value” for the City, and provide a process based on “best
practice” using market knowledge, innovation and efficiency.

86




4.04

Item 11.

After the Financial Services Division approves the requisition,
the requesting department shall contact the vendor and make the purchase.

Departments shall plan in advance to avoid unnecessary rush requests or
acquisition of duplicative items.

Departments shall communicate with the Financial Services Division, either
orally or in writing, the results of purchases, which are unfavorable. Specific
problems should be documented in writing. This includes both product and
vendor performance.

Provide copies of all bids to the Financial Services Division for all purchases
made. This is applicable to all purchases that are made and bids are received,
excluding contracts that have gone through the formal bid process through the
City Council.

PURCHASE ORDERS:

Even though a purchase order system is not utilized by the City, occasionally
purchase orders are necessary. Purchase orders are computer-generated forms
and are sequentially numbered. The Financial Services Division maintains the
purchase order file and is the only division with access to the file.

A Purchase Order is issued to a vendor by the Financial Services Division only
when required by the vendor. In that case, the requesting department must
contact the Controller/City Treasurer or Director of Finance & Business
Operations to request a purchase order stating the amount, vendor name, vendor
address, quantity, and shipping address. The purchase order is then used as the
order document. The Financial Services Division retains a copy of all open
Purchase Orders.

4.05 ELEMENT AND OBJECT NUMBER:

The City shall use a system of element and object or "line-item” account
numbers. The purpose of these numbers is to provide an accounting basis upon
which expenditures can be classified and monitored, as well as to provide a
means for forecasting and budgeting future expenditures.

. It shall be the responsibility of the Financial Services Division to maintain all

element and object numbers. It shall be the responsibility of the Financial
Services Division to determine and assign the most appropriate element and
object number for each item or service purchased.

Element and object numbers are divided into five (5) groupings, each of
which contains a discreet category or class of line-item expenditures. These
groupings are as follows:

87




Item 11.

a. Transfers (5000 series): This element includes all transfers. This series is
generally reserved for Financial Services Division use only and should not
be used by operating departments without Financial Services
authorization.

b. Personal Services (6000 series): This element includes all
expenditures related to the salaries, wages, and fringe benefits of City
employees. This series is reserved for payroll expenses only.

c. Commodities (7000 series): This element represents the various
materials, parts, and supplies (i.e. tangible goods) used for the general
and continuing operations of the City. ltems purchased as commodities
are never capitalized, and generally have a short life expectancy and
low unit cost.

d. Services and Charges (8000 series): This element includes all work
and services performed for the City by others. These include (by order
of most common occurrence):

1) Services performed by outside individuals, businesses and
organizations.

2) Services performed by City departments for other City
departments.

e. Capital Outlay (9000) series): This element represents items, either
original or replacement, which are of a significant value and which have
a usefu! life expectancy extending beyond one (1) year, "Significant
Value" is defined as an item or an aggregate of related units, the total
cost of which is $5,000.00 or more.

4.06 PROJECT NUMBER:

The City shall use a system of project numbers and payroll task codes. The
purpose of these numbers is to provide an efficient tracking system of all costs
associated with a project or a payroll task. This will aid in the grant
reimbursement process and provide documentation to departments on time
spent on various services of the City. It will be the responsibility of the Financial
Service Division to determine and assign the most appropriate project number or
payroll task code.

88




4.07 SIGNATURES:

1. Department directors shall assign who is responsible for approving and signing
requests for each division within the department.

2. The manager or supervisor who is authorized to approve requests should have

authorization from a department director if making a request for himself/herself.

4.08 PURCHASING PROCESS OVERVIEW:

Item 11.

Purchasing Flow Diagram Purchasing Flow Diagram
(Purchases under $10,000) (Purchases over $10,000)
Request by Regquest by
Department/Division Department/Division
Approval by Approval by

Department Director Department of Finance
or Designee & Business Operations
Purchase Approval by
Made Department Director
or Desiinee
Invoice Purchase
Processed Made
Approval by Invoice
City Council Processed
Approval by
City Council

89




SECTION S

SPECIFICATIONS

5.01 DEFINITION:

Specifications are a detailed and exact statement of the requested material and/or

service. Specifications must be written in such a manner as to describe the

physical, functional, or performance characteristics of the material and/or service

requested.

5.02 REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIFICATIONS:

Regardless of the type of specification used, certain guidelines must be followed in

order to achieve the required end result.

1.

Specifications must clearly state the minimum requirements of the requested
materials and/or services.

The requirements must allow for competitive bidding except in cases of sole-
source requests.

Specifications shall include evaluation criteria including provisions for
consideration of materials and/or services that exceed the minimum criteria.

5.03 TYPES OF SPECIFICATIONS:

There are five (5) basic types of specifications used:

1.

Brand Name or Equal Specifications: This type of specification describes a
commodity, and states a manufacturer and catalog number, which meets the
specifications and has been determined as acceptable. Approval of another
manufacturer and catalog number will be given if the alternate can be proved
equal to the item named in the specification. Alternate "equal” will be
evaluated by the Financial Services Division and the requesting department
to determine acceptability and/or equivalency.

2. Specifications for Common Use Items: This type of detailed specification lists

all physical, functional and performance requirements. These commodities
are normally not of a technical nature, and an item meeting the requirements
as stated would be acceptable.

Brand Name Only Specifications: This type of specification describes a
commodity, and states a manufacturer and catalog number. This type of
specification calls for a highly technical commadity for which there is no
acceptable equivalent.

-

Item 11.

[Formatted: Indent; Left: 0.25"

90




4.

Item 11.

Design Specification: This type of specification states the requirements for
material to be used, and a detailed description of the required end result.
This type of specification is used for items and/or projects which are not
readily available on the open market, but which are built-to-suit according to
the specifications.

Performance Specifications: This type of specification emphasizes the
functional or performance criteria. Physical description and design
requirements are limited. The bidder's response is usually in the form of
proposal. It is normally the bidder's option to determine the item and/or
service required to achieve the required end result.

5.04 REQUESTING DEPARTMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES:

Specifications for commodities and/or services of a technical nature shall be
supplied by the requesting department.

1.

Specifications for motor vehicles and fleet equipment are to be submitted by
the Rublic- Werks{RarksOperations & Maintenance Manager.

Specifications for technical electrical materials and/or services are to be
supplied by the Rublic-Waerks/ParksOperations & Maintenance Manager.

Specifications for technical materials and/or services for use in the Water and
Waste Water facilities are to be supplied by the Water Reclamation Manager or
City Engineer.

Specifications for computer hardware and software are to be supplied by the
Information Systems Manager.

Specifications for building and construction projects and other public
improvement projects will be furnished by Inspection Services Manager or an
independent architect/engineer obtained by the requesting department.
Specifications for these projects will be prepared by a licensed engineer or
architect when required by the Code of lowa, or when determined to be in the
best interest of the City.

Specifications and/or descriptions for repair and maintenance work will be
furnished by the requesting department or an independent architect/engineer
obtained by the requesting department. Specifications for these projects will be
prepared by a licensed engineer or architect when required by the Code of lowa,
or when determined to be in the best interest of the City.

Statements of work for professional services will be furnished by the requesting
department or an independent architect, engineer, or other consultant.

91




8. Other specifications required from departments will be requested after receipt of
the approved Requisition for Purchase.

Item 11.

92




Item 11.

SECTION 6

REQUISITIONS FOR PURCHASE FORM AND BUDGET AMENDMENT FORMS

6.01 REQUISITION FOR PURCHASE FORM:

A memo to the Financial Services Division that includes the following information
shall be submitted for the request of purchases greater than $10,000.00.

1. The request should be far enough in advance to permit the department to obtain
competitive prices, and to allow vendors sufficient time to make deliveries.

2. All items listed on the request shall be of a related nature, which would normally
be supplied by a single vendor.

3. All requests should be typed or legibly printed.
4. The following information must be included on the request:

a. Date and proper budgetary account number(s) or outside billing information.
if more than one account number is involved, then a simple breakdown by
percentage or item should also be given.

b. The quantity of each item requested.

c. A clear description of the item desired as to size, color, type, grade, etc. If
the purchase is of a technical nature, specifications should accompany the
requisition (see section 5). If the item cannot be described, except with a
great amount of detail, a brief description should be given, followed by the
trade name and model of an acceptable item, "or equal.”

d. The estimated UNIT PRICE of the item.

e. Delivery date required. If the delivery date has been quoted by the vendor, or
if you know an estimated delivery time, this date should be shown.

f. Other special instructions.
g. Delivery point (shipping address) and person to be notified.

h. The name(s) and address(es) of possible or proposed vendors of the
requested items or services.

i. Department and signature(s). All requests must be signed or countersigned
by the department head or his/her designee.

93




5. Routing: All requests shall be sent by the initiating department to the Financial
Services Division for processing. Requests shall be processed as expeditiously
as possible.

a. In processing departmental requests, the Financial Services Division shall
verify the completeness and correctness of the following areas:

1) Account number(s) assigned.
2) Availability of funds.
3) Authorization signatures.
4) Appropriateness of purchases.
b. An Financial Clerk in the Financial Services Division, or the Controller/City
Treasurer, will contact the requesting department and attempt to resolve

questions concerning any of the following:

1) Assignment of incorrect account number(s) including element and
object numbers.

2) Lack of funds in the indicated account number(s).
3) Lack of authorized signature.
4) lllegal or inappropriate purchase proposed.
c. Ifthe criteria as stated in Section 6.01 5a are not met, the request may be
returned by the Financial Services Division to the head of the originating

department with an explanation of the reason for disapproval.

d. Controller/City Treasurer or Director of Finance & Business Operations shall
sign and date the request. The requesting department shall retain a copy for
their files.

6. Receiving: The requesting department shall instruct the vendor to deliver the
merchandise to their specific location. Upon receipt of the merchandise, the
receiving department shall document the following:

a. Date the merchandise was received.

b. Number of pieces received.

c. Signature of the individual who checked in the merchandise.

Item 11.

94




Item 11.

d. Indicate whether the merchandise complied with the order.

e. For all budgeted purchases and other purchases of less than $10,000.00
information regarding receipt of item should be noted on the invoice.

6.02 BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST:

Annually mid-year operations or capital budget adjustments may be necessary due
to unforeseen or unusual circumstances. The budget amendment request ensures
that the City's central financial authority coordinates adjustments through a formal
authorization process. This ensures that the City Council's legislative intent is
adhered to or amendments are made upon recommendation of the Department of
Finance & Business Operations.

1.

All Departments are mandated by Federal, State, and local laws to adhere to
the spending limitations enacted by the City Council in the form of the City's
spending resolutions. This resolution addresses all operation, personnel, and
capital expenditures.

Periodically unforeseen or unusual circumstances will necessitate an
adjustment in the amount of funds appropriated to a particular capital project,
program, fund, Department, Division, budgetary series or series line item.
Over-expenditure will not be permitted unless the respective spending entity
has first received written approval from the Department of Finance & Business
Operations. (The City's financial computer system is automatically set to
display warning messages to key entry personnel who reject any bill
submitted for payment, which overspends appropriated amounts.)

Depending on the type and amount of over-expenditure, the Department will
determine the type of corrective action necessary to comply with the intent of
the City Council and State laws. The course of action will be clearly outlined

by the Department of Finance & Business Operations through the authorization
or rejection of the expense, in writing, to the requesting entity.

Unauthorized over-expenditure by any entity will be noted. Entities or individuals
which have violated this policy or the City Council's spending resolution may be
cited or prosecuted as mandated by chapter 8.38 of State Code and sections 1-8
and-2-7of City Code.

Generally, line items will be allowed to be over or under-expended by minor
amounts as determined acceptable by the Controller/City Treasurer.

In the administration of the budget, it is ordinarily found that numerous
circumstances arise which make adjustments in the adopted budget desirable.

95




Item 11.

a. The most frequent method of adjustment of the budget during the
budget year is through transfers of appropriations by action of the (1)
department head, (2) the Department of Finance & Business Operations, (3)
Mayor, and (4) City Council.

There are legal requirements relating to transfer of appropriations in lowa.

Legal requirements specifically designate the types of modification, which
require council action (supplemental appropriations). Transfers, which may
be effected with administrative action, are limited by lowa law to
appropriation transfers within programs controlled by internal auditing.
Provisions for informal (administrative) amendments of budget
appropriations and a transfer procedure allowing administrative action is
controlled by administrative policy.

All modifications of budget appropriations require council action if the
transfer is between programs, funds or departments, while transfers between
line-items or major objects of expense within a department can be made by
documented administrative action in compliance with administrative policy.

b. A supplemental appropriation is distinguished from a transfer appropriation
by the fact that the supplemental appropriation may be made without
providing for a corresponding diminution of an appropriation already made to
some other operating unit or class of expense. A supplemental appropriation
acts to increase not only the spending authorization of the unit to which it is
made but also to increase the total of all authorizations for the budget year.

Restrictions of state law limit the grand total of appropriations, which can be
made for a budget year to the total amount in the original budget approved
for the year. Authority does exist for appropriations to meet emergencies not
foreseeable at the time of the adoption of the budget and certain types of
grants-in-aid, gifts, or certain kinds of receipts are sufficient justification for
permitting the original grand total to be exceeded.

The City of Cedar Falls has the broad authority to make supplemental
appropriations during the course of the budget year provided that either: (1)
surplus from prior years becomes available, or (2) revenue for the budget
year is found to be exceeding the budgeted revenue in amounts sufficient to
finance the supplemental appropriations.

The manner of implementing supplemental appropriations follows the same
basic procedure as initial budget approval including public hearings and City
Council endorsement.

6. There are only a few circumstances in which administrative transfers of
appropriations are desirable. lllustrative of these are:

96




a. Distribution of appropriations to achieve a specific purpose when it has not
been feasible to make such distribution at the time of the adoption of the
budget. Thus, if a general salary adjustment is contemplated, time may not
permit prior determination of the specific amount required by each budget
unit. Or, if appropriations are made under which the Financial Services
Division may make certain selected pay adjustments in the course of the
year to facilitate critical recruitment or meet serious inequities, executive
discretion is indicated as the most desirable method.

b. Transfers of appropriations to accompany the transfer of functions between
departments or budget units. In the course of a budget year it may be
desirable to transfer a function from one unit of the government to another,
e.g., certain data processing operations or the performance of certain
inspection functions. If the executive has the authority to make such
transfers of functions, they should logically also have the power to transfer
the appropriations, which pertain to their performance.

Except for transfers made by executive order to achieve one of the foregoing
kinds of purposes, both transfers and supplemental appropriations should be
subjected to rigorous review by both the executive and legislative branches
of the government. This is especially true in the case of transfers or
supplemental appropriations, which provide the basis for a permanent
modification in the level of expenditures or services.

7. In the review and approval of such appropriations, a full analysis of the work
program and fiscal impact of the proposed actions for both the current budget
year and for succeeding budget years is made. Moreover, departments are put to
a much heavier proof of the need for such changes in appropriations than in the
regular budget - primarily to discourage the misuse of the adjustment route when
good planning would have resulted in presentation of the request in the course of
regular budget preparation.

a. Atthe time a department originates a request for either a budget transfer
of the type indicated or a supplemental appropriation, it is required to
disclose whether this matter was covered in the regular budget requests
for the present or any recent year. It is required to justify why conditions
now warrant the item when it was not approved in the course of regular
budget consideration.

b. The request must be clearly set forth whether the request is for a
nonrecurring purpose, €.g., replacement of a roof, or for a purpose that
is likely to be recurring.

c. |fthe purpose for which the new authorization is sought is not in the
original budget requests, a detailed explanation is required as to why it

Item 11.

97




Item 11.

was omitted earlier but now becomes of such pressing importance that it
cannot go over until the next budget year. The department proposing
the supplemental appropriation or transfer must complete a budget
amendment request.

8. No expenditure of funds will be permitted unless an unencumbered balance
exists in the appropriation and the allotment against which the expenditure is
proposed to be made. The information to be provided on the request includes:

a. Anindication of whether or not this item was included in the department's
original budget request.

b. Identification of the item as a recurring or nonrecurring expenditure.
¢. Anindication of the type of adjustment requested.

d. The account number and account title from which the adjustment is to be
taken and the amount of the adjustment.

e. Certification from the Financial Services Division of the unencumbered
balance in each account before the adjustment.

f. The account number and account title to which the adjustment is to be added
and the amount of the adjustment.

g. Certification from the Financial Services Division of the unencumbered
balance in each account after the adjustment.

h. An explanation of the reasons for the adjustment request.

98




Item 11.

SECTION 7

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

7.01 INTRODUCTION:

It is the responsibility of the Department of Finance & Business Operations to ensure
that all bills that are paid comply with the policies established by the City Council. All
bills against the City must be endorsed by the City Council, and it is the
responsibility of the Department of Finance & Business Operations to ensure the
accuracy of the bill information presented to the Council for approval.

7.02 PROCEDURE:

1. When preparing a bill for payment, the purchasing department has the
responsibility to perform the following procedures.

a. Determine that the invoice is addressed to the City of Cedar Falls.
b. Compare the invoice to the merchandise to determine if the merchandise
was received and that the City is paying the correct amount for what was

received.

c. Take all available discounts and deduct taxes that were added to the invoice
(if applicable).

d. Compare prices on the invoices to contract amounts (if applicable).

e. Enter the invoice data into the financial system ensuring that the following
data is entered correctly:

1) Vendor Name.

2) Vendor Number.

3) Invoice Number.

4) Invoice Date.

5) Total amount to be paid.
6) Description of purchase.

7) Account number or numbers from which payment should be made. If
payment is to be made from more than one account number, each

99




Item 11.

account and the appropriate amount to be charged must be listed.
8) Project number of appropriate project to be charged.
Obtain proper approval from the Department Director or his designee.
Perform a math check.

Capital asset tag number if the invoice is for an equipment item of greater
than $5,000.00 and with a life in excess of one year; or land, building, or
infrastructure capital item greater than $5,000.00 and with a life in excess of
one year.

With the exception of items outlined in 7.03 4 invoices will be processed for
the next appropriate Council date unless unusual circumstances require
payment by a specified date. If it is necessary for an invoice to be issued
with a daily check, requests must be received in the Financial Services
Division one day prior to the date needed.

7.03 ROUTING:

Initiating departments shall send the entered invoice batches to the Financial
Services Division for processing.

1. In processing invoices, the Financial Services Division shall verify the
completeness and correctness of the entered invoice with particular emphasis
on the following:

a.

After the bill is received by the Financial Services Division, a Financial Clerk
has the responsibility to perform the following procedures.

1)  Determine that the invoice is addressed to the City of Cedar Falls.

2) Take all available discounts and deduct taxes that were added to the
invoice (if applicable).

3) An accurate description has been entered in the system
4) Correct dollar amounts have been entered in the system
5) Perform a math check.

6) Proper approval has been obtained.

100




Item 11.

7) Bid/Quotation form is attached to invoice if item is a capital asset for
equipment that has a value greater than $5,000 and with a life
expectancy of greater than one year.

The Controller/City Treasurer or Director of Finance & Business Operations
is responsible for the following duties:
1)  Check for the appropriateness of the purchase.

2) Determine whether the purchasing department has the money in their
budget for the purchase.

3) Determine if the purchase was budgeted.

4) Check the capital asset number.

5) Verify the account number.

6) Review the invoice batch for proper approval.
7) Spot check the following:

(a) Tax was not paid and all discounts were taken.

(b) The invoice was addressed to the City. .  Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.21"

(c) Perform a math check.

2. After approval for payment, a check group is created by the Financial Clerk.

a. A list of the checks goes to Council for approval and must be signed by a
minimum of three Council members.

b. After Council approval is received, a Financial Clerk prints the checks with
the appropriate signatures.

1) The blank check stock is kept in a locked cabinet in the vault.

2) Checks cannot be printed or signed until the Financial Clerk has signed
onto the laser check software.

3) The Controller/City Treasurer or his/her designee reviews the check
register disbursement total and compares this to the list of checks
approved by the Council, assuring these amounts match.

c. Accounts Payable. - { Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.56", Tab stops:

| Notat 0.5"

101




1)  When an invoice is entered into the computer, it is automatically
charged to the appropriate account and is reflected on the financial
statements.

2) Atthe end of the fiscal year, the Controller/City Treasurer reviews all
invoices and determines which fiscal year the item was received or
service was performed. The invoices are then coded to be reflected in
the correct fiscal year.

3. The criteria for approval and routing of disapproved Payment Requests are the
same as outlined in Section 6.01 5c.

The use of daily checks, which are preapproved items, shall be limited to the

following character and object accounts:

a.

b.

Personal Services. For Financial Services use only.
Employee reimbursements, including but not limited to travel and training.
Postage.

Recording fees.

Refunds for cancelled programs.

Library invoices.

Housing assistance payments.

Interfund transfers.

Easements and right-of-way.

Landfill payment.

Debt Service payments.

Phone and utility payments.

Demolition contract payments.

CDBG - Housing rehab payments.

Items which have already been approved by the City Council, including but
not limited to liability claims.

Claim settlements less than $25,000, with approval of Risk Management

Item 11.

102




Item 11.

Committee. (see Administrative Policy No. 3)
g. Worker compensation payments.

7.04 APPROVAL.

As described in Section 3.02 3, a city department making a purchase over
$10,000.00 in value which is not associated with a larger project which has been
previously endorsed shall submit the request to the Director of Finance & Business
Operations or his duly authorized representative for evaluation. Listed below are
examples of items over $10,000.00, which may be purchased without the pre-
authorization of Finance & Business Operations. They include:

1.

Capital Projects: Approval of individual bills for labor, materials and supplies is
not required for capital projects which have been approved by the City Council in
the Capital Improvements Program, operating budget, and are programmed by
the Department of Finance & Business Operations in the City's Cash
Management schedule.

Authorizations to proceed with any capital projects must be secured from the
Department of Finance & Business Operations, which will advise the project-
managing department, whether bids or quotes are required and confirm the
timing for release of funds to complete the project. This authorization should be
received prior to the occurrence of any bill for the capital project.

All bills related to a specific capital project should be labeled as such when the
invoices are submitted to the Department of Finance & Business Operations for
approval and payment.

Operating supplies and services: Items purchased under supply contract, such
as linens, fuel, utilities, telephone, office supplies, professional services, or
uniforms may be purchased at any time by a department, assuming the
purchases comply with purchases from an authorized contractor.

In-house billings and grant payments: Items such as printing, vehicle repair,
health insurance, life insurance, long term disability insurance, F.I.C.A.,
I.P.E.R.S., Workers' Compensation benefits., postage, Section 8
reimbursements, and Rental Rehab. Grants may be authorized and forwarded for
payment to the Department of Finance & Business Operations without pre-
authorization.

. Dues, Memberships & Travel: All dues, memberships, and travel which have

been pre-approved by the MayerCity Administrator, in compliance with other
administrative
policies, need not have a second authorization if the expense is over $10,000

103




Item 11.

in value.

5. Repairs and Maintenance Supplies: Items required for the repair and
maintenance of City equipment, buildings, and structures, such as lumber,
vehicle parts, computer parts, hardware, equipment rentals, and safety
supplies are not subject to the $10,000.00 requirement.

6. Emergency/Rapid need purchases: In compliance with Ordinance No.2825, a
department may make a purchase over $200.00 for an emergency or rapid need
purchase, if it is deemed necessary by the Controller/City Treasurer, and the
Controller/City Treasurer can first obtain approval of two members of the City
Council to approve the purchase.

In summary, the major items which are subject to pre-authorization by the Finance &
Business Operations Department will normally occur in each department's 9000
series, Capital Operating Budgets. Typically, these will include capital items such as
equipment and vehicles; however, vehicle purchases that have been programmed
as a part of the City's Cash Management Plan, timed for purchase, and have
obtained the proper quotations, can be placed for Council consideration without
authorization.

The procedures in Section 3.02 do not preempt or provide for the purchase of items,
which are unbudgeted. If an item is proposed to be purchased, which is unbudgeted,
it is necessary to go through the procedures outlined in Section 3.02, which
mandates Appropriations Resolution Compliance. This policy mandates that an
amendment form be filed by the requesting department with the Department of
Finance & Business Operations for the appropriate approvals to make budgetary
adjustments or transfers as may be required.

7.05 ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFERS (EFT):

Electronic Funds Transfers are used to make payments for debt service, retirement
plans, insurance claims, sales tax payments, merchant account point of sale fees,
miscellaneous bank fees, and payroll tax payments.

1. Financial Services Responsibilities

a. An Financial Clerk compiles the necessary data to make the Electronic funds
transfer, and receives approval from the Controller/City Treasurer or his/her
designee for all EFT transfers.

b. The Controller/City Treasurer or his/her designee initiates the transfer by
entering the information into the computer.

c. The Controller/City Treasurer or his/her designee confirms and approves the
information to be transferred.

104




7.06

Item 11.

d. Maximum amounts have been established for all types of electronic funds
transfers. The employees are unable to make transfers in excess of the
maximum limits.

. Bank's Responsibilities

a. Receive the information from the City.
b. Resolve any questions that arise.
c. Send the payment to the correct agency by the effective date.

BANK RECONCILIATIONS:

. The bank delivers the bank statements to the City by the fifth working day of the

month.

A Financial Clerk who does not otherwise perform accounts payable or accounts
receivable transactions evaluates the statements and investigates any
discrepancies between the City's books and the bank statements, such as:

a. Any revenues that were deposited directly into the bank, without notification
in Financial Services.

b. Incorrect service charges.

The City's financial records are then reconciled with the bank statement by the
Financial Clerk under the direction of the Controller/City Treasurer.

7.07 ACCOUNTING FOR DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS:

1.

Principal and interest payments for general obligation bonds are made from the
Debt Service Fund. Property taxes are levied in the Debt Service Fund to make
the general obligation bond payments for principal and interest. Payments are
made by Electronic Funds Transfers described in Section 7.05.

Principal and interest payments for revenue bonds are made from the Debt
Service Fund. Transfers are made from the appropriate funds, such as Sewer
Rental, Refuse, and Hospital to make the revenue bond debt service payments.
Payments are made by E.F.T. as described in Section 7.05.

7.08 GENERAL LEDGER FINANCIAL ACTIVITY:

1.

Journal Entries: Journal entries are prepared by various Financial Services

105




personnel, approved by the Controller/City Treasurer or Director of Finance &
Business Operations, and entered by another Financial Clerk.

a.

Bank Statement: At the end of every month the Financial Clerk who prepares
the Bank Reconciliation reviews the bank statements and prepares journal
entries for any bank activity that the City has not entered into their general
ledger. Examples of these entries are:

1) Interest earned on the account.

2) Direct deposit of revenues from parking, inspection services, cultural,
aquatic, recreation, police, public records, and library.

3) Debt Service payments that are wired from the bank.
4) Federal or state funds directly deposited into bank account.

Corrections: Any errors made during the month are corrected by journal
entry or account correction. A detailed list of the monthly financial activity is
reviewed by the Controller/City Treasurer to determine the accuracy of the
list and journal entries are written to correct any errors found during that
review.

Payroll: EFT checks are written for any payments that are wired directly from
the bank. Examples of these are the state tax payment and the police and
fire retirement payments to the state retirement system.

2. Month-End Close: A Financial Clerk runs the month-end close procedure on the
computer by the 15th day of the next month.

3. Year-End Close: After it is determined that all activity for a fiscal year has been
completed, the year-end procedure is run on the computer.

4. Year-End Procedures: The Controller/City Treasurer has certain year-end
procedures to perform prior to the annual financial audit being performed. These
procedures include:

a.

b.

Balance capital assets.
Inventory observation in certain divisions.

Prepare workpapers for accounts receivables, payables, and other accrued
items in all funds.

Prepare year-end journal entries using the information from the workpapers.

Item 11.

106




e.

f.

Prepare and balance the balance sheets and income statements for all funds
of the City.

Compile the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Item 11.

107




SECTION 8

PURCHASE ORDER

8.01 PURCHASE ORDER:

A written purchase order is an offer to buy, an acceptance of an offer to sell, or a
confirmation between two or more competent parties. The Purchase Order is a
legal document and; upon acceptance by a vendor, becomes a contract.

1. ltis issued only when requested by the purchasing department. Only
Financial Services is authorized to originate this document.

2. In generating a purchase order, Financial Services must include the following

information:

a. Date originated.

b. Vendor's name, address, and vendor humber.

c. Department to receive supplies or service, with address.

d. Requisition number.

e. Quantity required.

f.  Unit (each, box, etc.).

g. Description of supplies or service.

h. Unit price(s) if applicable.

i. Quotation/Bid amount if applicable.

j. Scheduled delivery, if known.

k. Shipping instructions.

I.  Any additional information to clarify intent or needs of the City, or to
prevent possible misunderstanding.

m. Authorized signatures with date.

Item 11.

108




8.02 ROUTING

1. The Financial Services Division will be responsible for expeditiously resolving
any difficulties, which arise in processing. After approval, the purchase order will
be returned to requesting department for distribution.

2. Two (2) copies of the purchase order are distributed as follows:
a. One copy goes to the vendor as a contractual order.
b. One copy is retained by a Financial Clerk in the Financial Services Division.
8.03 SAFETY BOOTS
1. Certain Munisipal-Operations-&PregramsPublic Works and Community
Development employees are required to wear safety boots when working for the

City of Cedar Falls. The City is required by contract to pay for each pair of safety
boots in an amount set by contract.

2. The supervisors in the Municipal-Operations-&ProgramsPublic Works and
Community Development departments shall determine if an employee requires a
new pair of boots. After that determination is made, the supervisor contacts the
Financial Services Division for a purchase order.

3. The Financial Services Division issues the purchase order to the requesting
supervisor, maintaining a record of the purchase orders that have been issued.

4. The employee uses the purchase order to purchase boots from pre-approved
vendors.

5. The employee is responsible for paying the vendor the amount in excess of the
amount stated in the union contract.

6. The vendor sends the bills and copies of the purchase orders to the Financial
Services Division for payment.

7. A Financial Clerk checks the purchase orders for accuracy and a check is issued
following the procedures in Section 7.02.

Item 11.

109




Item 11.

City of Cedar Falls P.O. Number
220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

319-268-5108

319-268-5126 (fax)

PURCHASE ORDER
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
Order From: Ship To:
Date:
Quantity Description Price

Sales Tax Exempt: FID# 42-6004332

Total $ 3

Pigase show lhis order number on ail frnwniens,
comrespondoneca ,and packages,

Depariment:
Director of Finance & Business Operations

City of Cedar Falls Purchase Order

110




Item 11.

SECTION 9

BLANKET CONTRACTS

9.01 DEFINITION:

Blanket Contracts shall be awarded on the basis of normal quotation procedures as
described in Section 11 when materials and/or services can be specified and are
determined to be of a competitive nature. A Blanket Contract is an order used for
either of the following types of purchases:

1. Routine purchases of materials and/or services of a relatively minor nature,
necessary for the day-to-day operation of the City, which are purchased on a
regular basis. This would include office supplies, uniforms, paper products, linen
services, and pest control.

2. Specific materials and/or services to be purchased over a specified period of
time. This would include gasoline, gravel, fuel, sand, salt, lease payments, etc.
These Blanket Contracts are normally awarded as a result of telephone
quotations or written competitive quotes.

3. Insurance Requirements: Proof of insurance may be required prior to issuance of
a Blanket contract for services to be performed on City property. The amount of
coverage required shall be based on risk factor and determined by the City’s Risk
Management Committee.

9.02 AREAS OF RESPONSIBILITY:

1. Financial Services.

a. ldentify the need to have a blanket contract through examination of past
purchasing records.

b. Solicit quotes from qualified local suppliers if there is more than one
accessible supplier.

c. Select vendor by evaluating the quality of product, quality of service, and
cost.

d. Inform the using departments which vendor was chosen.

e. Process the vendor invoice for payment.

111




Item 11.

f. Resolve problems that arise between vendors and using departments.

g. Maintain a Blanket Contract file for each current contract. Along with the
contract, this file shall contain any documents related to the contract.

2. Using Department.

a. Purchase the particular supplies from the chosen vendor only.
b. Receive the merchandise and compare to invoice and quotes.

c. Process the vendor invoice for payment.

9.03 PURCHASE AND PAYMENT:

Invoices shall be processed in the manner described in 7.01.

1.

The Financial Services Division shall verify the validity of account numbers on all
invoices and Amendment forms, and shall have the authority to approve or
disapprove the request, based on the availability of funds. A request, which has
been disapproved by the Financial Services Division, will be returned to the
requesting Department Director.

The Financial Services Division shall verify the accuracy of all account numbers
shown for expenditure on the invoice batch submitted by departments.

The Financial Services Division shall have the authority to approve or disapprove
all non-conforming expenditures against Blanket Contracts. The approval or
disapproval shall be based on the availability of funds, the accuracy of the
account number shown for expenditure, compliance of the purchase with
Purchasing Procedures and Policies, and any restriction placed on the Blanket
Contract at the time of award. An invoice disapproved by the Financial Services
Division will be returned to the originating department.

112




SECTION 10

EMERGENCY AND RAPID NEED PURCHASES

10.01 EMERGENCY PURCHASES:

1.

Definition: An emergency purchase is justified when a situation or occurrence,
which is of a serious nature, develops suddenly and unexpectedly and demands
immediate action. This is applicable only to supplies and/or services whose
immediate procurement is essential to prevent delays, which may vitally affect
the life, safety, and health of citizens, or serious loss or injury to the City.

Prior Planning: Failure to exercise reasonable diligence and foresight in
anticipating departmental requirements is not justification for using Emergency
Procedures.

Emergency Purchase During Regular Business Hours: Such purchases will
be made by the requesting department using the following procedures:

a. Notify the Controller/City Treasurer by telephone that an emergency
purchase must be made describing the situation and the purchase to be
made.

b. Competitive quotations shall be solicited where possible and deemed
appropriate by the Controller/City Treasurer. However, the purchase will be
made where available in emergency situations, with consideration of delivery
schedule a paramount consideration.

c. Ifthe purchase is less than the $25,000, the emergency purchase shall be
recorded by the Controller/City Treasurer, and shall be open to public
inspection

d. If the purchase is equal to or in excess of $25,000.00 but less than $50,000,
the Controller/City Treasurer shall forward all related documents to the
Director of Finance & Business Operations. The Director will contact the City
Administrator for approval to proceed and the documentation shall be open
to public inspection.

e. Ifthe purchase is equal to or in excess of $50,000 , the Controller/City
Treasurer shall forward all related documents to the Director Finance &
Business Operations who will forward to the City Administrator. The City
Administrator will forward to the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, or the
Administration Committee Chair for approval to proceed and the
documentation shall be open to public inspection.

Item 11.

113




4. Emergency Purchase during other than regular business hours: Emergency
purchases may be made by a Department Director during other than regular
business hours. A Division Manager may be authorized in advance by a memo
submitted by the Department Director.

a.

A written explanation of the emergency purchase shall be furnished to the
Financial Services Division no later than the following work day. Any attempt
to solicit competitive prices should be included in this statement.

If the purchase is less than $25,000.00, a record of the emergency purchase
shall be kept on file by the Controller/City Treasurer and shall be open to
public inspection.

If the purchase is equal to or in excess of $25,000.00, but less than $50,000,
the Controller/City Treasurer shall forward all related documents, including a
report from the requesting Department Director, to the Director of Finance &
Business Operations and to the City Administrator. .

If the purchase is equal to or in excess of $50,000, the Controller/City
Treasurer shall forward all related documents, including a report from the
requesting Department Director, to the Director of Finance & Business
Operations and the City Administrator for presentation to the City Council.

5. Emergency Repairs of Public Improvements: Emergency repair of public
improvements shall be in accordance with the Code of lowa.

10.02 RAPID NEED PURCHASES:

CAUTION: Rapid need requests will be closely scrutinized to prevent abuse. A rapid
need purchase is justified when the need for the requested materials and/or services
could not have been predicted. These materials and/or services must be procured in
less than the normal allotted time span in order to continue a vital service to the
community.

1. Rapid need purchase procedure:

a.

The request may be telephoned to the Financial Services Division, with, a
written explanation to follow within one (1) workday.

If the situation warrants such action, authorization for purchase may be given
by the Controller/City Treasurer, at the time of the telephone request,
provided the total expenditure will not be in excess of $25,000.00.

The requesting department shall solicit either written or telephone quotations
or bids, if deemed appropriate.

Item 11.

114




Item 11.

d. If the purchase is in excess of $25,000.00, the Department Director shall
forward all related documents to the Director of Finance & Business
Operations for presentation to the City Council. If the City Council waives the
requirement for formal bidding procedures, the requesting department shall
make the purchase based on quotations or bids received.

10.03 PAYMENT OF EMERGENCY OR RAPID NEED PURCHASES:

1.

In all situations the invoice will need to be reviewed and entered following the
procedures outlined in Section 7.

In circumstances where a check in excess of $200.00 must be written
immediately that should have Council approval, the Controller/City Treasurer
shall contact two members of the Cedar Falls City Council. After approval is
received, the Controller/City Treasurer shall attach a written statement explaining
the situation and the approvals received.

115




SECTION 11

QUOTATIONS AND BIDS

11.01 BASIS FOR QUOTATIONS OR BIDS:

When a department determines a need to purchase an item, that department will
seek a source of the requested materials and/or services.

1.

Requirements for solicitation of bids and quotations: The material and/or services
requested and approved for purchase are of significant value and/or
of a competitive nature.

Exemptions from competitive quotation and bidding procedures:

a.

Repair parts of a sole source nature shall be exempt from competitive
quotation and bidding procedures.

Specialized services shall be exempt from the competitive quotation and
bidding process, as deemed appropriate by the Director of Finance &
Business Operations except as required by State Law.

Specialized items of a technical nature shall be exempt from competitive
quotation and bidding procedures, except as required by State Law.

Utilization of State of lowa, General Services Administration (GSA), National
IPA, OMINIA Partners, US Communities, or other state or federal joint
purchasing cooperations. Competitively bid State of lowa or other state or
federal contracts available to political subdivisions may be utilized in lieu of
soliciting written bids or verbal quotation for the purchase of commodities
and services.

Special Conditions:

a.

Proof of insurance: Proof of insurance may be required for public
improvement projects, services to be performed on City property, or other
contracts for equipment or services. The amount of coverage required shall
be based on risk factors and determined by the City’'s Risk Management
Committee.

Affirmative Action compliance: The City of Cedar Falls adheres to Local,
State, and Federal Laws which require that businesses providing goods and
services to the City of Cedar Falls are Equal Opportunity Employers. Any
contract entered into by the City of Cedar Falls in accordance with this policy
ensures that disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full

Item 11.

116




Item 11.

opportunity to submit bids in response to request for bids. They will not be
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in
consideration of the contract award.

c. The responsible bid requirement focuses on the bidder, which means the bid
is submitted by a bidder who has the financial and technical ability to perform
and complete the required work. The responsive bid requirement focuses on
the bid and is a check to ensure the bidder agrees to all that is required in
the plans, specifications and other requirements of the project.

4. Unique Requirements of Government Contracts

a. All purchases funded through a State or Federal grant must follow all
additional procedures required by the grantor. All bid specifications for a
purchase that is funded through a State or a Federal grant must list all
additional specifications for the goods or services that are required by the
grantor. Any contract funded through a federal grant shall comply with 2 CFR
200.318 through 200-326 and Appendix Il to Part 200.

b. Contractors must be evaluated when bids are received on their ability to
meet State or Federal requirements. The City will not award a federally
funded contract to a party listed as debarred, suspended, or otherwise
excluded in the System for Award Management (SAM). www.sam.gov

in addition, no purchases to be covered by a grant can be made prior to the

execution of the grant agreement unless approved by the grantor.

11.02 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT (VERTICAL INFRASTRUCTURE) BIDDING
PROCEDURES:

Formal bidding procedures will be used exclusively for public improvement projects
in excess of the minimum threshold amount as determined by the State of lowa.
($139,000 1/1/19) and in accordance with Chapter 26 of the Code of lowa. A public
improvement project is defined as a building or construction work which is
contracted under the control of a governmental entity and is paid for in whole or in
part with funds of the governmental entity, including a building or improvement
constructed or operated jointly with any other public or private agency, but excluding
urban renewal demolition and low-rent housing projects, industrial aid projects
authorized under chapter 419, emergency work or repair or maintenance work
performed by employees of a governmental entity, and excluding a highway, bridge,
or culvert project, and excluding construction or repair or maintenance work
performed for a city utility under chapter 388 by its employees or performed for a
rural water district under chapter 357A by its employees. For highway, bridge, and
culvert projects please refer to section 11.03 below.

117




. A "Notice of Request for Bids" shall be posted in three separate places (as noted
below) not less than thirteen (13) nor more than forty-five (45) days before the
bid filling deadline.

e A relevant contractor plan room service with a statewide circulation

o A relevant construction lead generating service with state wide circulation

e An Internet site sponsored by either a governmental entity or a statewide
association that represents the governmental entity.

The notice shall contain the following information:
a. The time and place for filing sealed bids.

b. The time and place sealed bids will be opened and considered on behalf of
the City.

c. The general nature of the public improvement on which bids are requested.
d. In general terms when the work must be commenced and completed.

e. That each bidder shall accompany the bid with a bid security as defined in
section 26.8 and as specified by the City.

f.  Any further information, which the City deems pertinent.

. A public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract, and
estimated cost has been held in compliance with Chapter 26 of State of lowa. A
notice of the public hearing shall be published in one (1) official designated City
newspaper not less than four (4) nor more than twenty (20) days prior to the date
of the hearing.

. Preparation of contract documents will include preparation of the Notice to
Bidders as required by the Code of lowa. The notice will be furnished to the City
Clerk with the preliminary plans and specifications and the City Clerk will arrange
for the publication of the notice.

. Unsuccessful bidders shall be entitled to the return of bid bonds. A
successful bidder shall forfeit any surety required upon failure to enter into a
contract within the time span specified.

. Disposition of Bids and Bid Bonds:

a. Bids shall be opened at the time and place specified in the "Notice of
Request for Bids."

b. A Tabulation of bids received shall be made and shall be available for

Item 11.

118




Item 11.

public inspection.
c. A summary of all bids shall be retained in the Financial Services Division.

d. One (1) copy of the original offer and award form shall be forwarded to the
City Clerk after the opening of the bids.

e. The requesting department will consult with the Director of Finance &
Business Operations before the final recommendation for award is submitted
by the requesting department to the City Council if the project is not included
in the budget or capital improvements program or if the bid received is in
excess of the budgeted amount.

f. The City Council shall award all formal contracts.

g. The City Attorney shall review the standard contract to be used. If there are
modifications to the standard contract, the City Attorney will review the
contract before it is approved by Council.

h. The City Council shall approve all performance bonds for construction
contracts.

i. Following the City Council's award of contract, and approval of the
performance bond when required, the requesting department shall
award the contract.

i The responsible department shall return bid bonds to unsuccessful bidders
following the award of contract by the City Council, and the approval of the
performance bond when required.

k. The City Clerk shall prepare contract documents when necessary, and
shall forward completed contract documents to the successful bidder as
awarded by the City Council.

. If a public improvement is less than the threshold as determined by the State of
lowa ($139,000 1/1/19) and more than the threshold as determined by the State
of lowa ($57,000 1/1/19), formal bidding procedures are not necessary.
However, competitive quotations must be received. When competitive
quotations are required the City shall make a good faith effort to obtain
quotations for the work from at least two (2) contractors regularly engaged in
such work prior to the leiting of a contract.

a. The quotes shall be solicited by the appropriate department.

b. After quotes are received the department determines the lowest bid.

119




7.

11.03

Item 11.

¢. The summary of quotes are to be provided to Financial Services where
they will be kept on file.

d. A contract for the improvement shall than be approved by City Council.
If a public improvement falls under the minimum threshold as determined by the
State of lowa ($57,000 1/1/19), neither formal bidding procedures nor competitive

quotations are necessary.

a. The department responsible for the project should make an effort to
receive a fair and reasonable price for the project.

b. Ifa contract is needed for the project, it shall be approved by the City
Council.

. All public improvements in excess of $25,000 must have a resolution passed by

City Council authorizing the expenditure of funds.

HIGHWAY, BRIDGE, AND CULVERT (HORIZONTAL INFRASTUCTURE)
BIDDING PROCEDURES:

If a horizontal infrastructure project is more than the threshold as determined by
the State of lowa ($48,00054.000 1/1/4922). Formal bidding procedures are
required as described in section 11.02.

If a horizontal infrastructure project is less than the threshold as determined by
the State of lowa ($48.00054,000 1/1/4922), formal bidding procedures and
competitive quotations are not required.

a. The department responsible for the project should make an effort to
receive a fair and reasonable price for the project.

b. If a contract is needed for the project, it shall be approved by the City
Council.

120




Does the project meet an exception
to bidding procedures
under Chapter 26?

) |

r

1

Yes

No

Bidding Procedures
are not necessary

Is the Project a
Highway (Street),
Bridge or Culvert?

—

Yes

Is the Project
Over $54,0007

[

I

]

Public Improvement Bidding Procedures

No

Is the Project
Over $139,0007?

|

]

Yes

No

Yes

No

I

|

Formal Bidding
Procedures

Only Informal

Formal Bidding
Procedures

Is the Project
Over $57,0007

Item 11.

are Required

Bidding
Procedures
are Required

are Required

|

Yes No
Competitive Only Informal
Quotations Bidding

are Required Procedures
are Required

121




Item 11.

11.04 WRITTEN QUOTATIONS:

Requests for the purchase of equipment, commodities and/or services with an
estimated value of $25,000 or greater shall receive written quotations. All requests
in excess of $25,000 must have a resolution passed by City Council authorizing the
expenditure of funds, unless as described in Section 7.04(6) under vehicle
purchases that have been programmed as a part of the City’s Cash Management
Plan. A purchase of equipment, commodities and/or services with a total of less than
$25,000.00 shall be evaluated by the requesting Department Director to determine if
the material and/or services requested meet the requirements for requesting
quotations.

1.

10-30 days should be allowed from receipt of an approved Requisition and
any required specifications to award of purchase.

Telephone quotations must be taken by the requesting department on purchases
of equipment, commaodities, and/or services in excess of $5,000.00 and less than
$25,000.00.

If it is determined to be in the best interest of the City, written quotations will be
requested by the using department.

Awards of formal or informal bids on the purchase of equipment, commodities,
and/or services shall be made by the requesting department director. Award
shall be based on the lowest and best bid as determined by the requesting
department.

The bids and quotations shall be filed with the Financial Services Division.

Purchasing Flow Chart
Equipment, Commodities and/or Services

| Less Than $5,000 |

Yes ] r Nlo J

Quotes Not Less Than
Required $25,000

Yes, Telephone No, Written
Quotes Required Quotes Required

Note: If Public
Improvement
Public Improvement
Process Must Be Followed

122




Item 11.

11.05 COMPETITIVE NEGOTIATIONS:

If under $25,000.00 and if deemed appropriate by the Director of Finance &
Business Operations, competitive negotiations may be used rather than competitive
sealed bids or quotations. If over $25,000.00, City Council approval is required prior
to commencing competitive negotiations.

1.

A Negotiating Team shall be formed consisting of representatives of the Finance
& Business Operations Department and the requesting department. Technical
advisors may also be included if applicable.

Prospective bidders will be supplied with a request for a proposal. This request
will state in general terms the materials and/or services to be purchased, and will
include the evaluation criteria.

The Negotiating Team will review the proposals received and will then negotiate
with bidders to procure the materials and/or services required.

11.06 PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS:

These procedures will assist in identifying prospective consultants, selecting the
most qualified consultant for the project, and developing a consuitant contract that
will best protect the City's interest. These procedures shall not conflict with federal or
state rules or regulations as they relate to professional consultants.

1.

The following procedures should be utilized whenever consultant work in excess
of $50,000.00 is required. When consultant work of less than $50,000.00 is
required, procedures (c) through (i) concerning the need to make a consultant
selection from among several prospective consultants may be eliminated. Staff
may then negotiate a contract with a consultant qualified to perform the work
desired. If the consultant work is in excess of $50,000, however, the work is an
extension of an existing or prior project, please see 11.06 2.

a. Establish a selection team consisting of appropriate City staff and other City
officials as designated. Technical advisors may also be included if
applicable. The selection team should be involved in all phases of the
selection process.

b. Identify in writing the preconceived needs of the City, including a general
statement of what City staff perceives the scope of services to be. The City's
scope of services may be adjusted after the consultant interviews due to
information provided by prospective consultants in the interviews that results
in an alteration of the work plan.

c. Send out a Request for Proposal to pre-qualified consultants who have been

123




Item 11.

identified as performing professional services similar to the needs of the City.
It will be the responsibility of the selection team to determine who the
qualified consultants are. Ideally, requests for qualifications should be sent
to three to seven consultants depending on the number of consultants
available to perform the type of work desired. The scope of services of the
City should be included in the letter sent to prospective consultants. In
addition, the letter should include a brief community profile, the contact
information for the selection team, and any other information, which may be
useful to prospective consultants. In some instances, the request should
also contain the information in item (g) below.

The following should be considered in order to obtain a list of at least three
consultants from which to send requests for proposals:

1) Always include all the local consultants that appear to have the
expertise necessary to perform the desired work.

2) Contact state and national professional consulting associations and
other communities who have utilized consultants to perform this type of
work in the past.

3) Ifitis necessary to reduce the list to a manageable size, preference
should be given to those consultants which are located in the closest
proximity to Cedar Falls along with those firms which the City may know
are exceptionally qualified to perform the desired work.

The request for proposal should ask each candidate to submit:
1) A general profile of their firm.

2) The qualifications of the personnel to be used on this project, the
projects which the consultant and those individuals have performed of a
similar nature, and their availability to perform the desired work within
the time frame specified by the City.

The selection team should meet to review the qualifications of the
consultants, which submit letters of interest to determine those consultants
who appear to be qualified and can meet the City's time frame. Check the
past work record of those consultants with entities who have utilized their
services in the past to perform similar projects and determine their level of
satisfaction with the consultant's work. Based on this review, reduce the list
to three or more consultants from which to interview, if that many consultants
can demonstrate expertise for furnishing services.

Ask each interviewee to submit, prior to the interview, a preliminary scope of
services for the project, the company organization, and the name of the

124




project coordinator/manager who will be utilized for this project. Request that
the project coordinator/manager be present at the interview session. This
consultant should also submit information concerning the availability of
personnel to be assigned to the project, a typical form of contract that they
have used on similar projects, and a sample of a written report, which they
have developed on a similar assignment. Set a time for the interview and
inform the consultant of the amount of time to be allowed for the consultant’s
formal presentation.

Interview Session:

1)

3)

The selection team will conduct all interview sessions, which are to be
held in private. The selection team should meet prior to conducting the
interviews to develop a list of questions to ask the interviewees and to
establish weighting criteria to evaluate the consultants. The weighting
criteria should include both cost and quality factors such as those
identified in h.(2) and (3) below:

Ask each consultant to make a formal presentation within the
predetermined time limit describing their credentials and how they
would solve the needs of the City. Consultants should also indicate
how they have solved similar assignments for other communities.

Following the formal presentation, interaction with the interviewee
should take place with questions covering the following topics and
others which may be appropriate:

a) Question the personal credentials if not properly identified during
the formal presentation (license to practice, etc.).

b)  Question the availability of the consultant to perform the work
(particularly if their present work load appears to be substantial)
and how successful they have been in completing other projects
on time. Also ask if the work to be accomplished is with present
staff or through additions to the consultant’s staff.

c)  Ask each consultant to define how they see the problem and what
they see as the City's goals and objectives in using their
consultant's services.

d)  Ask questions concerning the procedures and methods the
consuitant proposes to use to solve the problem and attempt to
challenge the problem. Also, attempt to challenge the consultant
to provide innovations they would use to solve this problem. Also,
attempt to obtain the consultant's knowledge of the state-of-the-
art technology in this field.

Item 11.

125




e) Ask for a budget range, which the consultant expects to expend to
conduct this project.

f) Ask the consultant about the facilities and equipment they either
own or have access to for use on this project, including computer
equipment, reproduction and communication equipment,
laboratory and testing equipment, and other specialized
equipment applicable to this project.

g)  Ask each consultant if any of his or her professional services for
this project are to be subcontracted. Also, ask if any of their
services are to be performed as a joint venture with another firm.
If the project is receiving federal aid, the consultant shall provide
proof of adhering to federal aid guidelines for subcontractors.

h)  Discuss the typical form of contract used for this service on this
type of project or alternative forms of contract.

i. Selection Process:

1)

2)

3)

The selection team should meet to evaluate each consultant, utilizing
the team's previously established weighting criteria. Conduct phone
interviews with references provided by the consultant to determine
those entities' satisfaction with the consultant's past performance. In
addition, the selection team should attempt to contact other entities that
have utilized the consultant other than those entities provided as
references by the consultant. If desirable, conduct an on-site
examination of the consultant's facilities and equipment to better
determine the consultant's ability to perform the assignment.

Cedar Falls and lowa consultants should be given preference if equal
proposals are received from more than one consultant, unless
prohibited by Federal Law.

Make a selection.

Negotiate with the consultant selected as first choice and develop a contract.

The following (1) through (6) identify provisions, which should be included in
consultant contracts. Examples of these and other contract provisions can be
obtained by contacting the City Clerk's Office, which has actual
City/consultant contracts on file.

1)

Agree to the details of each scope of service to be provided including
initiation and completion dates for the entire project and major phases
of the project as necessary.

Item 11.

126




2) Determine the basis for charges, always including a maximum dollar
limit not to be exceeded.

3) Include a provision that the consultant will notify the City in writing if
he/she feels that the City is directing the consultant to perform work
beyond the scope of services. This notification will include an estimate
of the cost, which the consultant proposes for the additional work. Any
work to be performed by the consultant beyond the scope of services
must be preceded by written authorization from the City requesting such
work.

4) Ifitis anticipated that this contract will result in additional phases of
work, negotiate the method of payment to be employed for future
contract(s).

5) Include termination provisions in the contract.

6) Include in the contract a provision that the City will assume possession
of the final report, documents, and drawings/renditions produced in the
course of the project, which are desired by the City.

k. If the negotiations are unsatisfactory, terminate the negotiations and utilize
the procedure outlined in item j) above to negotiate a contract with the
interview committee’s second choice.

2. If a project is an extension of a current or prior contract, the same consultant may

be selected without utilizing the procedures outlined above. Examples of an
extension of a contract may include: projects where there are multiple phases
and a consultant was selected for an earlier phase, a consultant was selected for
a project whose geographical location and project components are contiguous to
the upcoming project, or if on a joint private-public project a consultant was
selected by the private party and it is cost-effective for the public party to utilize
the same consultant. If the consultant work meets these contract extension
criteria, staff may negotiate a fair and reasonable price with the consultant.

If a consultant is needed for select studies that are legally confidential, a
consultant may be selected by staff after council has directed the staff to proceed

with the study.

11.07 SPECIAL EVALUATION CRITERIA:

1.

Local Preference

a. In cases where two or more bids, formal or informal, are equal in all aspects,
preference shall be given to the local (Cedar Falls business) bidder.

Item 11.

127




Item 11.

In cases where two or more bids, formal or informal, are equal in all aspects,
preference shall be given to the lowa vendor if one of the equal bids is not a
Cedar Falls business.

A City department making a purchase request may recommend to the
Director of Finance & Business Operations purchase of an item from a Cedar
Falls business if it is slightly higher than the lowest bid or quotation and if the
item's total cost is within the constraints of the line item budget. The
selection of a slightly higher quotation must be supported with written
documentation that maintenance, accessibility, or service benefits make the
purchase financially advantageous in the long run. This policy should only
apply to items, which may be purchased by quotation and does not apply to
contract for professional services or construction projects, which require bids
or other select processes.

2. Total Cost of Ownership

a.

b.

Life cycle cost formulas shall be used where applicable.

Factors such as service, location and availability, warranty, maintenance
records, etc. shall be considered where applicable.

3. Vendor performance records shall be considered where applicable.

4. In Resolution #8170 the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls supported the
development of City-wide recycling projects and the effort of area recyclers, and
the City also adopted a recycling policy to guide its own actions, which included
the use of recyclable and recycled paper products whenever appropriate to the
need and available at a reasonable rate.

11.08 CHANGE ORDER POLICY - FORMAL CONTRACTS:

1. Field Changes and Unit Changes: this type of change order consists of those
items, which are necessary to carry out the intent of the original contract.

a.

The Department Director or designee serving as "project manager” shall
have the authority to approve individual field and unit changes up to
$200,000 and when the combined total of all field and unit changes does not
exceed 15% of the original contract, subject to the budget provisions in
11.08(1)(d).

When an individual field and unit change exceeds $200,000 or the
combined total of all field and unit changes exceeds 15% of the original
contract, the "project manager” must submit a Change Order Expansion
Request to the Department of Finance & Business Operations for approval of

128




Item 11.

the City Council. Prior to City Council action the Department of Finance &
Business Operations shall determine the potential sources of funding for the
change order overage.

c. It will be the responsibility of the "project manager” to keep a running total of
change orders for each contract and ensure individual change orders do
not exceed $200,000 or the combined total of all field and unit changes does
not exceed15% of the original contract.

d. Total change orders when totaled with the original contract shall not exceed
the projects budgeted appropriations previously approved by the City
Council.

2. Scope of Work or Project Boundary Change Orders: This type of change order
consists of those items, which are outside the scope of the original contract.

a. When a "project manager" requests a scope of work or project boundary
change they must submit the proposal to the Department of Finance &
Business Operations for City Council endorsement.

b. The Department of Finance & Business Operations will determine if funds
are available in the Capital Projects Fund, operating capital account, or Bond
Fund.

c. Once financial options are determined the Department of Finance &

Business Operations shall submit the change to the City Council for
endorsement and amendment of the project budget.

11.09 APPRAISAL CONTRACTS:

1. Through the course of purchasing or selling property, the City will need to obtain
appraisals to determine the fair and reasonable value of a property.

2. The City shall solicit Request for Proposals (RFPs) for appraisal services.
a. The requests will be sent to at least three appraisal firms.

b. The proposals shall be evaluated by the Departments of Community
Development and Finance & Business Operations and a selection made.

3. As an alternative, the City may elect to do an annual RFP for appraisal services.
The same procedures listed in 11.09 2 shall be utilized and then the firm will
have a one-year contract to perform all appraisals for the City during that year.
The City may elect, however, at any time during the year to seek new RFPs for
select appraisals if advantageous to the City.

129




Item 11.

11.10 LEASE-PURCHASE AND RENTAL AGREEMENTS:

1. Lease-Purchase:

a. An agreement that conveys the right to use property, plant or equipment,
usually for a stated period of time, that meets one or more of the criteria set
forth in SFAS No.13 for lease capitalization. The criteria are:

1)  The lease transfers ownership by the end of the lease term.

2) The lease contains a bargain purchase option.

3) The lease term is equal to 75 percent or more of the estimated
economic life of the leased property.

4) The present value of the minimum lease payments equal or exceed 90
percent of the fair value of the lease property.

b. An evaluation shall be made by the department making the purchase to
determine if lease-purchase or cash purchase of a piece of equipment is
more cost effective.

c. Ifalease-purchase is considered the most cost effective method of obtaining
property, the purchase shall be made in accordance with other provisions in
this manual and shall be approved by Finance & Business Operations

2. Rental Agreement:

a. A rental agreement is any lease agreement that does not meet the criteria for
capitalization set forth in SFAS No.13 and described in Section 11.09 1a.

b. An evaluation shall be made by the department making the purchase to
determine if rental of equipment or a cash purchase is more cost effective.

c. Rental agreement for all vehicles or for equipment with a fair market value
greater than $5,000.00 requires prior approval of the Finance & Business
Operations Department.

11.11 PAYMENTS AND RETENTION FROM PAYMENTS ON FORMAL CONTRACTS

1. Department's responsibilities:

a. Process the bills from contractors and withhold 5% of retainage on each
contractor payment.

b. Receive final acceptance of the project from the City Council.

130




C.

Item 11.

Process the bill that will pay the five percent retainage and notify the
Financial Services Division that the payment must be held for thirty
days.

Provide to Financial Services the appropriate contractor information prior to
the start of the project for registration of sales tax exemption certificates.

2. Financial Services Responsibilities:

a.

Write and deliver the checks making monthly pay estimates to the
contractors.

Hold the final payment for thirty days after final acceptance by Council.

Register the project and contractors with the State on-line system at the
beginning of the project for sales tax exemption certificates.

3. Early Release of Retainage:

a.

At any time after all or any part of the work on the formal contract is
substantially completed, the contractor may request the release of all or part
of the retained funds owed. The request by the contractor shall be
accompanied by a sworn statement of the contractor that, ten calendar days
prior to the filing of the request, notice was given to all known
subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and suppliers.

A project is considered substantially complete if the project has been
substantially completed in general accordance with the terms and provisions
of contract; if the project is substantially complete so that the City can occupy
or utilize the public improvement for its intended purpose; if the public
improvement has been designated substantially complete by the architect or
engineer on the project; or if the project is considered substantially complete
because the City is occupying or utilizing the public improvement for its
intended purpose.

After receiving the request, if the contractor has met the requirements noted
above, the City must release the retainage within thirty (30) days.

The City does reserve the right to withhold 200% of the value of the
uncompleted work as determined by the City.

131




Item 11.

SECTION 12

RECEIVING, INSPECTION, AND TESTING

12.01 INSPECTION:

The using department has the responsibility of inspecting all supplies delivered
and services received to determine compliance with the specifications and
contracts. The using department shall take such action as necessary to obtain
the proper supplies or services from the vendor. Shipments must also be
inspected for possible loss or damage, which may have occurred in transit. Any
such loss or damage must be noted on the freight company waybill, signed by
the delivering carrier and the City employee that inspected the shipment. The
waybill and any other pertinent information shall be filed with Financial Services.
An Administrative clerk in Financial Services will match the waybill with the
invoice when received.

12.02 TESTING:

The testing of materials should be performed when necessary to assure the
using department that purchases are satisfactory. The importance of adequate
inspection and testing cannot be over-emphasized. It has the following effects:

1. It prevents the direct loss accruing from acceptance of and payment for
defective supplies.

2. It has the salutary effect on vendors since the knowledge that supplies will
be carefully inspected and may be tested deters the shipment of inferior
supplies.

3. It discloses those manufacturers whose supplies consistently conform to
specifications, as well as those who habitually take full advantage of the
maximum tolerance permitted.

4. It calls to the attention of the vendor imperfections in the products, which the
vendor may be voluntarily willing to remedy.

12.03 COMPLETION OF RECEIVING REPORT:

When it is determined that materials or services have been received in good
condition and in compliance with the order, the necessary receiving information
for capital assets must be forwarded to the Financial Services Division in
accordance with the instructions in Section 6 of this manual.

132




Item 11.

SECTION 13

MATERIALS MANAGEMENT

13.01 INVENTORY:

1. Using Department's Responsibilities:

a. Each department is responsible for stocking their own frequently-used
inventory items and for maintaining control over those items.

b. On June 30 of every year each department must make a physical count of
the inventory they have on hand that day.

1) Inventory items are operating supplies that are expected to be used
within a year.

2) The list of inventory on hand on June 30 must include the name of
the item, the number on hand, the cost per unit, and total cost.

2. Financial Services’ Responsibilities:

a. Acquire from each of the departments their inventory lists to be included in
the audit.

b. On June 30 spot-check the department inventory listing to ensure
accuracy.

13.02 SMALL EQUIPMENT INVENTORY:

1. Using Department's Responsibilities:
a. Each department is responsible for tracking their small equipment
inventory. These items may include, but are not limited to, calculators,
small hand tools, rakes, shovels, and office furniture.

b. Annually, each department must make a physical count of the small
equipment inventory that they have.

¢. Include the cost per unit for each inventory item.

133




2. Financial Services' Responsibilities:

a. Acquire from each of the departments their small equipment inventory list.

b. Annually spot-check the departments as they identify their small
equipment inventory.

Item 11.

134




14.01

14.02

14.03

Item 11.

SECTION 14

SURPLUS PROPERTY

DEFINITION:

Surplus property is that City-owned property which is no longer required or has
no practical use by the City. City property shall not be appropriated for private
purposes. Surplus property having value will be disposed of in accordance with
this Section.

RESPONSIBILITIES:

The using department shall be responsible for the disposal of all surplus property
except as indicated below:

1. Items that have no practical salvage value shall be taken to the Transfer
Station.

2. Iltems that are found at City locations that have not been claimed after a
reasonable time and that have nominal or no value will be destroyed or
donated.

3. Real estate or any interest in land can only be disposed of by resolution of
the City Council after published notice and public hearing. (See Section
364.7 Code of lowa)

4. ltems seized, confiscated, or found by the Police Department shall be
handled and disposed of in accordance with applicable Federal, State, and
local requirements.

5. ltems purchased with grant funds shall be disposed of in accordance with
applicable grant requirements.

6. If the disposal is a capital asset item, the using department shall prepare a
disposal record to be entered into the Capital Asset System.

METHODS OF DISPOSAL:

It shall be the responsibility of using departments to notify the Financial Services
Division of surplus property in their possession. The method of disposal shall be
determined by the Director of Finance & Business Operations.

1. Transfer to other departments: Transfer may be made if a need for the
property exists in other departments of the City. The Financial Services

135




14.04

Division shall be notified of the transfer of any item, which has been
assigned a capital asset number.

2. Trade-in: Materials may be used in trade if determined by the using
department to provide maximum return for the City.

3. Public Auction: The using department may sell surplus property at public
auction, provided that the quantity and types of surplus property on hand
warrant such action. Any expense incurred in conducting the auction shall be
deducted from the auction receipts. Each department shall be informed of
the net auction receipts credited to their accounts.

4. Sale: Quotations may be solicited for the sale of surplus property having a
sale value of less than $25,000.00. Formal bids must be solicited for property
with a sale value in excess of $25,000.00.

5. Cannibalizing: ltems may be disassembled and used for parts provided that
this method is determined by the using department to provide a maximum
return for the City.

6. Property, other than land, which has no practical use by the City, but may
have value to another governmental body, may be donated to that
governmental body for their use.

7. No surplus or obsolete property shall be given to or salvaged by employees

8. Surplus property having a very small nominal value may be sold to
employees through an open and fair process.

DISPOSAL OF POLICE AND PUBLIC SAFETY BADGES:

Since public safety badges are evidence of the holder's apparent law
enforcement authority, special procedures should be used when disposing of
these items.

1. If an officer does not want to receive his or her badge upon termination of
employment, competitive bidding process should be used as described in
Section 14.03 4.

2. Before the badge is sold to an outside party or before being given to the
officer, it shall be embedded in acrylic or in some other manner rendered
incapable of being misused as police or public safety identification.

Item 11.

136




15.01

15.02

15.03

15.04

Item 11.

SECTION 15

FOLLOW-UP AND EXPEDITING

FOLLOW-UP:

The requesting department will attempt to reconcile shipment and/or delivery
problems with the vendor. In all cases of damaged materials, the carton and
materials must be held for inspection by the freight company in order to file claim
for damages incurred during shipment.

EXPEDITING:

IF A SHIPMENT IS NOT RECEIVED within a reasonable amount of time, the
requesting department should contact vendors in an attempt to expedite
shipments.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT RESPONSIBILITIES:

It is the responsibility of the using department to ptan in advance. Requests for
rush deliveries add to the cost of materials and/or services.

Requisition for Purchase forms should be submitted with sufficient time allowed
for:

1. Solicitation of bids or quotations.

2. Evaluation of bids or quotations.

3. Receipt of order by the vendor.

4. Delivery, either from vendor's stock or from the manufacturer.

FINANCIAL SERVICES DIVISION RESPONSIBILITIES:

Financial Services has the responsibility to process requisitions as quickly as
possible.

137




Item 11.

SECTION 16

REIMBURSEMENTS FROM PETTY CASH

16.01 DESCRIPTION:

16.02

A Petty Cash Fund will be maintained by various departments and divisions as
authorized by the Financial Services Division. Valid requests for reimbursement
will be made from this fund. The fund will be reimbursed after supporting
documentation for the petty cash expenditures have been submitted to the
Financial Services Division.

REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT PROCEDURE:

A Request for Reimbursement — Documentation should be prepared to
reimburse City employees for the purchase of minor non-inventory items in an
amount not to exceed $25.00 per incident.

1.

Valid petty cash requests: City employees shall be reimbursed through the
Petty Cash Fund for items such as small office supplies, postage, minor
automobile and equipment parts and services, and small miscellaneous
items.

A supplier's cash receipt must be submitted to the departmental employee
assigned to the Petty Cash Fund in order for a City employee to be
reimbursed from the Petty Cash Fund. No reimbursement will be made
without a supplier's cash receipt.

Request for Reimbursement — The documentation will be completed by the
departmental employee assigned to the Petty Cash Fund : The following
information will be included on the documentation:

a. Date of request.

b. Date of actual purchase.

c. Complete account number to be expensed.

d. Name of supplier.

e. Supplier's receipt number, if given on the receipt.

f. Quantity and brief description of each item purchased.

g. Approved signature on file of person requesting the reimbursement.

138




h. The documentation should be retained with the Petty Cash Fund and
submitted to Financial Services when a request to reimburse the Petty
Cash Fund is requested.

4. Supplier's receipt: The following information must be included on the
supplier's original receipt which is attached to the documentation:

a. Supplier's name.

b. Each item purchased.

c. Total amount paid.

d. Indication that supplier was paid cash.

5. All reimbursements will be signed as received; reimbursements will not be
sent through inter-office or regular mail.

6. Non-valid Petty Cash requests: City employees will not be reimbursed
through the Petty Cash Fund for any of the following items:

a.  Travel and travel expenses (exception: fees for parking with no other
related travel expenses).

b.  Conference expense.

c.  Training fees and related expense.

d. Meals, whether or not associated with travel, conferences, training or
overtime (exception: food items that are purchased for City related
business meetings may be reimbursed through the Petty Cash Fund.)

e. Purchase of capital items.

f. Inventory stock items purchased by blanket contract, such as office
supplies.

The departmental employee responsible for the Petty Cash Fund shall reimburse
the employee after the Request for Reimbursement has been completed and
presented along with the supplier's cash receipt.

Item 11.

139




SECTION 17

TRAVEL AND EDUCATION REPORTS

17.01 TRAVEL AND EDUCATION REPORTS:

The City Council approves by resolution annually an operating budget, which
includes an 8300 series line item providing for travel and education of

employees.

1. Purpose: The purpose of this policy is to establish the procedures for
approving travel and education requests and the monitoring of said requests.

2. Procedure:

a. Travel Policy

1)

2)

5)

Employees holding jobs that require travel are expected to travel as
a condition of employment. For all other jobs, travel is considered
only an incidental function of the position, but may be required.

All in-state_overnight and out-of-state travel requests are approved
by the MayerCity Administrator—ein-the-absence-ef-the-Mayer-the
MayerPro-Tem. All non-budgeted travel requests are approved by
the Mayer-City Administrator and Gentreller/Gity
TreasurerDepartment Director. Travel request forms are available
from the Financial Services Division and must be completed and
approved prior to travel.

Department Directors and their Assistants are encouraged to attend
National, State, and local events that are within the range of
responsibilities of that particular Department. Active participation
such as holding offices in National and State organizations is also
encouraged.

Upon completion of the career development experience out-of-
state, each employee shall complete a “Travel Assessment Report”
that shall be attached to the request for travel form.

The travel assessment report will be scanned in with the request for
travel form and the Mayor and council members may request from
the Financial Services Division to review the report.

Item 11.

140




Item 11.

6) All travel requests are to be reviewed by the Department Director
using the following described travel guidelines as a basis for
approval or disapproval of the request:

a) Federal, State or local mandated training: Required training for
licensing, certification, or other qualifications.

b) Preparatory Training: Applies where an employee's future job
responsibilities, in all probability, will incorporate and require
new or little used skills, which can be readily acquired only by
outside training.

c) Legislative/Intergovernmental: Meetings that appear to hold
high potential for long-term positive or negative effect(s) upon
the City and/or Department.

d) National, Regional, or State conferences and workshops:
Attendance contingent upon quality of workshop/conference as
this relates to staff member's current job responsibilities.

e) Officer in Professional Organization: Employee serves as an
officer in their respective professional organization. (Requires
prior approval and encouragement by the MayerCity
Administrator, and Department, where applicable.)

7) Under normal circumstances, employees should make all travel
arrangements for transportation and lodging. In addition, all
mileage or usage credits awarded by transportation, credit card,
and other travel service companies are to be assigned to the City.

8) The City may issue guidelines specifying or restricting travel
booking requirements. Under normal circumstances, employees
should use the most expedient mode of transportation available,
book the least expensive fares, and stay in and eat at moderately
priced establishments. Also, key employees who are traveling
together should try to schedule transportation and lodging
separately to minimize risks from accidents.

9) Employees must provide their supervisor with a copy of their
itinerary before leaving on business travel.

b. Travel Finance
1) Employees who travel and request payment from the City for

travel expense must comply with the following:
a. Travel expenses, such as lodging, parking, and meals will be

141




paid by the employee at the time of the travel, and the City
will reimburse the employee after receiving bona fide
receipts and the completion of a “Request for Travel and
Statement of Expenses” form by the employee. The bona
fide receipt turned in must reflect the itemized purchased
items, and it shall not be a charge slip that only reflects the
total amount charged. The Controller/City Treasurer shall
determine the appropriate documentation regarding parking,
automobile expenses, lodging, and meals.

The federal approved maximums for reimbursement of meal
expenses shall be used as a guideline. Employees must
submit their receipts to the Financial Services Division for
authorization of reimbursement. An exception to the above
limits would be a meal that is included as part of a meeting
or seminar. The total amount of the meal will be paid in that
case. If a meal is included in the price of a meeting or
seminar and the employee chooses to purchase a meal
elsewhere, the employee shall be responsible for the
expense of that meal unless medical reasons require that
the employee separately purchase a meal.

Pre-billed expenses, such as airfare, lodging and
registrations will be prepaid to the vendor if advance
payment is requested by the employee and the City is billed
by the vendor. Mileage will be reimbursed, when
appropriate, at the current Federal rate for mileage
reimbursement.

If airfare would be more economical than driving a vehicle,
but the employee chooses to drive their personal vehicle, the
employee may be reimbursed the expense of the airfare with
approval of the Department Director.

The employee shall submit to the Department Director within
30 days bona fide original receipts for all travel and
education expenses, including meals. Photocopies of
receipts will not be allowed, unless approved by
Controller/City Treasurer. The employee shall not be
reimbursed by the City for any expense not documented by
receipt, unless an exception report is signed by the
employee, the supervisor, and the Controller/City Treasurer.
The form can be provided for by the Financial Services
division.

The Department Director and Controller/City Treasurer shall

Item 11.

142




2)

3)

Item 11.

be responsible for determining cash receipts’ authenticity
and eligibility for reimbursement. An adjustment to the meal
expense may be made at this time upon the approval of the
Controller/City Treasurer.

g. State regulations prohibit reimbursement for liquor expenses
associated with meals.

h. If determined by the Department of Finance & Business
Operations that a per diem system for travel finances is a
more cost effective approach, it will be implemented by
Finance & Business Operations and departments will be
notified. If implemented, the per diem system will be
administered in accordance with IRS regulations.

Employees traveling on City business and driving a City vehicle
may appropriately use the City vehicle for incidental purposes
while not on City business when traveling out-of-town.

Travel expenses of a spouse, or other dependent, will not be
paid or reimbursed and are the employee's personal
responsibility. Further, non-City employees and the employee's
spouse or other dependenl, are not authorized to drive or be a
passenger in City vehicles without the prior approval of the
Department Director. Immediate family members may be
allowed to travel with an employee in a City vehicle provided a
waiver of liability form (available from the Legal Services
Division) is signed and with the approval of the Department
Director.

17.02 REIMBURSEMENT PROCEDURE:

All employees are urged to use discretion and to seek economic and convenient
lodging, transportation and meals. Employees are required to complete a Travel
and Expense report for each conference and/or training session. Any expense
not listed in this section shall be

excluded from reimbursement.

1.

A Travel and Expense form is to be filed with the Financial Services Division
within 30 days after returning. The Financial Services Division will audit all
Travel and Expense reports within 48 hours of receipt.

The Travel and Expense form shall have valid original receipts attached for
all reimbursable expenses.

The Travel and Expense form should contain the following information (see

143




Item 11.

sample form):

V]

. Name of person incurring expense.

(=2

. Job position title of person incurring expense.

[9]

. Department.

Q.

. Address to which reimbursement, if due, is to be mailed.

. Purpose of travel, i.e. name of conference or training course and location
of conference or training session.

®

—h

Dates of conference, training session.

g. Amount of expense, by date and type of expense.

=

. Total amount of each type of expense (include total number of miles, if
mileage reimbursement is requested).

. Total amount of expense by date.

. Grand total of expenses.

—

k. Amounts of prepaid expenses.

|. Total of prepaid expenses.

m.Amount due employee as reimbursement; or amount due City.
n. Classification of claimant.

o. Signature of claimant.

p. Department Head signature.

17.03 EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEMENT REPORT:

This form (see sample form) is to be used by City employees, elected officials
and appointed officials who, on a regular basis, use their personal vehicle to
conduct City business and do not have access to a city vehicle. This form is not
to be used to report mileage, which would more properly be recorded, on a
Travel and Expense report. This form may also be used to report miscellaneous
reimbursable expenses not associated with a conference or travel. The form
instructions are as follows:

144




1. For mileage, each trip should be recorded by date.

2. The report is to be forwarded to the Financial Services Division for
processing and payment in accordance with section 7 of this manual.

3. Other expenses should be recorded by date and a description of the
expense should be noted.

4. The miles and expense columns should be totaled.

5. The account number that the expenses should be charged to should be
recorded on the reimbursement form.

6. Mileage shall be reimbursed at the maximum allowable rate under federal
internal revenue service rules per mile.

7. The form should be signed by the claimant and the claimant's supervisor.

Item 11.

145




Item 11.

This form iy to be med for in-atate und om-cfataie travel with

City of Cedar Falls - Request for Travel and Statement of Expenses

Psard sad ¢ lecurrrd et 1houdd me

PART I - ESTIMATED EXNPENSES (To bill (iled out smd o)

ik 1o employes ing cduention, srsmuary, etr, Complete Part [ befiore eapemes are incarred;

obizising required approvaks. Part ILis to be completed following your retarn to work; obtuiming the required approvels. Attach sl itrmsierd receipts; City paid,
: Digector,

e hicles when Ly ¥ 8f
vl prior o trasel)

146

Employee Name:
by: -
(Engioyed's Supersisar Signstare)
by
[T T — =
Purpose of Trip:
1017 Adksbadvirang igastury)
(Mgt for wraight v ot i dtnis w1} Date Diepani Dhate
PRE-REGISTRATION
s Pre-regatration payable to Madled:
S - Additional Experses Trans.; Hotel; Meab; Misc.
s - Tota) Estismted City Expemes (including frassportution)
PART 11 - ACTUAL EXPENSE (To be filled out after vou refurn: inc n ofl's below)
. . Trmeaportatian g iy Menh £ rtacl dtemszed roceipicy Tasi, Talls, |Misc. Experses. =
R Day Lodig A Mol Carfeand | imareriens | Prcaibant | taiwh ianer Parkivg | tremee ety | 2P Total
Mo, 3
The, s
Wed L]
Thr 3
Fri 5
S 5
Sm. s .
Totals 5 = 15 = |s - 15 - 15 £ = |5 - I3 - |35 -
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES AUTOMOBILE EXPENSES Total Expenses s -
Dair hendviph Anmiit]  Datr Vilenze. Fuel Parking vt Lews e Chargod 1o Ciny|
Less P-Card C
Net Amouot Dos 3
Arcount Na.
Accomt No.:
Accoant No.:
Project Na.:
The nbove it a true mnd aceurate accoant of expemes b d in coajuction with for the Tity af Ceber Fally, Iowa

e Bigwitkisie

e pmurtineni D e




Item 11.

= Request for Employee Reimbursement
. This form is used for job related assignments, inclurde itcms such as mil gas reil meals, employee purchased safety
% shoes, supplics for job assignmeats, etc. Do not use for travel e inasi i inars, ctc.

Attach all itemized reccipts, P-card and cmployce incurred

Employce Name: Period Ending:

Automobile Expwnses Mileage
Description Amount Rei 3

Date Meals Miscellaneous Expenses Dally Total

nt

AL A A A C A A A L A L A A Ll
"

Totals $ - 3 - $ - $ -
Less P-Card Charges
Net Amount Due Employee

o
'

MILEAGE REPORT
Date Location FROM and TO Purpose of Trip Miles Acct No.:

Accet No.:

Proj. No.: s

lated (o employ with the Cityorcredanalls,
lowa

Employee

Signature:

Approval

Div/Dept.

Approval

Fipance

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
Date Description Amount

COMMENTS

Total Miles F
Mileape Rate
Total Mileage Reimburse ment $ -

147




Written Statement for Missing Meal Receipt/Invoice

I acknowledge that I have not provided a receipt in accordance with City Policy 402 (Meal
Reimbursement) and/or City Policy 403(Travel). I understand that the City uses receipts
to document the type of expense, thc appropriateness of the expense, and the
reasonableness of the expense. In licu of the required receipt, I will attest with my
signature below that the item(s) purchased or service provided was a City business expense

and that there were no prohibited purchases, including alcohol, included in the purchase.

Restaurant/Establishment:

Description of Purchase (detailed):

Date of Purchase: Amount of Purchase: §

Signature of Employee:

Printed Name of Employee:_

Supervisor Approval: =

Controller/City Treasurer Approval:

Date:

Item 11.

148




Item 11.

SECTION 18

EQUIPMENT PURCHASE, VEHICLE MAINTENANCE,
AND DATA PROCESSING

18.01 SPECIFICATIONS:

For any vehicle with a value of $5,000.00 or greater which is to receive a capital
asset tag number, the Manager of the Public Works/Parks Division or his/her
designee shall be responsible for the development and codification of
specifications.

1.

Specifications are to be developed within the defined goals of the Vehicle
Maintenance Section.

It is anticipated that there will be a high degree of involvement of the
appropriate using department head.

The Director of Finance & Business Operations shall be involved in final
approval of specifications.

Specifications shall be approved and signed by the Manager of the Public
Works/Parks Division, the using Department Director, and the Director of
Finance & Business Operations, with the option for City Administrator
approval if deemed necessary due to conflict between the above individuals.

18.02 REQUISITION FOR PURCHASE:

1.

The Manager of the Public Works/Parks Division shall initiate a Requisition
for Purchase and forward to the Financial Services Division, along with the
specifications. If the Requisition for Purchase is initiated by the using
Department Director or the Financial Services Division, it must be submitted
to the Manager of the Public Works/Parks Division for approval before further
action can be taken.

Budget approval shall be performed by the Financial Services Division.
Variations from budget shall be referred to the Director of Finance &
Business Operations for final approval with Budget Amendment Form, if
required.

18.03 SOLICITATION OF BIDS AND/OR QUOTATIONS:

1.

Formal bids and/or informal quotations shall be solicited by the Vehicle
Maintenance Section in accordance with purchasing procedures.

149




Bids and/or quotations shall be reviewed by the Director of Finance &
Business Operations in consultation with the Manager of the Public
Works/Parks Division and the using department head to secure the
appropriate equipment at the most favorable cost. Life Cycle Cost Analysis
shall be used if appropriate.

If consensus cannot be reached by the Manager of the Public Works/Parks
Division, the using department head, and the Director of Finance & Business
Operations, final approval shall be required from the City Administrator.

18.04 PURCHASE:

1.

After all required criteria have been met, the Vehicle Maintenance Section
shall be responsible for placing the order with the selected vendor.

The Vehicle Maintenance Section shall be responsible for monitoring the
delivery schedule. There shall be established a system whereby a weekly
contact is made based upon agreed delivery.

Upon receipt and acceptance of the vehicle, the Manager of the Public
Works/Parks Division will sign the receiving copy of the Requisition and
forward to Financial Services for payment procedures.

18.05 ASSET STATUS OF EQUIPMENT:

Newly purchased equipment will be an asset of the using department.

1.

Capital asset tags shall be assigned to every piece of equipment with a value
of $5,000 or greater and a life expectancy of greater than one year. It is also
recommended that a capital asset tag be assigned to inventory with a value
between $500 - $4,999 or as needed by the department.

It is the responsibility of the using departments to attach the capital asset tag
to the equipment, complete an Input Data Collection Form and return the
form to the Financial Services Division for entry into the Capital Asset
program.

3. Collection of "Depreciation" for Replacement of Vehicles.

a. Replacement funds will be collected by the Vehicle Maintenance Section
for the replacement of equipment during a later budget year. The intent of
this process is to accumulate replacement funds for a given piece of
equipment over the anticipated life of that equipment.

b. Each department will be charged an annual fee that will be paid to the
Vehicle Maintenance Fund for maintenance on and replacement of

Item 11.

150




vehicles.

18.06 COMPUTER HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE:

For any computer item, which is to receive a capital asset tag number, the
Information Systems Manager, or his/her designee, shall be responsible for the
development and codification of specifications.

1.

3.

Specifications are to be developed within the defined goals of the Information

Systems Division.

it is anticipated that there will be a high degree of involvement of appropriate
using department head.

Specifications shall be approved and signed by the using Department
Director, the Information Systems Manager, and the Director of Finance &
Business Operations.

18.07 REQUISITION FOR PURCHASE:

1.

The Information Systems Manager shall initiate a Requisition for Purchase
and forward to the Financial Services Division along with the specifications.
If the Requisition for Purchase is initiated by the using Department Director
or the Financial Services Division, it must be submitted to the Information
Systems Manager for approval before further action can be taken.

Budget approvai shall be performed by the Financial Services Division.
Variations from budget shall be referred to the Director of Finance &
Business Operations for final approval with the Budget Amendment form, if
required.

18.08 SOLICITATION OF BIDS AND/OR QUOTATIONS:

1.

Formal bids and/or informal quotations shall be solicited by the Information
Systemns Division in accordance with purchasing procedures.

Bids and/or quotations shall be reviewed by the Director of Finance &
Business Operations to secure the appropriate equipment at the most
favorable cost. Life Cycle Cost Analysis shall be used if appropriate.

18.09 PURCHASE.:

1.

2.

After all required criteria have been met, the Information Systems Division
shall be responsible for placing the order with the selected vendor.

The Information Systems Division shall be responsible for monitoring the

Item 11.

151




Item 11.

delivery schedule. There shall be established a system whereby a weekly
contact is made based upon agreed delivery.

Upon receipt and acceptance of the computer equipment, the Information
Systems Manager will sign the receiving copy of the Requisition and forward
to Financial Services for payment procedures.

Collection of "Depreciation” for Replacement of Computer Equipment.

a. Replacement funds wiil be collected by the Information Systems Division
for the replacement of computer equipment during a later budget year.
The intent of this process is to accumulate replacement funds for a
given piece of equipment over the anticipated life of that equipment.

b. Each department will be charged an annual fee that will be paid to the
Data Processing Fund for maintenance on and replacement of
computers.

c. The Information Systems Division will be responsible for assigning Capital
asset tag numbers for all computer equipment with a dollar value of
$5,000 or greater owned by the City, completing the Depreciation
Record, and entering the information in the computer. It is also
recommended that a capital asset tag be assigned to inventory with a
value between $500-$4,999, or as needed by the department.

d. Maintenance on all computer equipment must be coordinated with the
Information Systems Division.

18.10 CAPITAL ASSET PURCHASE - CAPITAL ASSETS:

1.

Each department is responsible for the purchase of capital purchases other
than vehicles and computer software and hardware for their department.

A capital purchase is defined as equipment with a value of $5,000 or greater
or a purchase of land, land improvements, buildings or infrastructure with a
value of $5,000 or greater and an expected life of greater than one year.

Each piece of equipment purchased with a value of $5,000 or greater or
land, land improvements, building or infrastructure with a value of $5,000 or
greater and an expected life greater than one year requires a capital asset
tag. Itis also recommended that a capital asset tag be assigned to inventory
with a value between $500-$4,999 for equipment and $1,000-$4,999 for
land, land improvements, building or infrastructure.

It is the responsibility of the purchasing department to attach the capital
asset tag to the equipment, complete an Input Data Collection Form and

152




return the form to the Financial Services Division for entry into the Capital
Asset program.

a. Input Data Collection Form:

1) Item Tag: The item tag is the two-character plus five-digit number

preprinted on aluminum tags. You must enter the leading zeros in
the number. Example, AS00001, not AS1; PW00025, not PW25.

CAUTION: Once an item tag is entered into the system, IT
CANNOT be changed. It can only be deleted and a new entry
made.

2) Item Description: The item description is a brief description of the
capital asset. Be consistent. (29 characters)

3) ltem Class: The item class must be chosen from the following list

of choices:

ANV Audio/visual Equipment
ARTWRK Artwork

BOOKS Books

BRIDGE Bridges

BUILD Buildings

COMPUT Computers and related
FURN Office furniture
IMPROV Land improvements
INFRAS Infrastructure

LAND Land

MACHIN Office machines
MECHAN Mechanical equipment
PUBSAF Public Safety
ROADEQ Road maintenance equipment
SHOPEQ Shop equipment
SIGNAL Traffic Signal

STORM Storm Water

STREET Streets

TRAIL Trail

VEHICL Cars and road vehicles

4) ltem Type: The item type must be selected from the following list:

Item 11.

153




7

8)

9)

FA — Capital Asset- of $5,000 or more
iN — Inventory item
IS — Infrastructure -  Sewer

Department: Enter the identification for the department
(department name prior to 2014 Reorganization) that owns
this item, taken from the following list:

AS Administrative Services

DS Developmental Services

HL Human and Leisure Services
LI Library

PS Public Safety

PW Public Works

VM Vehicle Maintenance

Serial Number: Enter the item's serial number, if one exists. (20

characters)

Manufacturer/Make: Enter the name of the manufacturer, or the

item's make, if applicable. (14 characters)

Model: Enter the item's model, if applicable. (14 characters)

Model Year: Enter the item's model year, if applicable. (4 digits)

10) Condition Code: Enter the code that best describes the item's

11) Owning Fund: Enter the number identifying the fund that owns this

condition, taken from the following list:

New (up to one year old)
Good

Fair

Poor

Unusable Junk

Mixed

Not applicable
Undeveloped Land
Developed Land

CO~NOOANHLWN -

item:

01 - General Fund

06 — Street
09 — Data Processing
15—~ Hospital

Item 11.

154




17 -
23 -
51—
52 -
54 -
55 -
58 —
61—
62 -
856 -

Section-8

Block Grant

Refuse

Sewer

Cable

Storm Water
Parking

Visitor & Tourism
Community Center
Vehicle Maintenance

12) Site: The Division that owns or is responsible for the asset:

ADM
CcC

CEM
CHE
COM
CTv
DP

ED

ENG
FIRE

Administration
Community Center
Cemetery

City Hall Expansion
Community Development
Cable TV

Data Processing
Economic Development
Engineering

Fire

Golf

Hearst Center
Infrastructure — Sewer
Inspections

Library

Public Building
Parking Fund

Police

Parks

Print Shop

Recreation

Refuse

Street

Storm Water

Sewer

Traffic

Visitor & Tourism
Vehicle Maintenance
Water Reclamation

13) Insurance: This code identifies the type of insurance coverage the
City has for this item, taken from the following list:

Item 11.

155




BLNK Blanket insurance coverage - All Assets
ITEM ltemized insurance coverage
SLFi Self-insured

14) Type: This code identifies the fund and type of property. Financial
Services will complete this field.

EQDP Data Processing
EQEN Engineering

EQGB General building
EQGF General equipment
EQGL General land

EQLI Library

EQRF Refuse

EQSB S.R. building

EQSI Sewer infrastructure
EQSR Sewer rental

EQST Street infrastructure
EQTR Trails

EQVH Vehicle maintenance

15) Optional Code C: This code identifies the cost range that the item
falls into, taken from the following table:

A $25,001 and over cost
B $10,001 -$25,000 cost
C $ 1,001 -$10,000 cost
D $ 501-$ 1,000 cost

16) Base Cost: Enter the base cost of the item. (10 digits, including 2
decimals)

17) Freight Cost: Enter the freight cost if there was one. (10 digits,
including 2 decimals)

18) Accessory Cost: Enter accessory costs, if any. (10 digits, including
2 decimals)

19) Other Cost: Enter any other costs involved in the acquisition. You
may want to enter the amount of a trade-in here as a negative
number. (10 digits, including 2 decimals)

20) Unit of Measure: Enter the unit of measure for this item from the
following list:

Item 11.

156




ACRE

EACH

FEET

SOFT

OTHR

Acres of land

Each separate item

Linear feet
Square footage
Other
21) Acquisition Type: Enter the type of
acquisition, taken from the following list:
CONF Confiscation
CONS Constructed
EDOM Eminent domain
FORC Foreclosure
GIFT Gift
INST Instaliment purchase
LEAS Leased
LPUR Lease-purchase
OTHR Other
PURC Outright purchase
TAXF Tax forfeiture
TRAP Trade
UNKN Unknown

22) Acquisition Date: Enter the date the item was acquired.

23) Total Cost: Total cost of asset including freight, accessories,
installation and any other costs.

24) Quantity: Enter the quantity acquired. This will usually be a
guantity of one. (5 digits)

25) Source of Funds: Enter the four-digit number for the source of
funds for the purchase, taken from the following list:

3000 3070

3010 3080

3020 Charges for services
3030 Property taxes

3040 Block grant

3050 Section 8 housing

3060 Federal revenue sharing

Item 11.

157




Item 11.

State grant Gift
Endowment Tax Levy

26) Vendor Name: Enter the name of the vendor that the item was
acquired from. (24 characters)

27) Invoice Number: Number from the invoice.
28) PO Number: Purchase order number, if used.

29) Check and Date: Enter the number of the check that paid for the
item, and the check date, if known.

30) Purchase Account: Enter the general ledger account number that
the item was paid from, in the format xxx-XXXX-Xxx-XX.XX.

31) Fund of Purchase: Enter the number of the fund from which the
purchase was made. (2 digits; same list as used for #11)

b. Disposal Record: A disposal record must be added for each asset as it is
disposed of. A given asset may have up to nine disposal records. The
dollar fields on the disposal record are for record and reporting
purposes only and do not enter into any calculations. The sample
screen on the following page shows all the fields to be completed for
each disposal.

1) ltem Tag: The item tag is re-displayed from the master record.
2) ltem Class: The item tag is re-displayed from the master record.

3) Quantity: The quantity field in the disposal screen is pre-supplied
with a quantity of one. This number may be changed to any
appropriate amount. If a partial disposal or multiple disposals exist
for a single asset, it may be appropriate to indicate a zero quantity
on a disposal record. (6 digits)

4) Disposal Date: Enter the date of the disposal. This is a mandatory
field. (4 digits)

5) Disposal Type: Enter the four-character code for the type of
disposal, taken from the following list:

DisC RETN
GIFT SOLD
LOSS TRAD
OTHR Discarded or junked

158




Given as a gift
Theft, Vandalism,

Lost
Other

Returned to owner
Sold
Traded in

6) Disposal Reason: Enter the four-character code for the reason for
the disposal, taken from the following list:

COST
END
LOSS
LOST
OBSO
OTHR
THEF
WORN

No longer cost effective
End of lease

Casualty loss
Misplaced

Obsolete

Other reason

Theft or vandalism
Worn out

7) Disposed To: Enter the name of the vendor, person, or agency the
asset was disposed to. (14 characters)

8) Traded For: If the item was traded, enter a description of what

exactly it was traded for.

9) GIL Account For Disposal: Enter the general ledger account
number that is affected by the disposal, in the format xx-XXx-Xxxx.

10) Receipt: Enter the receipt number, if cash was received. (6 digits)

11) Amount Of Proceeds: Enter the amount of cash received. (10 digits,
including 2 decimals)

18.11 DEPRECIATION:

Depreciation on capital assets will be computed using the straight-line method
over the useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives for categories of

assets will be as follows:

Computer Equipment

Equipment
Office Equipment
Vehicles

Parking Lots
Furniture

Large Vehicles

Traffic Signals
Streets

Buildings

Land Improvements
Storm Water
Bridges

Lift Stations

Item 11.

159




Item 11.

Sewer 20 years
Historic Buildings 30 years
5 years 40 years
10-30 years 40 years
10-30 years 40 years
10-20 years 45 years
15 years 50 years
20 years 50 years
20-40 years 100 years

160




Item 11.

Master Record
ltem Tag:
Item Description:
ltem Class:
(Circle One)
llem Type:

Serlal Number:
Manufacture/Make:
Model:

Condition Code:

Owning Fund #:
Site:

Insurance:

Type:

Cost Group:

Base Cosl:
Accessory Cost:
Unit of Measure:
Acquisition Type:
Total Cost:

Source of Funds:
Vendor Name:
Invoice Number:
Chack Number:
Purchase Account:

Fund of Purchase:

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
CAPITAL ASSETS
INPUT DATA COLLECTION FORM

Department: Administrative Services

Division:

BUILD COMPUT  CONST FURN IMPROV INFRAS LAND
MACHIN MECHAN  PUBSAF ROADEQ SHOPEQ  VEHICL AN
FA - Fixed Asset (Equip over $2,500, Land/Bldg over $5,000)

IN - Inventory (Equipment under $2,500, Land/Bldg under $5,000) Depariment: AS

Model Year:

3-Fair 4 - Poor 5-Ususe 6 - Mixed 7 -NIA

1 - New 2 - Good

8 - Undeveloped Land
01-General 06-Street
ADM - Administration

PR - Public Record/Fin.
BLNK - Blanket Insurance
EQGB - Building

EQDP - Data Processing
A -$25,000 & over

D - $500 - $1,000

ACRE EACH

PURC - Purchase GIFT - Gift

3000 - Chg for Service

01-General 08-Sireet

PER - Personnel

DP - Data Processing

9 - Developed Land

54-Cable 58-Parking  85-Veh Mnt

ITEM - itemized Insurance
EQGF - Equipment
EQVH - Vehicle
B - $10,000 - $25,000
E-$1-$500

Freight Cost:

SQFT OTHR
Acquisition Date:

Quantity:

3010 - Prop. Tax 3050 - Grani

_— —— =

Other Cost:  _

CTV - Cable TV
PM - Parking Fund

SLFI - Self insurance
EQGL - Land

C -$1,001 - $10,000

3070 - Gift 3080 - Tax Levy

54-Cable 58-Parking 85-Veh Mnt

161




Master Record
ltem Tag:
|tem Description:
Item Class:
(Circle One)
Item Type:

Serial Number:
Manufacture/Make:
Model:

Condition Code:

Owning Fund #:
Site:
Insurance:

Type:

Cost Group:

Base Cost:
Accessory Cost:
Unit of Measure:
Acquisltion Type:
Total Cost:

Source of Funds:
Vendor Name:
Invoice Number:
Check Number:
Purchase Account:

Fund of Purchase:

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
CAPITAL ASSETS
INPUT DATA COLLECTION FORM

Department: Developmental Services

Division:

BUILD COMPUT  CONST FURN IMPROV  INFRAS LAND
MACHIN  MECHAN PUBSAF  ROADEQ SHOPEQ VEHICL AV
FA - Fixed Asset (Equip over $2,500, Land/Bldg over $5,000)

IN - Inventory (Equipment under $2,500, Land/Bldg under $5,000) Department: DS

Model Year: __
1- New 2 - Good 3 - Fair 4 - Poor 5-Ususe 6-Mixed 7-NA

8 - Undeveloped Land 9 - Developed Land

01-General 06-Sireet 20-Secl8  23-Bik.Grant 51-Refuse  52-Sewer  85-Veh Mnt

ADM - Administration ENG - Engineering INS - Inspections  PL - Planning
BLNK - Blanket Insurance ITEM - llemized insurance SLFI - Self Insurance
EQGB - Building EQGF - Equipment EQEN - Engineering
EQRF - Refuse Fund EQSR - Sewer Fund EQVH - Vehicle Maint.
A - $25,000 & over B - $10,000 - $25,000 C - $1,001 - $10,000
D - $500 - $1,000 E - $1-$500
R T T FreightCost: _ , _ _ _, _ _ _ «____
S S OtherCost: __ , _ _ o _ ___ - _ _
ACRE EACH FEET SQFT OTHR
PURC - Purchase GIFT - Gift AcquisitonDate:  _ _ -~ _ -~ _ ___ __

’ f . Quantity:

3000 - Chg for Service 3010 - Prop. Tex 3050 - Grant 3070 - Gift 3080 - Tax Levy

Check Date: __ __ = .

01-General 06-Streel  20-Sect8  23-Blk.Grant 51-Refuse 52-Sewer  B5-Veh Mnt

Item 11.

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

162




Master Record
ltem Tag:
Item Description:
Iltem Class:
(Circle One)
ftem Type:

Serial Number:

Manufacture/Make: __

Model:
Condition Code:

Owning Fund #:
Site:

Insurance:
Type:

Cost Group:

Base Cost:
Accessory Cost:
Unit of Measure:
Acquisition Type:
Total Cosl:

Source of Funds:
Vendor Name:
Invoice Number:
Check Number:
Purchase Account:

Fund of Purchase:

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
CAPITAL ASSETS
INPUT DATA COLLECTION FORM

Department:
_______ Division:
BUILD COMPUT  CONST FURN IMPROV
MACHIN  MECHAN PUBSAF  ROADEQ SHOPEQ
FA - Fixed Asset (Equip over $2,500, Land/Bldg over $5,000)
IN - Inventory {Equipment under $2,500, Land/Bidg under $5,000)

Model Year:
2 - Good 3 - Fair 5 - Ususe

8 - Undeveloped Land 9 - Developed Land

4 - Poor
01 - General 85 - Vehicle Maintenance
FIRE - Fire

BLNK - Blanket Insurance ITEM - ltemized Insurance
EQGB - Building
A - $25,000 & over

EQGF - Equipment
B -$10,000 - $25,000

D - $500 - $1,000 E-$1-$500

e e Freight Cost: __,
[ R T S Other Cost: __,
ACRE EACH FEET SQFT OTHR

PURC - Purchase GIFT - Gift Acquisition Date:

Quantity:

1 t -

Fire Department

Fire

INFRAS LAND
VEHICL AN

Department: PS

6-Mixed 7-NA

SLFI - Self Insurance
EQVH - Vehicle Maint.
C - $1,001 - $10,000

3000 - Chg for Service

Check Date: _ = -

01 - General 85 - Vehicle Maintenance

3010 - Prop. Tax 3050 - Grant 3070 - Gift 3080 - Tax Levy

Item 11.

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12pt

163




Master Record
Item Tag:
Item Description:
ltem Class:
(Circle One)
Itern Type:

Serial Number:

Manufaciure/Make: __

Model:

Condilicn Code:

Owning Fund #:
Sile:

Insurance:

Type:

Cost Group:

Base Cost:
Accassory Cost:
Unit of Measure:
Acquisition Type:
Total Cost:

Source of Funds:
Vendor Name:
Invoice Number:
Check Number:
Purchase Account:

Fund of Purchase:

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
CAPITAL ASSETS
INPUT DATA COLLECTION FORM

Depariment: Human & Leisure Services

Division:

BUILD COMPUT  CONST FURN IMPROV  INFRAS LAND
MACHIN MECHAN RQADEQ SHOPEQ TRAIL VEHICL BOOKS
FA - Fixed Asset (Equip over $2,500, Land/Bldg over $5,000)

IN - Inventory (Equipment under $2,500, Land/Bldg under $5,000) Department: HL

Model Year: __

1 - New 2 - Good 3 - Fair 4 - Poor

8 - Undeveloped Land
61-Visitor
ADM-Admin  CEM-Cemetery

01-General

PRK - Parks LIB-Library PRNT-Print Shop REC-Recreation

BLNK - Blanket Insurance
EQGB - Building

EQGL - Library

A - $25,000 & over

D - $500 - $1,000

ACRE EACH FEET
PURC - Purchase GIFT - Gifl

3000 - Chg for Service 3010 -

5-Ususe 6 - Mixed 7-N/A

9 - Developed Land

85-Veh Mnt.
GOLF-Golf HRST-Hearst LIB-Library
V&T-Visitor & Tourism

62-Com Cltr
COM-Com.Ctr.

SLFI - Self Insurance

EQVH - Vshicle Mainl.

ITEM - ltemized Insurance
EQGF - Equipment
EQTR - Trails

B - $10,000 - $25,000

E - $1 - $500

C - $1,001 - $10,000

Freight Cost: __, . .

Other Cost: __,
SQFT OTHR
AcquistionDate: =~ _ -~ __ __ __

Quantity:

Prop. Tax 3050 - Grant 3070 - Gift 3080 - Tax Levy

__________ PONumber: __ __ _
______ Check Date: _ __ - _ = ___ ____
01-General 81-Visilor 62-Com Ctr 85-Veh Mnt,

Item 11.

Formatted: Font:.gDefaullt_)_Arial, 12 pt

164




Master Record
ltem Tag:
Item Description:
ltem Class:
(Circle One)
liem Type:

Serial Number:
Manufacture/Make:
Model:

Condilion Code:

Owning Fund #:
Site:

Insurance:
Type:

Cost Group:

Base Cost:
Accessory Cost:
Unit of Measure:
Acquisition Type:
Total Cost:

Source of Funds:
Vendor Name:
Invoice Number:
Check Number:
Purchase Account:

Fund of Purchase:

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
CAPITAL ASSETS
INPUT DATA COLLECTION FORM

Department: Police Department

Division: Police

BUILD COMPUT  CONST FURN IMPROV INFRAS LAND
MACHIN MECHAN  PUBSAF ROADEQ SHOPEQ  VEHICL AV
FA - Fixed Asset (Equip over $2,500, Land/Bldg over $5,000)

IN - Inventory {Equipment under $2,500, Land/Bldg under $5,000) Department: PS

Model Year:

1 - New 2 - Good 3 - Fair 4 - Poor §-Ususe 6-Mixed 7-NA

8 - Undevsioped Land 9 - Developed Land

58 - Parking
PM - Parking Meter

01 - General 85 - Vehicle Maintenance

POL - Palice
SLFI - Self Insurance

BLNK - Blanket Insurance ITEM - ltemized Insurance

EQGB - Building EQGF - Equipment EQVH - Vehicle Maint.
A - 825,000 & over B - $10,000 - $25,000 C -$1,001-$10,000
D - $500 - $1,000 E - §1-$500
I T T FreightCost: _ , _ _ _s __ _ _ «_ _
I T T, OtherCost: __ , _ _ s _ _ _ -~ _ _
ACRE EACH FEET SQFT OTHR
PURC - Purchase GIFT - Gift Acquisition Dale: _ __ = __ _ = __ __ __ __
. i = Quantlty:

3000 - Chg for Service 3010 - Prop. Tax 3050 - Grant 3070 - Gift 3080 - Tax Levy

Check Date: __ _ - -

01 - General 58 - Parking 85 - Vehicle Maintenance

Item 11.

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

165




Master Record
ltem Tag:
llern Description:
ltem Class:
(Circle One)
Item Type:

Serial Number:
Manufacture/Make:
Model:

Candition Code:

Owning Fund #:
Site:

Insurance:

Type:

Cost Group:

Base Cosl:
Accessory Cost:
Unit of Measure:
Acquisition Type:
Total Cost:

Source of Funds:
Vendor Name:
Invoice Number:
Check Number:
Purchase Account:

Fund of Purchase:

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
CAPITAL ASSETS
INPUT DATA COLLECTION FORM

Depariment; Public Works

Division:

BRIDGE BUILD COMPUT FURN IMPROV INFRAS LAND
MACHIN MECHAN ROADEQ SHOPEG  SIGNAL STORM VERICL
FA - Fixed Asset (Equip over $2,500, Land/Bldg over $5,000)

IN - Inventory (Equipment under $2,500, Land/Bldg under $5,000) Departmant: AS

Modsl Year:

1 - New 2 - Good 3 - Fair 4 - Poor 5-Ususe 6-Mixed 7-N/A
8 - Undeveloped Land 9 - Developed Land

01-General 06-Sireet  51-Refuse 52-Sewer  85-Veh Maint.

Il - Infrast. Sewer PB - Pub.Bidg. REF - Refuse STR - Streel

SW - Sewer TO - Trafiic VM - Veh. Maint.  WR - Water Rec.

BLNK - Blanket Insurance ITEM - ltemized Insurance SLFI - Self Insurance
EQGB-Building EQGF-Equipment EQRF-Refuse EQSB-Sewer Bldg
EQSI-Sew. Infras. EQSR-Sew. Equip. EQST-Street Infras. EQVH-Veh. Maint.

A - $25,000 & over B - $10,000 - $25,000 C - $1,001 - $10,000

D - $500 - $1,000 E-$1-8500

R T A Freight Cost: __ , _ _ _, _ __ _ - _ _

T S S OtherCost: __ , _ _ _, _ _ _ -« _ __

ACRE EACH FEET SQFT OTHR

PURC - Purchase GIFT - Gift Acquisition Date:  _ __ = __ _ T _ __ __ __
IR AT PRSI Quantity:

3000 - Chg for Service 3010 - Prop. Tax 3050 - Grant 3070 - Gift 3080 - Tax Levy

PO Number: _

Check Date: - -

01-General 06-Street  51-Refuse 52-Sewer  85-Veh Maint.

Item 11.

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

166




Item 11.

CITYOF CEDARFALLS
FIXED ASSETS
INPUT DATA COLLECTION FORM

DISPOSAL RECORD Date
By
tem Tag —
temClass
Split Count _
Quantity

Disposal Date ST S
Disposal Type —
Disposal Reason

Disposed To
Traded For

G/L Account SUTR S . S S

Receipt
Amount of Proceeds
Gain or Loss (Finance will calculate)

167




Bid/Quotation Selection Summary Form
Equipment Purchases, Vehicle Maintenance
And Data Processing

Department/Division:

Purchase Description:

Formal Bid or informal quotation received from the following vendors.

(Per Accounting and Purchasing Manunl Section 18: For any equipment purchase, vehicle maintenance, or
data processing purchase with a value of 2,500 or greater formal bids and/or informal quotations sholl be

licited by the department/divisi Please read Section 18 for full guidelines for each type of purchase.
Review may be done by Financial Services Division of bid doc Bid boc ts will be d in file
at department/division making the >$2,500 purchase for ten years. )
Vendor
Vendor Price Selected

Item 11.

Is this the lowest bid? Yes No

If not, why:

Employee Name:

Signature Date

Rec'd by Finance Division :

Signature Date

168




Item 11.

SECTION 19

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

19.01 POLICY:

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to prohibit its elected and appointed
officials and all employees {exceptseasenal)}-from engaging in any activity,
practice, or act that unlawfully conflicts with, or appears to conflict with, the
interests of the City. To comply with State law, the City of Cedar Falls requires
all full-time, permanent part-time and certain special purpose employees and
elected and appointed City officials to sign an annual declaration of compliance
with this Conflicts of Interest Policy. Since it is impossible to describe all of the
situations that may cause or give the appearance of an unlawful conflict of
interest, the prohibitions included in this policy are not intended to be exhaustive
and only include some of the more clear-cut examples. (See also Outside
Employment Policy and Conflicts of Interests Policy in the City of Cedar
Falls Personnel Manual, and lowa Code Chapter 68B)

19.02 COMPLIANCE:

1. Employees and City officials are expected to represent the City in a positive
and ethical manner. Thus, employees and City officials have an obligation to
avoid conflicts of interest and to refer questions and concerns about potential
conflicts to their supervisor. Employees and City officials are required to sign
a form containing a special statement acknowledging their understanding of
and adherence to this policy on an annual basis. This form must be returned
to the Financial Services Division by January 1% of every year. Employees
failing to return the form in a timely manner shall be subject to disciplinary
action.

2. Employees are not to engage in, directly or indirectly either on or off the job,
any conduct that is disloyal, disruptive, or damaging to the City. Such
prohibited activity also includes any illegal acts in restraint of trade.

3. Employees, other than off-duty police officers_and public safety officers, are
not to accept any employment relationship with any organization that does
business with the City. This prohibition on employment includes serving as
an advisor or consultant to any such organization, unless that activity is
conducted as a representative of the City. (See also Outside Employment
Policy and Conflicts of Interest Policy in the City of Cedar Falls
Personnel Manual, and lowa Code Chapter 68B) Employees must
discuss any outside employment and potential conflicts of interest with their
Department Director and City Attorney for a determination of
appropriateness of the outside activity or employment prior to the employee

169




Item 11.

engaging in the activity.

Employees and City officials must disclose any financial interest they or their
immediate family have in any firm, business or organization that does
business with the City. The City may require divestiture of such interest if it
deems the interest to be in conflict with its best interests.

lowa Code 362.5 states, “A city officer or employee shall not have an
interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or job of work or material or the
profits thereof or services to be furnished or performed for the officer's or
employee’s city. A contract entered into in violation of Section 11 is void. The
provisions of this section do not apply to contracts not otherwise permitted by
this section for the purchase of goods or services by a city having a
population of more than two thousand five hundred, which benefit a city
officer or employee, if the purchases benefiting that officer or employee do
not exceed a cumulative total purchase price of six thousand dollars in a
fiscal year.” It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls that, when the $6,000
threshold is reached in any fiscal year (July 1 through June 30), any further
potential purchases or contracts must be as a result of competitively bidding.

Finance and Business Operations will review vendor payments for potential
conflict of interest and if the $6,000 threshold is met during a fiscal year, it
shall be a breach of ethical standards for any employee to participate directly
or indirectly in a procurement when the employee knows that:

a. The employee or City official or their-any-mermberof-the-employees
immediate family has a financial interest pertaining to such
procurement.

b. A business organization in which the employee_or City official, or any
member of their the-employee’'s-immediate family has a financial
interest pertaining to such procurement.

c. Any other person, business, or organization with which the employee
or City official or any member of the-empleyee’stheir -immediate family
is negotiating or has an arrangement concerning prospective
employment is involved in such procurement.

Employees and City officials and their immediate family are not to accept
gifts or services, except those of nominal value, or any special discounts or
loans from any person or firm doing, or seeking to do, business with the City.
The meaning of gifts for purposes of this policy includes the acceptance of
entertainment, free long-distance travel and lodging, and objects or produce
with a value of $3.00 or higher.

Employees_and City officials are not to give, offer, or promise, directly or
indirectly, anything of value to any citizen, representative of a customer, of a
potential customer, business entity, organization, or of a financial institution

170




Item 11.

in connection with any transaction or business that the City may have with
such citizen, customer, potential customer, business entity, organization or
financial institution.

Employees and City officials may learn or become aware of information
about the City that, if known to the public, might affect the decision of a
reasonable investor to buy, sell, or hold securities issued by the City.
Employees and City officials_are prohibited from misusing such material
inside information prior to public disclosure by purchasing or selling the City’s
securities for their own account or for accounts of members of their
immediate family. In addition, employees_and City offcials are not to disclose
inside information to anyone, either inside or outside the organization, who
does not have a lawful right to know it.

Any conflict or potential conflict of interest must be disclosed in writing to the
City. Failure to do so will result in discipline, up to and including termination.

171




Item 11.

SECTION 20

UNIFORMS

20.01 DEFINITION:

Certain employees may be required to wear certain uniforms for safety and
identification purposes. In addition, an employee may be required to wear
specified safety gear, including but not limited to, safety shoes, boots and safety
glasses.

20.02 UNIFORMS:

1.

If an employee is required to wear a specific uniform, the uniforms will be
paid for by the City according to union contract or departmental policy. This
excludes employees covered under the Police Union Contract.

All uniforms that are purchased by the City for an employee shall be worn
during all work hours by the employee.

Uniforms will be purchased by blanket contracts per Section 9 of this
manual.

For employees covered under the Police Union Contract, a uniform
allowance will be provided in accordance with their uniform policy.

20.03 SAFETY EQUIPMENT:

1.

All safety equipment purchased will be in accordance with union contracts or
departmental policy and in accordance with Section 8 of this manual.

All safety equipment purchased by the City will be worn at all times by the
employee while performing his/her job duties.

172




SECTION 21

CELL PHONE ALLOWANCES

21.01 PURPOSE:

To establish a policy for the management and use of cellular telephones for City
employees.

21.02 CELL PHONES:

1. The City recognizes a need for the use of cellular telephones by City
employees in the performance of their duties. Department Directors will
determine which employees in their department require the use of cellular
telephones. It will be the responsibility of the Director to justify and budget for
the cellular phone allowance.

2. The City will supply a City-owned cellular telephone to some designated
areas including, public works shift supervisor personnel and certain other shift
employees. Other than these defined areas, the City will not provide a City-
owned cellular telephone to the employees designated by the Department
Directors but rather will provide the employee a monthly allowance in their
paycheck to offset the expense of a personal cellular telephone. The cellular
telephone they use will be their personal property and therefore the employee
will be responsible for the capital cost of the phone and the decision whether
to carry insurance on the phone at their own expense. The employee at his or
her own expense, may add extra services or equipment features as desired.

3. For the Mayor, all Department Directors, all Division Managers, and all
Supervisors that have been designated by the Director as required to carry a
cellular telephone, the monthly allowance shall be $45. This includes a $5
monthly equipment allowance as described below. These management
employees must be on call 24 hours, 7 days a week unless on authorized
vacation. If a management employee who is provided a cell phone allowance
chooses to turn the phone off on off-duty hours or chooses to not answer the
phone, they may lose their allowance and discipline may occur.

4. Specified positions, other than management employees that have been
designated by the Department Director, that are required to carry a cellular
telephone due to the fact that they are heavy daily user of cellular phones,
will also receive the allowance. This allowance may range from $15 to $45,
depending on the employee’s job requirements. This will also include the $5
monthly equipment allowance as described below. These positions will be
required to have the phone on at all times for City business while at work and
“if on call 24 hours, 7 days a week. If they do not have the phone on or

Item 11.

173




choose to not answer the phone, they may lose their allowance and discipline
may occur.

5. Neither in the case of the management employees, or non-management
employees, shall the allowance amount exceed the actual cost the employee
is paying for their cellular telephone service. If the amount is not over $40,
the employee will only be reimbursed up to the actual amount paid.

6. The equipment allowance for each employee will be $5 a month. This
equipment allowance can be used by the employee for the cost of the phone
or the cost of accessories (charges, belts, clips, etc.).

7. Employees will be allowed to make and receive personal calls on the cellular
phone since it is the employee’s personal property. However, these personal
calls shall not interfere with work as already provided by city policy.

8. A cellular telephone authorization form shall be completed by the employee
and reviewed and signed by Division Manager (if applicable) and Department
Director. The completed form shall then by forwarded to the Controller/City
Treasurer.

9. The allowance shall continue until the Controller/City Treasurer is notified in
writing by Department Director to discontinue the allowance or at a time that
the employee terminates employment with the City.

10. The employee must notify his or her own department and the Controller/City
Treasurer each time the cellular phone number or cellular phone provider is
changed.

11. Initially, the employee will be required to submit documentation verifying the
cellular telephone number and the cost of the plan to ensure that the
allowance does not exceed the allowance amount. . If an employee changes
their number, they shall be required to notify Financial Services immediately
and provide the appropriate documentation.

12.The $45 allowance has been determined to cover the cost of a basic plan.
On a periodic basis, the Financial Services Division will review the allowance
amount to ensure that it is a reasonable and fair allowance. The allowance
will be added to the second payroll of each month.

Item 11.

174




Cellular Telephone Authorization Request/Change Form

[1 New Application/Enroliment [ ] Change in Enrollment

Employee Name

Job Title

Department/Division

Work Phone

Cell Phone Number

Cell Phone Provider

Certification & Approvals

| certify that the above allowance will be used toward expenses | incur for cellular phone usage
and that | am responsible for the payment of any cost that exceeds the approved City
allowance. | also understand that | am responsible for keeping my cellular phone service
operational as long as | receive this allowance. | confirm that | will utilize the City Cellular
Phone Allowance Request/Change Form to notify City departments of changes to my cellular
phone number or provider. | understand and intend to comply with the City's Cellular Phone
Policy and Procedures. | understand that that contract provisions of any communication service
plan entered into user this program are my personal responsibility.

Employee Signature: Date:

Requested by: Date:
Dept./Div. Manager/Supervisor

Approved by: Date:
Department Director

For Administration Use:

Item 11.

Begin Date: Amount:
Date Processed: By:
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

175




Item 11.

CELLULAR TELEPHONE JUSTIFICATION (page-2)

Below are justifications for the required cellular telephone. Please answer all areas that apply to
you:

1. Are you required to be on call 24 hours a day, 7 days a week? If yes, please explain.

2. Does your position require you to spend a significant amount of time during your
workday outside your office or work area? If yes, please explain.

3. Does your position require you to travel frequently outside of the Cedar Falls area? |f
yes, please explain.

4. Does your position require you to supervise or oversee several different work sites at
various locations? If yes, please explain.

5. Does your position require you to be contacted frequently for critical decisions? If yes,
please explain.

176




Item 11.

SECTION 22

PROCUREMENT CARD PROGRAM

22.01 PURPOSE:

It is the intent of the procurement card program to provide users with an effective
and efficient way to simplify and expedite the process of paying numerous
vendors for approved purchases while insuring compliance with purchasing
policies and the policies and procedures of other internal service providers.

1. The program is intended to provide documentation of purchases at the
department level.

2. The program is intended to eliminate record keeping for vendors and expedite
payment for purchases.

3. The program is intended to eliminate numerous credit application forms and
related records required to set up and maintain charge accounts with
infrequently used vendors.

4. The use of procurement cards shall be in compliance with all other city
policies. It is the responsibility of each cardholder to comply with these
policies.

22.02 ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

1. The conduct of all City employees must meet the highest ethical standards,
and that standard is a part of the City’s procurement card program. All
participants in the program are responsible for conducting themselves in such
a way as to exemplify the public trust that they hold.

2. Financial Services:

a. ltis the responsibility of Financial Services to handle issues with the card
provider and cardholders regarding compliance with program policies.

b. Itis the responsibility of Financial Services to provide policy and
procedure revisions to each Department Administrative Assistant.

c. ltis the responsibility of Financial Services to recommend appropriate
action in the event of unauthorized use of a card.

d. Itis the responsibility of Financial Services to coordinate the card
application process and keep a record of all cardholders.

e. ltis the responsibility of Financial Services to coordinate training sessions
and keep a record of those who have completed training.

f.  Itis the responsibility of Financial Services to handle issues with the card
provider and cardholder regarding changes in cardholder status.

177




Item 11.

g. ltis the responsibility of Financial Services to handle questions
concerning payment procedures and transaction reports.

h. Itis the responsibility of Financial Services to process payments in
accordance with the program policies and the contract between the City
and the card provider, once the payment has been entered by the
department.

3. Department Administrative Assistant: Each work area including a cardholder
shall have a purchasing card Department Administrative Assistant appointed
by the Department Director.

a. The Department Administrative Assistant is the primary contact person
for Financial Services, and the card provider for all accounts in the
department/division that he or she represents.

b. ltis the responsibility of the Department Administrative Assistant to
ensure that the cardholders review their statement and submit their
receipts.

c. ltis the responsibility of the Department Administrative Assistant to
ensure that all costs are allocated and documentation is returned to
Financial Services as soon as possible after the cycle cutoff.

d. The Department Administrative Assistant will work with cardholders within
their departments to ensure the resolution of disputes in accounts within
his or her department/division.

e. ltis the responsibility of the Department Administrative Assistant to report
any discrepancies including disputes between the transaction report and
transaction receipts, including disputed items to Financial Services within
three business days after receipt of the report.

f. Itis the responsibility of the Department Administrative Assistant to notify
Financial Services when a cardholder in his or her department/division is
no longer eligible for the program or will no longer be participating in the
program.

g. ltis the responsibility of the Department Administrative Assistant to report
any variances from program policies to Financial Services.

4. Cardholder:

a. ltis the responsibility of each cardholder to know and to comply with
Procurement Card program policies and procedures, as well as ensure
purchases are made in accordance with the City’s Purchasing policies,
including bidding requirements.

b. Itis the responsibility of each cardholder to ensure that funds have been
properly budgeted and are available to pay for the items and/or services
being purchased.

178




c. ltis the responsibility of each cardholder to keep informed about policy

and procedure revision information.

d. ltis the responsibility of each cardholder to verify that the quantity and

quality of the items and/or services purchased are in compliance with the
agreement, whether verbal or written, with the vendor.

e. ltis the responsibility of each Cardholder to ensure that all disputes are

resolved in accordance with the program guidelines.

f. It is the responsibility of each cardholder to notify the vendor, when

applicable, that the purchase is tax exempt and to ensure that such taxes
are not added to the prices of items and/or services purchased.

g. ltis the responsibility of each cardholder to instruct the vendor to include
the required information on the shipping document.

h. Itis the responsibility of each cardholder to work with the Department
Administrative Assistant and resolve any discrepancies between the
transaction report and transaction receipts within three business working
days after receipt of the report.

i. Itis the responsibility of each cardholder to report any variances from
program policies to Financial Services.

22.03 APPLICATION AND CARD ISSUANCE PROCESS:

1.

Specific Full or Part time regular City employees may be designated by their
Division Manager or Department Director to be issued a procurement card by
submitting a completed application for procurement card to Financial
Services. Where special circumstances warrant, a temporary/seasonal
employee may be granted a procurement card following the special request of
a Department Director.

a. City employees will relinquish current city issued credit cards for the city
issued procurement cards.

b. Application must be approved by employee’s supervisor, Department
Director, and the Controller/City Treasurer.

¢. If the applicant is a Department Director, the Controller/City Treasurer
must approve the application.

2. The applicant will attend the next Procurement Card training session.

Applicants shall attend a training session prior to issuance of a card. Each
card applicant will be provided with a copy of the policies at the mandatory
training session.

After completion of training and submission of the agreement form, the card
will be given to the employee.

Seasonal employees that return are required to attend the training session
biennially.

Item 11.

179




22.04 SECURITY:
1. Procurement cards are the property of the City of Cedar Falls.
2. ltis the responsibility of the cardholder to keep the card in a safe location.

3. Carrying cards permanently with personal cards is discouraged because of
the possibility of its use in place of a personal credit card.

4. Cards are to be used only by the employees assigned to the card. The
authorized cardholder can make a purchase for another employee, but should
not “loan” his or her card to anyone.

5. Lost or stolen cards shall be immediately reported to Financial Services and
the credit card company.

6. Cardholders shall return cards to the Department Administrative Assistant or
Financial Services when employment with the City is terminated.

7. Cardholders will refrain from any use of the procurement card upon providing
notice of separation of employment, unless authorized by Department
Director.

22.05 TRANSACTION DOLLAR LIMITS AND EXCLUDED ITEMS:

1. Purchases are limited to the pre-determined dollar amount established by the
City's Policy at the time of application. Limits will include single card
transaction limit, per day limit, and per billing cycle limits.

a. Circumventing the transactions limit is not allowed. This means a
cardholder cannot have a merchant split a transaction into two or more
transactions that are less than single card transaction limit in order for the
purchases to be made with a procurement card. In the event that a
purchase cannot be processed through the normal disbursement process,
where a check is issued through accounts payable, there is an option
available that complies with the City’s purchasing policy. A cardholder
may request that the single card transaction limit is waived for a specific
purchase. For this limit to be waived the cardholder must complete a
Procurement Card Program Application/Enroliment and Account Change
Form, clearly mark “Procurement Card Limit Increase” and the reason for
the increase in the Comment Section of the form. The Application/Change
form is required to have approval from the Department Director and
Controller/City Treasurer. Once all of the required approvals are obtained,
the Application/Change form should be sent to Financial Services and
they will contact the credit card company to have the single transaction
limit increased to an appropriate dollar amount for a short time period to
allow the purchase to be processed. After the purchase has been made
Financial Services will contact the credit card company and change the
single transaction limit back to the original limit. A cardhoider that
chooses to use this method for a purchase must have the completed

Item 11.

180




Item 11.

Application/Change form to Financial Services one week before the
purchase is made, in order to allow time for the changes to be made with
the credit card company.

2. The procurement card shall not be used for the following:

a. Cash Advance.

b. Purchase of alcoholic beverages.

¢. Travel-related expenses related to spouses or other non-covered persons.
d

. ltems for personal use that would not be reimbursable by the City of Cedar
Falls.

e. Video rentals, “On Your Honor” bar purchases provided in hotel rooms.
f. Rental or lease of land or buildings.
g. Entertainment

The procurement card may be used on a limited basis for the purchase of gift
cards/gift certificates for prizes for wellness committee, fire prevention week,
library programs/events and visitor & tourism events.

The City procurement card shall not be used for personal identification or as
personal credit references.

Procurement cards should not be used at business where discounts are
offered on in house charge accounts.

Hardware, software, and services related to the City’s computer systems or
telephone systems should not be purchased with a procurement card except
by the Information Systems Division.

22.06 USE OF CARD AND TRANSACTION RECORDS:

1.

Receipts & Invoices: An original receipt or invoice from the vendor must
support each purchase transaction. Photocopies of receipts are not allowed.

a. Ifthe vendor sends receipts/invoices separately from the goods being
purchased, the invoice/receipt should be sent directly to the cardholder’s
department.

b. If for some reason the cardholder does not have documentation of a
transaction, he or she shall attach an explanation that includes the
required information along with a statement of missing receipt/invoice
form.

Each receipt shall include the following information:
a. Vendor name.

Date of transaction.

Amount of transaction.

a oo

Itemized descriptions of the items and services purchased.

181




1) If the procurement card receipt only includes the total purchase
amount, the cardholder shall attach a detailed invoice, packing slip, or
other vendor document with detailed information.

2) If an itemized receipt is not available, the cardholder shall attach a
written statement of missing receipt/invoice form for the items and
services purchased.

. Bids and Quotes: For purchases requiring bids or quotes from vendors that
are made with procurement cards, cardholders must attach this
documentation to their receipts and corresponding statement. See Section
11 of this manual for bid and quote requirements.

. Internet Transactions: Cardholders shall confirm the security of proposed
Internet order sites prior to placement of orders.

a. Cardholders shall obtain a confirmation receipt and/or detailed
documentation of each Internet transaction.

b. Cardholders shall furnish receipts and records of Internet transactions with
transaction reports.

. Conference, Training, and Travel Transactions: Cardholders shall confirm
budget approval prior to using cards for conference, training, or travel
purposes as specified in Section 17 of this manual. Prior to submitting any p-
card travel transactions, travelers must be authorized by the cardholder’s
Department Director and the Controller/City Treasurer. Upon approval a
travel card profile may be established.

. Telephone or Fax Orders: Cardholders shall confirm the security of proposed
telephone or fax orders prior to placement of orders.

a. Cardholders shall obtain a receipt and/or a detailed documentation of
each telephone or fax transaction. (i.e. packing slip from product
shipment, ask for receipt to mailed after order is placed, original
registration documentation)

b. Cardholders shall furnish receipts and records of telephone or fax
transactions with transaction reports.

. Pickup/In-Person Orders: Cardholders may use cards in accordance with
these policies at places of business accepting the cards.

a. Cardholders shall obtain a receipt and/or a detailed documentation of
each transaction.

b. Cardholders shall furnish receipts and other records of transactions with
transaction reports.

. Food ltems: Cardholders may use cards for food items in accordance with
purchasing policies and the policies of this program.

a. Cardholders shall obtain a detailed receipt or documentation of each
transaction. If a detailed receipt is not available, the cardholder must

Item 11.

182




Item 11.

complete a “No Detailed Meal Receipt” form in lieu of the receipt and
obtain the necessary approvals.

b. Cardholders shall furnish receipts and other records of transactions with
transaction reports.

c. Transaction reports for food items must indicate the purpose for which the
food was purchased.

d. The name and affiliation of any non-employees or officers must be
documented unless the food is purchased for an official reception or
similar event where more than twenty people are expected to be in
attendance.

e. Incidental beverages and snacks are not an allowable expense under City
policy.
f. Cardholders shall not add more than 15% gratuity to a meal transaction.

g. Cardholders are prohibited from purchasing alcoholic beverages with a
procurement card, per state regulations.

22.07 RECONCILIATION OF CHARGES:

1. A weekly reminder will be sent to the Department Administrative Assistant,
stating that the transactions are available for processing. At the end of the
billing cycle, an additional reminder is sent to reconcile the remaining
transactions.

2. Department Administrative Assistant will review their department transactions
for the billing period. When charges are reconciled, the transactions will be
allocated to the correct general ledger account, and receipts will be attached.
The Department Administrative Assistant will print the approval report, and it
must be signed by the cardholder and Department Director (or other
authorized signer). These signatures verify receipt of the materials and/or
services shown on the approval report. No one is authorized to sign in place
of the cardholder, unless the employee has left employment before the end of
the cycle.

3. Each Department Administrative Assistant will obtain the approval reports,
receipts, and other documents from the cardholders in his or her
department/division.

4. Disputed Charges: It is the responsibility of each cardholder to resolve any
discrepancies between the transaction report for his or her card and
transaction receipts. All discrepancies shall be reported to the cardholder’s
Department Administrative Assistant along with the reason for the
discrepancy, who was contacted to resolve the discrepancy, when they were
contacted, and the resolution. If the dispute cannot be resolved before the
processing deadline, the items in dispute should be expensed to the
department, and the following procedures followed:

183




a. ltis the cardholder’s responsibility to make an attempt to correct the error
with the vendor.

b. In the event a charge is in one month, and a credit is received in the next
billing cycle, the cardholder must submit documentation for the current
billing cycle.

c. Attach a copy of the documentation to the statement.

d. The cardholder is responsible to pursue the resolution with the assistance
of his or her Department Administrative Assistant. If the dispute is not
resolved, the cardholder shall provide Financial Services with
documentation of his or her efforts to resolve the dispute. Updated reports
will be filed monthly until the dispute is resolved.

e. Card administrators shall have the authority to resolve disputes on behalf
of cardholders in their respective work areas. This is intended to ensure
timely resolution of disputes.

f. If an item was returned to the vendor, but the credit not received during
the same billing cycle as the charge, the item must be expensed to the
department during the current period; the charge should be reversed when
the credit appears.

5. Each Department Administrative Assistant will submit the department/division
approval reports, complete the on line cost allocation, and return the approval
report with authorized signatures to Financial Services for payment.

6. Financial Services will process payments in accordance with the program
policies and the contract between the City and the card provider.

7. Sales Taxes: Purchases on the Procurement Card are tax-exempt.

a. If sales tax is charged in error, the cardholder should request a credit back
to the card from the vendor in the amount of the sales tax.

8. Credits and Return: All credits and returns will be credited back to the
Purchasing card. NO cash is to be returned to the cardholder.

22.08 PROGRAM VIOLATIONS:
1. Types of Violations:

a. Unallowable purchases: Reference Section 22.05.

b. Unacceptable Documentation: Each transaction shall be documented by
an itemized invoice or record including the required information
(Reference Section 22.06.2).

¢. Late submission of Procurement Card Reconciliation or Authorization for
Payment (Reference Section 22.07): Timely completion of reconciliation
documents and authorization for payment documents is critical to the
success of this program. The contract between City and the card provider
requires payment to be made as scheduled.

Item 11.

184




Item 11.

d. Unresolved ltem Disputes (Reference Section 22.07): Disputed charges
are paid, and then credited if the dispute is resolved in favor of the
cardholder. Failure to resolve disputed charges therefore results in
excess costs to departments.

e. Standards of Conduct Violations: Failure to act in accordance with
expected standards of conduct jeopardizes the public trust held by City
employees.

f. Security Violations: Reference Section 22.04.
2. Consequences of Program Violations:

a. Unallowable purchases: The cardholder will provide a written statement of
explanation.

b. Unacceptable Documentation: The cardholder will provide required
documentation upon notification by Financial Services.

c. Late Submission of Procurement Card Reconciliation Documents and
Failure to Resolve Disputes: Late submissions and/or failure to resolve
disputes may result in temporary de-activation of the card.

d. Standards of Conduct Violations: Conduct not complying with City
standards will be reported to the City Attorney. In addition to card
revocation, violations may result in disciplinary action up to and including
termination of City employment.

3. Repeated program violations will be reviewed by Financial Services and the
City Attorney. In addition to temporary de-activation of the card,
consequences of violation may include card revocation, payroll deduction for
unallowable purchases and expenses that were not reconciled, and/or
disciplinary action, which may include termination.

185




PROCUREMENT CARD PROGRAM
APPLICATION/ENROLLMENT AND ACCOUNT CHANGE FORM
Permanent City Employees are Eligible for this Program
[] New Application/Enroliment [] Change in Enroliment

Item 11.

First Name** Emp.
No.

Middle Employee

Name** Birthdate**:

Last Name**

of terrorism and money launderings activities.

** Full legal name and date of birth is required per the United States Secrecy Act and USA PATRIOT Act, as well
as with Canada's Proceeds of Crime and Terrorist Financing Act & Criminal Code in the fight against the funding

Job Title

Dept./Div.

Work
Telephone No.

Work Email
Address

Dept/Div.
Admin. Asst.

Travel Authorized? (Airfares & Hotels)

Account Authorization and Limits (to be completed by Department Head or designee)

Single Purchase

[] Yes [] No Limit $
Merchant Category Code Group Exclusions Billing Cycle
(indicate group codes): Limit $
CASH Comments:
Requested by:

Dept./Div. Manager/Supervisor Date
Approved by:

Department Director Date
Approved by:

Controller/City Treasurer Date
For Card Issuer/Program Administration Use:

Training Session Attended Purchasing Card Ordered

Date: I By: Date: | By:

Cardholder Account No. Last 4-Digits

186




Item 11.

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

PROCUREMENT CARD PROGRAM
CARDHOLDER AGREEMENT

The undersigned agrees to the following terms and conditions of the City of Cedar Falls
Procurement Card Program:

1.

10.
1.

12.

Employee:

| am acting as an agent for the City of Cedar Falls and will follow all applicable federal,
state, and City policies and procedures when using the procurement card.

| understand that this program is only for purchases for official City use.
| will strive to obtain the best value for the City.

| will coordinate purchases with the Department/Division Administrative Assistant to
assure that budgetary and other fiscal requirements are met.

I will turn in receipts to the Department/Division Administrative Assistant for all
transactions purchased with the Card. If I should return an item that was purchased with
the Card, the return will be credited to the Card and | will turn in the credit receipt to the
Department/Division Administrative Assistant.

| will notify the vendor, when applicable, that the purchase is tax exempt and will ensure
that such taxes are not added to the prices of items and/or services purchased.

| understand and agree to follow the policies and procedures of the City of Cedar Falls
Procurement Card Program.

| have fully reviewed and understand and agree to the terms and conditions as provided
by the Card Issuer.

| understand that | am personally responsible for the Card issued to me. | accept full
and complete responsibility for the use of this card in accordance with this Agreement. |
understand that | may be held personally liable, including possible discipline, for any
unauthorized use or abuse of the Card by me or by others with my permission or
knowledge. See Section 22 Procurement Card Program of the Accounting Policies and
Procedures and Purchasing Manual.

| authorize my Department/Division Administrative Assistant to act on my behalf in
resolution of disputed charges.

| will report a missing or stolen card within 24 hours of discovery of loss, to USBank and
to Financial Services.

I will surrender my card when requested by the Financial Services or upon separation
from employment with the City.

Signature Date

Printed Name

187




Written Statement for Missing P-Card Receipt/Invoice

I acknowledge that I have not provided a receipt/invoice in accordance with City
Procurement Card Policy 22.06. I understand that the City uses receipts to document the
type of expense, the appropriateness of the expense, and the reasonableness of the expense.
In lieu of the required receipt, I will attest with my signature below that the item(s)
purchased or service provided was a City business expense and that there were no

prohibited purchases included in the purchase.

Description of Purchase (detailed):

Date of Purchase: Amount of Purchase: $

Signature of Employee:

Printed Name of Employee:

Supervisor Approval:

Controller/City Treasurer Approval:

Date:

Item 11.

188




Item 11.

Violation to Procurement Card Program
Written Statement for Unallowable Purchases
Procurement Card Policy Sec 22.08.2(a)

I acknowledge that I have purchased unallowable item(s) on my City of Cedar Falls Procurement
card in violation of Procurement Card Policy 22.05 Transaction Dollar Limits & Excluded Items:
“Items for personal use that would not be reimbursable by the City of Cedar Falls.”

My explanation of what happened is as follows (attach additional sheet if needed):

I will attest with my signature below that the item(s) purchased or service provided was not a
City business expense and that [ have reimbursed the City $ for these items (copies

of receipts attached). I also understand that for future. repeated violations of the policy could

result in disciplinary action, which may include termination.

Date of Purchase: Amount of Purchase:

Description of Purchase:

Signature of Employee: Date:

Printed Name of Employee:

Supervisor Approval: Date:

Controller/City Treasurer Approval: Date:

189




Item 11.

SECTION 23

CASH RECEIPTS

23.01 INTRODUCTION:

All divisions of the City of Cedar Falls that receive different forms of payment for
goods and/or services are required to comply with certain Internal Controls to
safeguard these payments. The division may accept the following forms of
payment:

Cash

Bank checks

Money orders

Cashier checks

Credit Cards (VISA, MasterCard, American Express and Discover
credit cards)

e & o ©o @

Divisions are not allowed to establish GoFundMe, PayPal or other online
payment accounts to accept payments for goods and/or services. Divisions may
submit a request to Finance and Business Operations and if deemed necessary
the account shall be established through their office.

23.02 PROCEDURE:

1.

For every payment transaction, pre-numbered receipts must be issued.
Copy 1 - Customer

Copy 2 - Division retains

Copy 3 - Sent to Financial Services Division with the cash deposit

A copy of a computer generated cash receipts list can be sent to Financial
Services if your particular receipts do not have three (3) copies.

The employee accepting the payment must sign the receipt.

Divisions must balance payments daily.

Payments and the corresponding receipts must be deposited in Financial
Services daily. If a division does not accumulate $100 daily, they may make
deposits to Financial Services following the natural cycle of that division's

receipts.

The Financial Services employees must balance the payments with the
receipts on a daily basis.

The Financial Services Division must deposit cash receipts in the bank daily.

190




Item 11.

The Financial Services Division must keep on file in numerical order their
copy of the Division's receipt.

On a random basis, a representative from the Financial Services Division
may audit the cash receipt process, count cash on hand, and balance cash
to receipts for that day. Applicable inventory will also be counted.

191




Item 11.

SECTION 24

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

24.01 INTRODUCTION:

The City of Cedar Falls bills individuals for the use of the transfer station,
garbage dumpster pick-up, fire inspections, building inspections, engineering
inspections, and other miscellaneous services provided by the City.

24.02 PROCEDURE:
1. Department Responsibilities:

a. The individual departments that charge citizens of Cedar Falls for
miscellaneous services will provide Financial Services with the
information needed to bill their customers.

1) The departments will provide a list of customers, customer number,
date and description of services rendered, and amount due. Each
list will be approved and signed by an authorized individual.

2)—All-ether deparments-and-divisions-willcomplete-the-acecounis
recoivable sharge-form-

3)2)Departments will provide Financial Services with new customer
information and changes to existing customers.

b. Financial Services Division will print aged accounts receivable listings
monthly to check for outstanding bills and provide that to departments.

c. Financial Services with the coordination of the departments will collect
overdue bills.

d. It is the department's responsibility to avoid duplicate billings and make
sure that if a customer pays for the service with cash that a bill is not
sent for the same service.

2. Finance & Business Operations responsibilities:

a. Financial Services will recompute the lists and charge forms and check
for appropriate signatures.

192




o

—h

Financial Services will enter the customer and charge information in the

computer.

Financial Services will print the invoices monthly and mail to the

customers.

Financial Services will receive payments in the mail, post the cash
receipts, and credit accounts receivable to remove the bill from the
outstanding accounts receivable list.

Financial Services will run and mail monthly statements to all customers.

A late charge of 1 1/2% per month will be charged any bill that is older
than 30 days.

If a department determines they cannot collect an overdue bill within 120
days, Financial Services will submit the bill to a collection agency or the
State of lowa Department of Administrative Services (DAS) Income
Offset Program, in accordance with lowa Code chapter 8A.504 and 11
lowa Administrative Cade (IAC) 40.

1)

Financial Services will give written notice to the debtor that the City
intends to submit the debt owed by the debtor to a collection
agency or (DAS) Income Offset Program. The notice must:

Explain the basis for the City’s claim to the debt;

Inform the debtor that the City intends to send the debt to a
collection agency or DAS Income Offset Program,;

Inform the debtor that the debtor has 30 days (after the date
the City mailed the notice of the proposed action to the
debtor) to contact the City Financial Services Division to
contest the debt owed the City;

Inform the debtor that failure to contact City Financial
Services Division within the required time will result in the
debt being turned over to the collection agency or DAS
Income Offset Program.

2) Once a bill has been submitted to the collection agency or DAS
Income Offset Program, City employees in the affected divisions
will no longer negotiate with the customer without contacting
Financial Services Division.

All questions from customers whose accounts have been submitted
to the collection agency or DAS Income Offset Program must be
referred to the Financial Services Division. If a customer contacts

Item 11.

193




4)

6)

Item 11.

divisions about such an account, the divisions must contact
Financial Services.

The Controller/City Treasurer has the authority to void outstanding
bills based on information received from the divisions.

5) The Controller/City Treasurer will contact the collection agency or
DAS with the authorization to void outstanding bills.

State of lowa Department of Administrative Services (DAS) Income

Offset
i

Program:

City will receive notification from DAS when a debt is
identified to match a Social Security number or Federal
Employer Tax Identification number payments issued by
State of lowa to debtor. Upon notification, City must send
written notice to the debtor that the City intends apply the
debtor’s State tax refund or other State of lowa payment
against the debt;

The notice shall consist of the following in accordance with
11 lowa Administrative Code 40.4(4) :

a. Written notification by first class mail explaining the
basis for the City’s claim to the debt.

b. Inform the debtor that the City intends to apply the
debtor's State tax refund or other State of lowa
payment against the debt.

c. Inform the debtor they have the right to contest the
matter by requesting an administrative hearing with
the City. That the hearing shall determine the merits
of whether to withhold the debtors State tax refund or
other State of lowa payment.

d. If such request is made, it must be within 15 days of
the date of the mailing of the notice.

e. Inform the debtor that failure to request an
administrative hearing within the required time, or
failure to appear at such hearing, shall constitute a
waiver to the right to a hearing and will result in
income setoff of the debt against the debtor's State
tax refund or other State of lowa payment.

A request for an administrative hearing must be made in
writing to the City Clerk or designee. The request shall be
reviewed to determine whether to apply the debtors State tax
refund or other State of lowa payment towards the debt.

Notice of Hearing after Request by Debtor in accordance
with lowa Code chapter 17A shall:
a) Inform the debtor of the time, date and the place for the

194




vi.

vii.

hearing.

b) Inform the debtor the hearing shall be conducted before
the Director of Finance and Business Operations or
designee, and shall be limited to a determination of
whether to apply the debtors State tax refund or other
State of lowa payment towards the debt.

c) Provide the debtor with a pre-hearing contact person.

d) Inform the debtor that after the hearing, the City will
mail to the debtor a written decision as to whether the
debt is owed and the amount;

e) However, no such notice need be given should the
debtor or a designated representative of the debtor fail
to appear at such hearing.

Post Hearing Procedure:
a) Advise the debtor of the hearing decision.

b) Inform the debtor that if the debtor disagrees with the
decision of the Director of Finance and Business
Operations or designee, the debtor may file a petition
for a contested case under lowa Code chapter
17A.12(3).

c) Inform the debtor that the petition for a contested case
must be filed within 15 days after the debtor receives a
copy of the City's decision.

Notice of Petition after Request by Debtor in accordance
with lowa Code chapter 17A.12(3) shall:

f)  Inform the debtor of the time, date and the place for the
petition hearing.

@) Inform the debtor the petition hearing shall be
conducted before the Administrative Committee. The
Administrative Committee will take the necessary steps
to review and investigate the petition and will issue a
written, final, and binding decision.

h) Provide the debtor with a pre-hearing contact person.

i)  Inform the debtor that after the petition hearing, the City
will mail to the debtor a written final decision as to
whether the debt is owed and the amount;

i) However, no such notice need be given should the
debtor or a designated representative of the debtor fail
to appear at such hearing.

City shall notify via facsimile DAS Income Offset Program

Item 11.

195




Item 11.

within 45 days of receiving notification in 24.02.2g(6(i)), the
amount required to satisfy the debtor’s debt or to release the
funds to the debtor. DAS Income Offset will make offset, if
applicable, and refund any balance due to debtor.

196




SECTION 25

PAYROLL

25.01 INTRODUCTION.:

The City of Cedar Falls collects time worked by employees and processes payroll
on a bi-weekly basis.

25.02 DEPARTMENT RESPONSIBILITIES:

1.

Each department is responsible for keeping track of the time worked by their
employees.

Each pay period the employee completes a time sheet and signs it. It then is
signed by the authorized supervisor for that department. The timesheet
should include the time spent each day by the employee on certain payroll
tasks codes as developed by their department.

The time sheets are entered into the payroll system by the departments and
sopies-of-the timesheets shall be delivered to Financial Services.

All new employees must complete personnel action sheets and provide the
Financial Services Division with new employee information before they can
be entered into the computer to receive a paycheck.

25.03 FINANCIAL SERVICES RESPONSIBILITIES:

1.

A Financial Services employee scans the time sheets and checks them for
compliance with City policies and procedures.

A Financial Services employee enters any employee changes into the
computer.

Financial Services employees check the changes for accuracy.

After it is determined that the information is correct, the direct deposit
transfer is done and checks are printed. _The Controller/City Treasurer or
deignee transmits the direct deposit to the bank. The controls listed in
Section 7.03 2b that exist over the regular checks also exist over paychecks.

Financial Services employees electronically sign the checks and stuff them
into envelopes. The Financial Services employees also print the direct
deposit stubs and stuff them into envelopes.

Item 11.

197




Item 11.

6. The envelopes with the checks and direct deposit stubs are stored in the
locked vault until Friday morning of payroll when the Controller/City
Treasurer or his/her designee distributes the checks to the pre-approved
departmental employee who then distributes the checks to the employees.

7—Fhe-Controller/City Treasureror-designee-transmits-the-direct-depesit-te-the
banrk-
8.7. Financial Services employees complete all tax forms, write the checks or

electronically transmit the funds for taxes, FICA, insurance, etc., using the
Accounts Payable System described in Section 7.

198




Item 11.

SECTION 26

LOANS

26.01 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT LOANS:

1.

The Planning & Community Services Division periodically recommends to
the City Council consideration of loans to businesses in an effort to promote
economic development and job creation/retention in the City of Cedar Falls.

The loan agreement is completed and approved by the City’s legal counsel
prior to presentation to the City Council for approval.

After the City Council approves the loan agreement, the check is processed
following the procedures in Section 7.02.

Loan repayment schedules are prepared by Financial Services, and principal
and interest payments are monitored by Financial Services.

26.02 IOWA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY PROGRAM LOANS:

1.

The Planning & Community Services Division periodically assists businesses
in Cedar Falls in acquiring loans from the various programs through the lowa
Economic Development Authority .

The Planning & Community Services Division coordinates preparation of the
loan application documents, acquires all the appropriate signatures, and
presents all the documents to Council for approval.

After the Council approves the application documents, they are submitted to
the State of lowa. The state sends the loan to the City, the City deposits the
loan in the Economic Development Fund, and then a check is written to the

applicant. The check is processed following the procedures in Section 7.02.

Repayments of principal and interest are the responsibility of the applicant
and are paid by the applicant. For applicant loan funds, loan payments are
made to the City of Cedar Falls, and the City pays the State following the
procedures in Section 7.02.

The payments made by the applicant are monitored by the Planning &
Community Services Division.

199




SECTION 27

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING (TIF) POLICY

27.01 PURPOSE:

1. The City may create Urban Renewal Areas in accordance with Chapter 403
of the Code of lowa.

2. When it deems appropriate, City Council may approve Tax Increment
Financing (TIF) for a public or private project in accordance with the
applicable adopted Urban Renewal Plan guidelines. This policy sets forth
the procedures and policies to be used for TIF.

27.02 TAX INCREMENT FINANCING:

1. When an urban renewal area is legally created, all of the tax dollars on the
incremental value of the district will flow to the City, excluding the debt
services requirements by each taxing body.

2. These funds may be used to pay for improvements and/or land acquisitions
within that urban renewal area or other allowable uses as outlined in Jowa
Code Chapter 403 and as identified in each adopted Urban Renewal Plan.

3. Annually, the Director of Finance & Business Operations must certify to the
County Auditor the amount of debt in each of the TIF areas and the amount
of property tax dollars collected in that area. The Director of Finance &
Business Operations must also submit to the lowa Department of
Management the required annual TIF reports.

27.03 TAX INCREMENT FINANCING INCENTIVES:

1. In an effort to provide incentives for commercial development, the City
Council adopted a policy to encourage large-scale commercial/retail

development.

a. The minimum taxable valuation of the development must be
$15,000,000.

b. The City can provide the developer a 45% tax rebate (incentive) for up to
five years

c. The rebate would be used by the developer to pay infrastructure or other
eligible costs associated with the project.

d. The tax rebate will not exceed the actual cost of the infrastructure.

2. For industrial and office development, a tax abatement or rebate incentive

may be provided if approved by the Council.

a. The abatement or rebate schedule would generally be in the amount of
75% the first year, 60% the second year, 45% the third year, 30% the
fourth year, and 15% the fifth year.

Item 11.

200




Item 11.

b. After the fifth year of abatement/rebate, zero tax dollars would be
abated/rebated.

3. As special development projects are proposed to the City, the City Council

may decide to provide increased incentives, subject to the terms of an
approved Developmental Agreement.

27.04 INCENTIVE NEGOTIATIONS:

1.

2,

If a developer is interested in pursuing a project in the City of Cedar Falls,
the initial contact is with the Planning & Community Services Division.

The Departments of Community Development and Finance & Business
Operations will then negotiate with the developer on the amount of incentives
the City may be willing to provide, subject to City Council approval.

Once a tentative agreement is made between the City staff, including the
City Administrator, and the developer, a development agreement is prepared
by the City’s legal counsel.

This agreement is then approved by the City Council following applicable
legal proceedings.

201




Item 11.

SECTION 28

OUTSIDE AGENCY FUNDING

28.01 PURPOSE:

1. On annual basis outside agencies may apply to the City of Cedar Falls for
funding.

2. The funding amount will be presented to the City Council for approval
through the annual budget process.

3. Funding for outside agencies will not be provided for under the General
Fund, unless determined to be associated with a City operation funded in the
General Fund.

28.02 APPLICATION PROCEDURE:

1. The agency applying for funding should contact Finance & Business
Operations to determine which avenue they should pursue to request
funding.

2. The Director of Finance & Business Operations and Controller/City Treasurer
along with other applicable staff from other departments will determine
whether the agency should apply under the Tourism & Visitors Fund, the
Health Trust Fund, Economic Development Fund, Community Betterment
Fund, Community Block Grant Fund, or any other special fund.

3. Under special circumstances funding for large community capital projects
may occur under the City’s Capital Projects Fund or other unique funding
sources.

4. Project requests associated with the University of Northern lowa (UNI)
should be directed to Finance & Business Operations from the University's
Office of the Vice President of Administration and Finance or the Special
Assistant to the President for Board and Governmental Relations.

28.03 FUNDING SOURCES:

| 1. Health Trust Funding — Applications are submitted to the Health Trust Fund -« | Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.56", Hanging:

Board in October of each year. The Board uses a formula based on the g9
interest income derived off of trust assets to determine the amount of funding

available to be distributed. They present their recommended funding model

in February to the City Council as part of the annual budget process.

2. Economic Development Funding — Applications are submitted to the
Economic Development Committee in November of each year. The
Committee uses a formula based on hotel/motel tax revenue to determine the
amount of funding available each year. They present their recommended
funding model in February to the City Council as part of the annual budget
process.

202




Item 11.

3. Community Betterment Funding — Applications are submitted to the Visitors &
Tourism Board in November of each year. The Board uses a formula based
on hotel/motel tax revenue to determine the amount of funding available each
year. They present their recommended funding model in February to the City
Council as part of the annual budget process.

4. Community Block Grant Funding — Applications are received by the Planning
& Community Services Division each year. The amount of funding is
determined by the annual federal appropriate through the Block Grant
program. This funding is then presented to the City Council as part of the
annual budget process.

203




SECTION 29

DEBT MANAGEMENT

29.01 PURPOSE:

The City of Cedar Falls continues to have capital outiay needs across the
organization. In order to finance those capital outlays, the City of Cedar Falls
may issue long-term obligations. The purpose of this policy is to assist in
managing those debt issuance needs and to ensure proper procedures are
followed throughout the debt issuance process and thereafter in regards to spend
down of proceeds and compliance reporting.

29.02 DEFINITIONS:

“Advisors” means the City’s bond counsel, financial advisor, paying agent, and/or
rebate analyst.

“Code” means Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended.

“Credit Ratings” are independent ratings of the City's financial capacity and
insight into City’s organizational strengths and weaknesses as they pertain to
providing municipal services. Moody’s currently rate City of Cedar Falls debt.

“General Obligation Debt” typically referred to as G.O. debt is backed by the full-
faith and credit of the City which requires that sufficient tax revenue is generated
each year to pay all debt service on such debt. There is no statutory limit on the
amount of annual taxes that can be raised for payment of municipal debt service.

“Revenue Debt” means debt issued for purpose of City Enterprise Funds such as
Sanitary Sewer, Stormwater, and Refuse. Revenue debt is secured by the
annual revenues of the individual Enterprise Fund and therefore carries a riskier
credit rating and higher interest rates than the City's General Obligation debt.
Reserve funds and proof of excess annual payment capacity (debt service
coverage) are required when issuing Revenue Debt.

“Rules” means Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended, and the U.S. Treasury Regulations promulgated
thereunder.

29.03 DEBT PLANNING GUIDELINES:

1. Capital Financing Strategy - The City will seek to use current revenues (cash)
for capital outlays if the useful life of the improvement/equipment is less than five

Item 11.

204




years. Traditional debt will be utilized for capital improvements that are expected
to retain value and efficient functionality beyond five-ten years. This approach
will achieve a fair allocation of costs upon the current and future
beneficiaries/users of the capital investments.

If the financial environment stabilizes and alternative revenue sources become
available, the length of debt can be shortened and more capital outlays can shift
to current revenue resources to reduce interest costs.

Whenever possible, the City will leverage grant opportunities without straying
from pursuing the most essential capital projects.

The City will use Revenue Debt to fund Enterprise capital outlays if the
associated credit rating is strong and interest costs are only marginally higher
than a G.O. borrowing. See credit discussion below.

2. Credit Rating Strategy - The City seeks to maintain the highest possible credit
rating for its long-term General Obligation and Revenue debt that can be
reasonably achieved without compromising the delivery of basic City services.

The City’s current ratings are as follows.
Type of Debt Moody's Rating

General Obligation AatAaa
Sanitary Sewer Aa2

The City recognizes that access to the broad municipal debt markets is essential
to maintaining affordable interest costs for capital outlays. As municipal bond
market and credit agency requirements and expectations change, so too will the
City’s policies and procedures associated with debt issuances and administrative
compliance. The City will keep this program and council-directed policies
updated.

3. Debt Limit Calculation - Article XI, Section 3 of the State of lowa Constitution
limits the amount of debt outstanding at any time of any county, municipality or
other political subdivision to no more than 5% of the actual value of all taxable

property within the corporate limits, as taken from the last state and county tax
list. The debt limit can be further restricted if a municipality so chooses.

Item 11.

205




Item 11.

29.04 DEBT ADMINISTRATION POLICIES:

1. Responsible Parties:

a. The Director of Finance and Business Operations shall be the party
primarily responsible for ensuring that the City of Cedar Falls successfully
carries out its tax compliance requirements under applicable provisions of
the Rules with regard to all obligations associated with debt issuance.

The Director of Finance and Business Operations shall be assisted by the
Controller/City Treasurer and other staff and officials when appropriate
and at the Director’s discretion. Advisors may be engaged during the time
the bonds are outstanding for assistance in carrying out post-issuance tax
compliance requirements.

b. The Director of Finance and Business Operations shall be responsible
for assigning post-issuance tax compliance responsibilities to other staff
and to the Advisors. The Director of Finance and Business Operations
shall utilize such other professional service organizations as are
necessary to ensure compliance with the post-issuance tax compliance
requirements of the City of Cedar Falls. The Director of Finance and
Business Operations shall provide training and educational resources to
staff responsible for ensuring compliance with any portion of the tax
compliance requirements of this policy.

2. Tax Exempt Debt Compliance

The City of Cedar Falls tax-exempt governmental bonds must comply with
federal tax rules pertaining to expenditure of proceeds for qualified costs,
rate of expenditure, use of bond financed property, investment of
proceeds in compliance with arbitrage rules, and retention of records. As
an issuer of such bonds, the Governing Body of the City of Cedar Falls is
required by the terms of Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the U.S. Treasury Regulations
promulgated thereunder, to take certain actions subsequent to the
issuance of the bonds to ensure the continuing tax-exempt status of such
bonds. Further, Section 6001 of the Code and Section 1.6001-1(a) of the
Treasury Regulations impose record retention requirements on the City of
Cedar Falls with respect to its tax-exempt governmental bonds. This policy
is designed to ensure that the City of Cedar Falls complies with its tax
compliance obligations under applicable provisions of the Rules.

206




Item 11.

a. Expenditure of Bond Proceeds Process: The Director of Finance and
Business Operations shall review the resolution authorizing issuance for each
tax-exempt obligation, and shail:

vi.

vii.

viii.

obtain a computation of the yield on such issue from the City’s financial
advisor,

create a separate Project Fund (with as many sub-funds as shall be
necessary to allocate proceeds among the projects being funded by the
issue) into which the proceeds of issue shall be deposited;

review all requisitions, draw schedules, draw requests, invoices and bills
requesting payment from the Project Fund;

iv. determine whether payment from the Project Fund is appropriate, and if

so, make payment from the Project Fund (and appropriate sub-fund if
applicable);

maintain records of the payment requests and corresponding cancelled
checks showing payment;

consult with the Advisors to ensure that such expenditures are within the
sixty (60) day period prior to the date in which the City of Cedar Falls
made a “declaration of intent” to reimburse such costs or are preliminary
expenditures under the Code, in the event the City of Cedar Falls seeks to
utilize bond proceeds for costs that were incurred prior to the issuance of
the bonds;

maintain records showing the earnings on, and investment of, the Project
Fund;

ensure that investments acquired with proceeds are purchased at fair
market value; and

ix. identify bond proceeds or applicable debt service allocations that must be

invested with a yield-restriction and monitor the investments of any yield-
restricted funds to ensure that the yield on such investments does not
exceed the yield to which such investments are restricted.

b. Rate of Expenditure: The Director of Finance and Business Operations shall
ensure that the expenditure of bond proceeds will be monitored against the
expenditure expectations represented in the tax compliance certificate for such
bond issue to ensure that:

207




i. Five percent (5%) of the net sale proceeds were spent or committed
within six (6) months of the issue date;

i. Eighty-five percent (85%) of the net sale proceeds were spent within
three (3) years of the issue date; and

iii. The City of Cedar Falls proceeded with due diligence to complete the
project and fully spend the net sale proceeds.

Failure to meet the expected expenditure expectations represented in the tax
compliance certificate for such bond issue shall be documented and retained by
the City Clerk in the records for the bond issue.

c. Arbitrage Rules and Rebate Requirements: The Director of Finance and
Business Operations shall review the tax compliance certificate for each tax-
exempt obligation, and the expenditure records, and shall:

i. monitor and ensure that proceeds of each such issue are spent within
the temporary period set forth in such certificate;

ii. if the “small issuer” exception does not apply, monitor and ensure that
the proceeds are spent in accordance with one or more of the
applicable exceptions to rebate as set forth in such cerificate;

jii. not less than sixty (60) days prior to a required expenditure date confer

with bond counsel if it appears expenditures will fail to meet the
applicable temporary period or rebate exception expenditure
requirements of the Tax-Exemption Certificate;

iv. in the event of failure to meet a temporary period or rebate exception:
a. procure a timely computation of any rebate liability and, if

rebate is due, file a Form 8038-T and arrange for payment of
such rebate liability;

b. arrange for timely computation and payment of “yield
reduction payments” (as such term is defined in the Code and
Treasury Regulations), if applicable;

v. ensure that the investment of bond proceeds is made only in
permitted investments of the City of Cedar Falls as outlined in
lowa Code chapters 12B and 12C, and in the City’s
administrative policies,

Item 11.

208




Item 11.

vi. consult with the Advisors to ensure that the investment of bond
proceeds is performed in compliance with the arbitrage rules
and rebate requirements;

vii. consult with the Advisors to identify bond proceeds that must be
yield-restricted and shall monitor the investments of any yield-
restricted funds to ensure that the yield on such investments
does not exceed the yield to which such investments are
restricted;

viii.contact the Rebate Analyst (and, if appropriate, bond counsel)
prior to the fifth anniversary of the date of issuance of each
issue of bonds of the City of Cedar Falls and each fifth
anniversary thereafter to arrange for calculations and reports of
the rebate requirements with respect to such bonds; and

ix. if a rebate payment is required to be paid by the City of Cedar
Falls, the Director of Finance and Business Operations shall
prepare or cause to be prepared the appropriate form to be filed
with the IRS (Form 8038-T).

d. Filings with Internal Revenue Service: The Director of Finance and Business
Operations, with assistance from bond counsel, shall ensure that each issuance
of bonds is properly reported with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as required
by Section 149(e) of the Code. On the issue date of each series of bonds, the
Director of Finance and Business Operations shall consult with the Advisors to
identify the deadline to file the requisite IRS form for such issue.

e. Reporting the issuance of Tax-Exempt Bonds

The original issuance of a tax-exempt bond issue with an issue price of one

hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) or greater shall be reported on Form 8038-

G. The original issuance of a tax-exempt bond issue with an issue price less

than one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) shall be reported on Form 8038-

GC.

« Forms 8038-G and 8038-GC shall be filed by the City Clerk or bond counsel
no later than the 15th day of the 2nd calendar month following the quarter in
which the bonds were issued.

« The City Clerk shall consult with the Advisors to ensure the Form 8038-G is
accurately filled out.

f. Rebate Reporting Requirements
The Director of Finance and Business Operations shall contact the rebate analyst
prior to the 5th anniversary of the issue date on each series of bonds and each

209




5th anniversary thereafter to arrange for calculations of the rebate requirements
with respect to such bonds. If a rebate payment is required to be paid, the
Director of Finance and Business Operations shall prepare or cause to be
prepared a Form 8038-T, and submit such Form 8038-T to the IRS with the
required rebate payment.

If the City of Cedar Falls is authorized to recover a rebate payment previously
paid, the Director of Finance and Business Operations shall prepare or cause to
be prepared a Form 8038-R, with respect to such rebate recovery, and submit
such Form 8038-R to the IRS.

g. Use of Bond-Financed Property

The Director of Finance and Business Operations shall monitor the use of all
bond-financed facilities in order to determine whether private business uses of
bond-financed facilities have exceeded the limits set forth in Section 141(b) of the
Code (generally 10% of bond proceeds) as a result of leases and subleases,
licenses, management contracts, research contracts, naming rights agreements
or other arrangements that provide special legal entittements to nongovernmental
persons.

To this end, the Director of Finance and Business Operations shall:

i. maintain appropriate records and a list of all bond financed assets.
Such records shall include the actual amount of proceeds (including
investment earnings) spent on each of the bond financed assets;

ii. with respect to each bond financed asset, the Director of Finance
and Business Operations will monitor and confer with bond counsel
with respect to all proposed:

a. management contract

b. service agreements,

c. research contracts,

d. naming rights contracts,

e. leases or sub-leases,

f. joint venture, limited liability or partnership
arrangements,
sale of property,
h. any other change in use of such asset, or
i. output contracts (including retail and wholesale

requirements contracts

@

ii. maintain a copy of the proposed agreement, contract, lease or
arrangement, together with the response by bond counsel with
respect to the proposal for at least three (3) years after retirement
of all tax-exempt obligations issued to fund all or any portion of

Item 11.

210




bond financed assets, or obligations issued to refund those
obligations;

iv. provide training and educational resources to any staff member that
has the primary responsibility for the operation, maintenance, or
inspection of bond-financed facilities with regard to the limitations
on the private business use and on the private security or payments
with respect to bond-financed facilities;

v. ensure that no item of bond-financed property will be sold or
transferred to a nonexempt party without advance arrangement of a
“remedial action” under the applicable Treasury Regulations
and the Director of Finance and Business Operations shall consult
with bond counsel prior to the sale or transfer of any bond-financed
property; and

vi. Inthe event of an action with respect to a bond financed asset,
which may cause the private business tests or private loan
financing test to be met, the Director of Finance and Business
Operations shall contact bond counsel for advice and ensure timely
remedial action under IRS Regulation Sections 1.141-12.

h. Advance Refundings

The Director of Finance and Business Operations shall be responsible for the
following current, post issuance and record retention procedures with respect to
advance refunding bonds:

i. ldentify and select bonds to be advance refunded with advice from internal
financial personnel, the City's financial advisor and bond counsel.

ii. The Director of Finance and Business Operations shall identify, with advice
from the City's financial advisor and bond counsel, any possible federal tax
compliance issues prior to structuring any advance refunding.

iii. The Director of Finance and Business Operations shall review the structure
with the input of the City's financial advisor and bond counsel, of advance
refunding issues prior to the issuance to ensure (i) that the proposed
refunding is permitted pursuant to applicable federal tax requirements if there
has been a prior refunding of the original bond issue; (ii) that the proposed
issuance complies with federal income tax requirements which might impose
restrictions on the redemption date of the refunded bonds; (iii) that the
proposed issuance complies with federal income tax requirements which
allow for the proceeds and replacement proceeds of an issue to be invested
temporarily in higher yielding investments without causing the advance

Item 11.

211




Item 11.

refunding bonds to become “arbitrage bonds”; and (iv) that the proposed
issuance will not result in the issuer’s exploitation of the difference between
tax exempt and taxable interest rates to obtain an financial advantage nor
overburden the tax exempt market in a way that might be considered an
abusive transaction for federal tax purposes.

iv. The Director of Finance and Business Operations shall collect and
review data related to arbitrage yield restriction and rebate
requirements for advance refunding bonds. To ensure such
compliance, the Director of Finance and Business Operations shall
engage the City's rebate consultant to prepare a verification report in
connection with the advance refunding issuance. Said report shall
ensure said requirements are satisfied.

v. The Director of Finance and Business Operations shall, whenever possible,
purchase SLGS to size each advance refunding escrow. The City's financial
advisor and rebate consultant shall be included in the process of subscribing
SLGS. To the extent SLGS are not availabie for purchase, the Director of
Finance and Business Operations shall, in consultation with bond counsel,
comply with IRS regulations.

vi. To the extent the City of Cedar Falls elects to purchase a guaranteed
investment contract, the Director of Finance and Business Operations shall
ensure, after input from bond counsel, compliance with any bidding
requirements set forth by the IRS regulations.

vii. In determining the issue price for any advance refunding issuance, the

Director of Finance and Business Operations shall rely on the issue price
certification by the purchasing underwriter at closing.

viii. After the issuance of an advance refunding issue, the Director of Finance and
Business Operations shall ensure timely identification of violations of any
federal tax requirements and engage bond counsel in attempt to remediate
same in accordance with IRS regulations.

3. Record Retention

Management and retention of records related to bond issues shall be supervised
by the City Clerk. Records and documents pertaining to cancellation, transfer,
redemption or replacement of City of Cedar Falls bonds shall be preserved by
the City of Cedar Falls or its agent for a period of not less than eleven (11) years,
as set forth in lowa Code Section 76.10. The transcript prepared by bond
counsel and the bond financing record prepared by an independent financial

212




advisor shall be retained for ten (10) years beyond the final maturity or the full
defeasance due to a refunding; whichever occurs first. Other records shall be
retained during the period in which the bonds remain outstanding (plus any
refunding bonds) plus three (3) years. Records may be in the form of documents
and electronic copies of documents, appropriately indexed to specific bond
issues and compliance functions.

The Director of Finance and Business Operations in conjunction with the City
Clerk shall collect and retain the following records with respect to each issue of
bonds of the City of Cedar Falls and with respect to the facilities financed with the
proceeds of such bonds:

« audited financial statements of the City of Cedar Falls;

- appraisals, demand surveys, or feasibility studies, if any, with respect to the
facilities to be financed with the proceeds of such bonds;

» publications, brochures, and newspaper articles, if any, related to the bond
financing;

» trustee or paying agent statements;

« records of all investments and the gains (or losses) from such investments;

» paying agent or trustee statements regarding investments and investment
earnings;

« reimbursement resolutions, if any, and expenditures reimbursed with the
proceeds of such bonds;

« allocations of proceeds to expenditures (including costs of issuance) and the
dates and amounts of such expenditures (including any requisitions,
expenditure/draw schedules, expenditure/draw requests, invoices, bills, and
cancelled checks with respect to such expenditures;

« contracts entered into for the construction, renovation, or purchase of bond-
financed facilities;

o an asset list or schedule of all bond financed depreciable property and any
depreciation schedules with respect to such assets or property;

o records of the purchases and sales of bond-financed assets;

» private business uses of bond-financed facilities that arise subsequent to the
date of issue through leases and subleases, licenses, management contracts,
research contracts, naming rights agreements, or other arrangements that
provide special legal entitlements to nongovernmental persons and copies of
any such agreements or instruments; arbitrage rebate reports and records of
rebate and yield reduction payments, if any; resolutions or other actions, if
any, taken by the Governing Body subsequent to the date of issue with
respect to such bonds;

» formal elections authorized by the Code or Treasury Regulations that are
taken with respect to such bonds;

« relevant correspondence relating to such bonds;

Item 11.

213




Item 11.

» documents related to guaranteed investment contracts or certificates of
deposit, credit enhancement transactions, and financial derivatives entered
into subsequent to the date of issue;

» copies of the bond financing record provided by an independent financial
advisor;

» copies of any and all forms filed with the IRS for each series of bonds
including, as applicable, Form 8038-G or Form 8038-GC; and

« the official transcript prepared by bond counsel with respect to each series of
bonds of the City of Cedar Falls.

4. |dentification of Violations and Corrections

If, during the period the bonds remain outstanding, it is determined that a
violation of federal tax requirements may have occurred, the Director of Finance
and Business Operations shall immediately consult with the Advisors to ensure
that corrective or remedial action is taken. In consultation with bond counsel, the
Director of Finance and Business Operations shall become acquainted with the
remedial actions under Treasury Regulations, Section 1.141-12, to be utilized in
the event that private business use of bond-financed facilities exceeds the limits
under Section 141(b)(1) of the Code. In consultation with bond counsel, the
Director of Finance and Business Operations shall become acquainted with the
Tax Exempt Bonds Voluntary Closing Agreement Program, described in Notice
2008-31, 2008-11 I.R.B. 592, to be utilized as a means for an issuer to correct
any post-issuance infractions of the Rules with respect to its outstanding bonds.

5. Other Post-Issuance Actions

If, in consultation with the Advisors, the Director of Finance and Business
Operations determines that any additional action not identified in this policy must
be taken by the Director of Finance and Business Operations to ensure the
continuing tax-exempt status or “qualified” status of any issue of the City of
Cedar Falls’ bonds, the Director of Finance and Business Operations shall take
such action if the Director of Finance and Business Operations has the authority
to do so. If, after consultation with the Advisors, the Director of Finance and
Business Operations determines that this policy shall be amended or
supplemented to ensure the continuing tax-exempt status or “qualified” status of
any issue of the City of Cedar Falls’ bonds, the Director of Finance and Business
Operations shall follow the appropriate City of Cedar Falls policy or procedure
that this document be so amended or supplemented.

214




SECTION 30

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE POLICY

Section 30.01 PURPOSE:

This Continuing Disclosure Policy of the City of Cedar Falls is intended to ensure that
the City efficiently carries out its continuing disclosure obligations with respect to
securities it issues or guarantees pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12, as amended (the "Rule"),
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Section 30.02 BACKGROUND:

The Rule prohibits underwriters from offering bonds unless the issuer provides an
official statement and contractually promises to provide specified disclosures as
required in the Rule. To facilitate compliance with the Rule, each issuer must enter into
a continuing disclosure agreement with the purchaser or underwriter in connection with
each new issuance of obligations which fall within the Rule, thereby creating a
contractual promise on behalf of the issuer to provide the market with these disclosures.
The City is responsible for ensuring that all disclosure documents contain accurate
information. The SEC has asserted that, under Rule 10b-5, disclosure documents used
by municipal issuers, such as official statements, are subject to the prohibition against
false or misleading statements of material facts, including the omission of material facts
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances in which they
were made, not misleading.”

Section 30.03 OBLIGATIONS SUBJECT TO THE RULE:

Various offerings are fully or partially exempt from the continuing disclosure provisions
under the Rule. Offerings with an aggregate original principal amount of less than $1
million ("Small Offerings"), offerings sold prior to July 3, 1995 ("Old Offerings") and
offerings sold by an issuer directly to investors without using a broker, dealer, or
municipal securities dealer as an underwriter or placement agent ("Direct Offerings”) are
fully exempt from all continuing disclosure provisions under the Rule, unless the City
voluntarily agrees to provide continuing disclosures for an otherwise exempt Obligation.
SRF loans are considered "Direct Offerings" and therefore are not subject to this Policy.

Section 30.04 DEFINITIONS:

in addition to the terms defined above, the following capitalized terms shall have the
following meanings:

"Annual Reports" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 30.08 of this Policy.

Item 11.

215




“City” means the City of Cedar Falls, lowa.

"Disclosure Coordinator" means the individual designated in Section 30.05 of this
Policy.

"Disclosure Counsel" means legal counsel (which may be bond counsel for a series of
Obligations) engaged for the purpose of assisting the City in meeting its primary and
secondary market disclosure obligations.

"Financial Advisor" means a municipal advisor engaged for the purpose of assisting with
the City's structuring and sale of Obligations.

"Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the City, beginning on July 1 and ending on the
following June 30.

"EMMA" means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system of the MSRB.
Information regarding submissions to EMMA is available at http://emma.msrb.org/.

"Employee” means any person who, as part of his or her employment with the City, has
regular responsibility for the administration of matters related to Obligations.

"Listed Event" means any of the events listed in Exhibit A of this Policy.

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or any other board or entity
which succeeds to the functions currently delegated to the Municipal Securities
Rulemaking Board by the Rule.

"Obligations" means any securities issued by, or whose payment is guaranteed by the
City, that are subject to the Rule.

"Official Statement" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 30.06 of this Policy.

"SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

Section 30.05 DISCLOSURE COORDINATOR:

By adoption of this Policy, the City hereby appoints the Director of Finance and
Business Operations to act as the Disclosure Coordinator of the City.

Section 30.06 RESPONSIBILITIES:

The Disclosure Coordinator is responsible for the following tasks:

1. reviewing and approving all preliminary and final official statements
relating to the City's securities, together with any supplements, for which a

Item 11.

216




Item 11.

continuing disclosure undertaking is required (each, an "Official
Statement"), before such documents are released, in accordance with
Article 1l below;

2. reviewing annually the City's status and compliance with its continuing
disclosure undertakings, including filings of disclosure documents and
compliance with this Policy, in accordance with policies listed below;

3. serving as a "point person" for personnel to communicate issues or
information that should be or may need to be included in any disclosure
document;

4, recommending changes to this Policy to the City Council as necessary or
appropriate;

5. communicating with third parties, including coordination with outside

consultants assisting the City, in the preparation and dissemination of
disclosure documents to make sure that assigned tasks have been
completed on a timely basis and making sure that the filings are made on
a timely basis and are accurate;

6. in anticipation of preparing disclosure documents, soliciting "material"
information (as defined for purposes of federal securities law) from
identified City Employees;

7. maintaining records documenting the City's compliance with this Policy;
and
8. ensuring compliance with training procedures as described below.

The responsibilities of the Disclosure Coordinator to make certain filings with the MSRB
under Sections Annual Report Filings and Listed Event Filings may be delegated by
contract to a dissemination agent, under terms approved by the City Council.

Section 30.07 REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF OFFICIAL STATEMENTS:

Whenever the City issues Obligations, an Official Statement may be prepared. Each of
these Official Statements contains information relating to the City's finances. The
Disclosure Coordinator, along with any retained Disclosure Counsel and/or Financial
Advisor, shall have primary responsibility for ensuring that all such information is
accurate and not misleading in any material aspect. The Official Statement may also
include a certification that the information contained in the Official Statement regarding
the City, as of the date of each official statement, does not contain any untrue statement
of material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the information
contained in the Official Statement, in light of the circumstances under which it was

217




Item 11.

provided, not misleading. When undertaking review of a final or preliminary Official
Statement, the Disclosure Coordinator shall:

1. review the Official Statement to ensure that there are no material
misstatements or omissions of material information in any sections, that
the information relating to the City that is included in the Official Statement
is accurate, and that when necessary the information relating to the City
has been reviewed by a knowledgeable Employee or other appropriate
person;

2. draft, or cause to be drafted, for the Official Statement descriptions of (i)
any material current, pending or threatened litigation, (ii) any material
settlements or court orders and (iii) any other legal issues that are material
information for purposes of the Official Statement; and

3. report any significant disclosure issues and concerns to Disclosure
Counsel and/or Financial Advisor.

Section 30.08 SUBMISSION OF OFFICIAL STATEMENTS TO CITY COUNCIL FOR
APPROVAL:

The Disclosure Coordinator shall submit all Official Statements to the City Council for
review and approval. The City Council shall undertake such review as deemed
necessary by the City Council, following consultation with the Disclosure Coordinator, to
fulfill the City Council's responsibilities under applicable federal and state securities
laws.

Section 30.09 ANNUAL REPORT FILINGS OVERVIEW:

Under the continuing disclosure undertakings the City has entered into in connection
with certain of its debt offerings, the City is required each year to file Annual Reports
with the EMMA system in accordance with such undertakings. Such Annual Reports
are generally required to include: (1) certain updated financial and operating
information, and (2) the City's audited financial statements. The documents, reports
and notices required to be submitted to the MSRB pursuant to this Policy shall be
submitted through EMMA in an electronic format, and shall be accompanied by
identifying information, in the manner prescribed by the MSRB, or in such other manner
as is consistent with the Rule. A description of the format and information presently
prescribed to be filed with EMMA is included in Exhibit B. To facilitate the City's
continuing disclosure undertakings the Disclosure Coordinator shall:

1. maintain a record of all continuing disclosure obligations of the City using
a chart which shall identify and docket all continuing disclosure deadlines;

218




2. schedule email reminders on the EMMA website for each Obligation to
help ensure timely filing of financial disclosures;

3. ensure that preparation of the City's Annual Reports commences as
required under each specific continuing disclosure undertaking; and

4, comply with the City's obligation to file Annual Reports by submitting or
causing the required (i) annual financial information and operating data
and (ii) audited financial statements to be submitted to the MSRB through
EMMA.

(@) Ifthe event the City does not have audited financial
statements available by the filing deadline imposed by the
continuing disclosure agreement, the Disclosure Coordinator
shall instead submit the City's unaudited financial
statements, and shall file a "failure to file notice" in
accordance with the Rule. The failure to file notice shall
include information describing the nature and/or cause of the
failure to meet the contractual deadline and, if available, an
approximate timeframe for when the complete annual
financial information is expected to be submitted. Audited
financial statements shall be filed as soon as available.

(b)  All documents submitted to the MSRB through EMMA that
are identified by specific reference to documents already
available to the public on the MSRB's Internet website or
filed with the SEC shall be clearly identified by cross
reference.

Section 30.10 DISCLOSURE OF LISTED EVENTS:

Pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5)(i)(C), the City is obligated to disclose to the MSRB
notice of certain specified events with respect to the City's securities (a "Listed Event”).
All Employees shall be instructed to notify the Disclosure Coordinator if he or she
becomes aware of any of the Listed Events listed in the City's continuing disclosure
undertakings. The Disclosure Coordinator may consult with Disclosure Counsel, or the
Financial Advisor, to discuss the event and to determine whether a filing is required or is
otherwise desirable. If such a filing is deemed necessary, the Disclosure Coordinator
shall cause a notice of the Listed Event (a "Listed Event Notice") that complies with the
Rule to be prepared, and the Disclosure Coordinator shall file the Listed Event Notice as
required by the Rule as follows:

1. The Disclosure Coordinator shall monitor and periodically review the
Listed Events identified in Exhibit A, in connection with outstanding

Item 11.

219




obligations to determine whether any event has occurred that may require
a filing with EMMA.

2, The Disclosure Coordinator shall file, in a timely manner, a notice of the
occurrence of any Listed Event or Events with the MSRB via EMMA with
respect to any Obligations to which the Listed Event or Events are
applicable, in a timely manner not in excess of ten (10) business days
after the occurrence of the Listed Event.

3. The Disclosure Coordinator shall subscribe to any available ratings
agency alert service regarding the ratings of any Obligations.

Section 30.11 DOCUMENTS TO BE RETAINED:

The Disclosure Coordinator shall be responsible for retaining records demonstrating
compliance with this Policy. The Disclosure Coordinator shall retain an electronic or
paper file ("Transcript") for each continuing disclosure Annual Report that the City
completes. Each Transcript shall include final versions of documents submitted to the
MSRB through EMMA. The Transcript shall be maintained for the period that the
applicable Obligations are outstanding, with a minimum of three [3] years from the date
the Annual Report is posted on EMMA.

Section 30.12 EDUCATION AND TRAINING:

The City shall conduct periodic training to assist the Disclosure Coordinator, all
Employees and the City Council in understanding and performing their responsibilities
under this Policy. Such training sessions may include a review of this Policy, the City's
disclosure obligations under applicable federal and state securities laws, including the
Listed Events in Exhibit A, and the disclosure responsibilities and potential liabilities of
members of City staff and members of the City Council. Such training sessions may
include meetings with Disclosure Counsel, teleconferences, attendance at seminars or
conferences where disclosure responsibilities are discussed, and/or recorded
presentations.

Section 30.13 PUBLIC STATEMENTS REGARDING FINANCIAL INFORMATION:

Whenever the City makes statements or releases information relating to its finances to
the public that is reasonably expected to reach investors and the trading markets
(inctuding, without limitation, all Listed Event notices, statements in the annual financial
reports, and other financial reports and statements of the City), the City is obligated to
ensure that such statements and information are accurate and complete in all material
aspects. The Disclosure Coordinator shall assist the Mayor and City Coungil in
ensuring that such statements and information are accurate and not misleading in any
material aspect. Investment information published on the City's website may include a

Item 11.

220




cautionary statement at the request of the Disclosure Coordinator, substantially as
follows:

"The only information on this website that is posted with the intention of
reaching the investing public, including bondholders, rating analysts,
investment advisors, or any other members of the investment community,
is located on the "investor information” web pages. Other than the specific
information presented in the investor information web pages, no other
information on the City's website is intended to be the basis of or should
be relied upon in making an investment decision. Because each security
issued by the City or its related entities may involve different sources of
payment and security, you should refer for additional information to the
official statement and continuing disclosure filings for the particular
security. The information posted in the investor information web pages
speaks only as of its date.”

Item 11.

221




EXHIBIT A
LISTED EVENTS

The Disclosure Coordinator should periodically review this list to determine whether any
event has occurred that may require a filing with EMMA.

The following material events will trigger a requirement to file on EMMA within ten (10)
business days of their occurrence:

1. principal and interest payment delinquencies

2. non-payment related defaults, if material

3. unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulty
4. unscheduled draws on credit enhancements refiecting financial difficulty
5. substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform

6. adverse tax opinions or material events affecting the tax-exempt status of the
security

7. bond calls, if material, and tender offers
8. modifications to the rights of security holders, if material
9. defeasances

10. release, substitution or sale of property securing repayments of the securities, if
material

11. rating changes
12. bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer
13. the merger, consolidation, or acquisition, sale of all issuer assets, if material

14. appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee, if material

15. incurrence of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, if material, or
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar
terms of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of which affect
security holders, if material

Item 11.

222




16. default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar events under the terms of the financial obligation of the issuer or obligated
person, any of which reflect financial difficulties

Item 11.

223




EXHIBIT B

Suggested Practices in Submitting Annual Financial Information to EMMA*

Annual Financial Information is to be submitted to EMMA as follows:

° through the EMMA Dataport;

° in one or more electronic word-searchable portable document format files
configured to permit documents to be saved, viewed, printed and retransmitted
by electronic means ("properly formatted pdf file"); and

) indexed by the submitter as "Annual Financial Information and Operating Data" —

this EMMA indexing category should be used for all submissions consisting of
one or both parts of an annual financial information submission. A submission
should be indexed in EMMA by the submitter as "Annual Financial Information
and Operating Data" if it consists of complete annual financial information
(including audited financial statements and/or the CAFR).

If the audited financial statements have not been prepared in time to meet the

deadline:

file unaudited financial statements with a notice to the effect that the
unaudited financial statements are being provided pending completion of
audited financial statements and that the audited financial statements will
be submitted to EMMA when they have been prepared.

If annual financial information is provided by reference to other submitted
documents file:

a notice that includes specific reference to a document available on the
EMMA website or the SEC (such as, but not limited to, an official
statement), to the extent that such document in fact includes the
information required to be include in the annual financial information; and

the submitter should confirm that such document in fact is available from
the EMMA website or the SEC and should include in such notice (A) a
textual description of the document that includes the required information,
with sufficient detail for a reasonable person to determine the precise
document being referenced, and (B) an active hyperlink to the pdf file of
such document as then posted on the EMMA website or to the SEC's
EDGAR system; further, if such document includes audited financial
statements, the submitter should also index such submission as "Audited
Financial Statements or CAFR" in addition to (but not instead of) "Annual
Financial Information and Operating Data" unless the submitter submits
such audited financial statements separately to EMMA.

Item 11.

224




Failure to file notices are to be submitted to EMMA as follows:

o through the EMMA Dataport;

o as an electronic word-searchable and properly formatted pdf file; and
. indexed by the submitter as "Failure to Provide Annual Financial
Information."

* Procedures subject to change

Item 11.

225




SECTION 31

APPRAISAL OF PROPERTY AND THE ESTABLISHMENT OF JUST

COMPENSATION

31.01 PURPOSE:

Section 6B.54(2) of the lowa Code provides that an acquiring agency may
prescribe a procedure to waive the requirement for an appraisal “in cases
involving the acquisition of property with a low fair market value.” This policy
prescribes those procedures.

31.02 APPRAISALS OR COMPENSATION ESTIMATES TO BE UTILIZED TO
DETERMINE THE VALUE OF PROPERTY OR PROPERTY INTERESTS

BEING INVOLUNTARILY ACQUIRED FOR CITY PROJECTS:

1.

When the City of Cedar Falls intends to acquire private property or an
interest in private property by purchase or condemnation, and when the total
anticipated compensation for said property or property interest, as
determined by the Department of Community Development, is estimated to
be in excess of $10,000, the valuation of such property or property interest
shall be determined through the preparation of an appraisal.

When the City of Cedar Falls intends to acquire private property or an
interest in private property by purchase or condemnation, and when the total
anticipated compensation for said property or property interest, as
determined by the Department of Community Development, is estimated to
be $10,000 or less, the valuation of such property or property interest may, in
the discretion of the Director of Community Development, be determined
through either the preparation of an Appraisal or of a Compensation
Estimate.

For purposes of this policy, the following terms shall have the following
definitions:

Appraisal means a written report, prepared by an appraiser in conformance
with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP),
indicating the fair market value to be paid for the acquisition or taking of
private property, and/or of the damages to be paid for the acquisition or
taking of an interest in private property or of a part of such property.

Compensation Estimate means a valuation, prepared by an acquisition
agent and reported on the appropriate form, indicating the fair market value
to be paid for the acquisition or taking of private property, and/or of the
damages to be paid for the acquisition or taking of an interest in private

Item 11.

226




Item 11.

property or of a part of such property. A compensation estimate shall include
a breakdown of the valuation and/or damages. A compensation estimate is
not an appraisal.

31.03 ESTABLISHMENT OF FAIR MARKET VALUE FOR PROPERTY OR
PROPERTY INTERESTS BEING INVOLUNTARILY ACQUIRED FOR CITY
PROJECTS:

1. City Council to Establish Fair Market Value for the Acquisition of Property or
Property Interests in Excess of $10,000 in Value.

In those instances in which the compensation to be paid for a property or
property interest, as determined by appraisal, is in excess of $10,000, the
Department of Community Development shall prepare for Council
consideration a resolution establishing the fair market value of the property
or property interest at its appraised value. The City Council may in its
discretion, as to a particular property, delegate to the Director of Community
Development the authority to establish the fair market value of such property
in excess of $10,000 pursuant to appraisal.

2. Director of Community Development to Establish Fair Market Value for the
Acquisition of Property or Property Interests up to $10,000 in Value.

In those instances in which the compensation to be paid for a property or
property interest, as determined by compensation estimate, is $10,000 or
less, the Director of Community Development shall by written memorandum
directed to the City Administrator establish the fair market value of the
property or property interest at the value shown in the compensation
estimate. In those instances in which the fair market value was established
by the Department of Community Development pursuant to a Compensation
Estimate, an appraisal will not be required to support an administrative
settlement in excess of $10,000.

3. In making an offer to purchase a property or property interest, the
Department of Community Development shall not offer less than the fair
market value approved by the City Council or Director of Community
Development.

4. This policy does not apply to final purchase offers made immediately prior to
the condemnation of property. Final offers made prior to condemnation are
to be made by the attorney handling the condemnation, and are to be made
with the prior concurrence of, or subject to the approval of, the City Council,
and with the prior concurrence of the department with programmatic
responsibility for the project for which the property is being acquired.

227




All transactions involving the City's purchase of property or property interests
shall be subject to approval by the City Council, regardless whether or not
the property or property interest is acquired at the fair market value
established as herein provided, except as may otherwise be provided by City
ordinance or council policy.

31.04 RELEASE OF APPRAISALS, COMPENSATION ESTIMATE, OR APPRAISAL

INFORMATION:

1.

Provision of Appraisal or Compensation Estimate to Property Owner Prior to
Commencement of Negotiations to Acquire the Property or Property Interest.

Section 6B.45 of the lowa Code now requires that the acquiring agency mail
“a copy of the appraisal in its entirety”..."to the person, corporation, or entity
whose property or interest in the property is to be taken....at least ten days
prior to the date” of contact with the property owner.

The purchase offer for a property or property interest, together with the
appraisal or compensation estimate prepared by or on behalf of the City in
connection with the City’s proposed acquisition of that property or property
interest, shall be mailed to the person(s), corporation(s), or entity(ies) who
own or have an interest in the property by ordinary mail at their last known
addresses not less than 10 days before the City’s acquisition agent contacts
the property owner or other interest holders to commence negotiations for
the purchase of that property or property interest. The offer shall be
accompanied by a cover letter to the property owners and interest holders, in
which the Department of Community Development shall advise the property
owners or interest holders of the pendency of the 10 day waiting period
before the City's acquisition agent may contact them to begin negotiations,
and shall advise them of their right to waive the 10 day waiting period.

Release of Appraisal or Appraisal Information Under Chapter 22 of the lowa
Code, Open Records Law.

Chapter 22 of the lowa Code, the Open Records Law, provides that “every
person shall have the right to examine and copy public records.”

Section 22.7 of the Code outlines 36 exemptions to this requirement,
identifying documents which are to be kept confidential unless otherwise
ordered by the court or by the custodian of the records. Section 22.7 makes
appraisals or appraisal information confidential in the following described
circumstance:

Appraisals or appraisal information concerning the sale or purchase of real
or personal property for public purposes, prior to the sale or the execution of
any contracts for such sale or the submission of the appraisal to the property
owner or other interest holders as provided in lowa Code Section 6B.45.

Item 11.

228




Item 11.

The City will not provide copies of appraisals, compensation estimates, or
appraisal information to other parties for examination or copying prior to the
execution of any contract for such sale or the submission of the appraisal to
the property owner or other interest holders. City staff shall consult with the
City Attorney to ensure compliance with Chapter 22 of the lowa Code.

229




Item 12.

Ehpywd DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

'| e City of Cedar Falls
AN 220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Phone: 319-273-8600

Fax: 319-268-5126
% www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

Planning & Community Services Division

TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council
FROM:  Michelle Pezley, Planner IlI
DATE:  July 20, 2022

SUBJECT: CARES Act Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG-CV3)
Service Agency Contract- Operation Threshold Second Amendment

In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19. The Act provides
additional funds through the Community Development Block Grant to support activities
that prevent, prepare for, and respond to the pandemic. On September 11, 2020, the
City was notified that Cedar Falls would receive $157.775.00 from the Round 3 funds.
HUD prioritized Round 3 funds for households struggling to meet their rental or
mortgage obligations, allowing temporary assistance.

On February 1, 2021, the City Council approved the contract with Operation Threshold
for $135,000 to provide financial assistance for qualifying households for rent or
mortgage for six months. The remaining funds are used for administrative costs of City
Staff and INRCOG. January 3, 2022, City Council approved a first amendment
extending the contract until June 30, 2022. At that time, The Operation Threshold has
$20,000 remaining of their allotted $135,000. As of July 1, 2022, Operation Threshold
had $7,600 remaining.

July 7, 2022, Operation Threshold asked for a second extension. The extension would
allow them a chance to assist additional clients, while completing their monitoring visit
with INRCOG and closing all the program’s administrative files.

The City Attorney has reviewed the contract amendment. Staff recommends approving
the contract amendment with Operation Threshold.

Please contact staff with any questions. Thank you.

Xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development
Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager

230




SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This Second Amendment to Agreement for Professional Services is made and
entered into this ____ day of , 2022, by and between
the City of Cedar Falls, lowa (hereinafter “City”), and Operation Threshold
(hereinafter “Agency”).

WHEREAS, the City and the Agency entered into a certain Agreement for
Professional Services dated February 1, 2021, which established the terms and

conditions for Agency to administer rent and mortgage assistance to income-
qualified tenants and property owners that are in danger of becoming homeless as a
result of COVID-19, (hereinafter the “Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Agreement has a term that commenced on January 1%, 2021,
and is to expire on December 31, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the Agreement was amended on January 3, 2022 and expired on
June 30, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has requested additional time within which the
balance of the maximum allowable sum under the Agreement may be expended;
and ‘

WHEREAS, while the Agency has provided significant assistance to qualified
participants in conformance with the Agreement, not all of the maximum
allowable sum under the Agreement has been expended; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has requested additional time within which the
balance of the maximum allowable sum under the Agreement may be expended;
and

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the need for the additional funds still
exists and that the public interest will be served by an extension of the expiration
date for a period of six months; and

Item 12.

231




WHEREAS, pursuant to its terms, changes in the Agreement may be made by
written amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and
agreements set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree
as follows:

1. Unnumbered but intended to be designated as Section 4 of the Agreement
is hereby amended by striking that paragraph in its entirety and
substituting in lieu thereof the following:

4. COMPLETION DATE

The aforementioned services shall be accomplished beginning January 1st,
2021 and ending December 31, 2022.

2. Section 8, paragraph B of the Agreement is hereby amended by striking
that paragraph in its entirety and substituting in lieu thereof the following:

B. The AGENCY will submit at least quarterly progress reports providing
all information requested on Exhibit C. Quarterly reports shall be due April
15, 2021; July 15, 2021; October 15, 2021; January 15, 2022; April 15,
2022; July 15, 2022, October 15, 2022; and January 15, 2023 and shall be
submitted to:

Karen Howard

City Hall

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

3. The City and Agency hereby acknowledge and agree that all of the terms
and conditions of the Agreement, including Exhibits, remain the same and

Item 12.

232




are hereby ratified and confirmed, except as otherwise expressly amended
in this Second Amendment to Agreement for Professional Services.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and Agency have executed this First Amendment
to Agreement for Professional Services at Cedar Falls, lowa, effective as of the
date first stated above.

AGENCY: CITY:

OPERATION THRESHOLD | ) CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
BY:C > /2. ~7 - \\\ (i\w\) BY:

ATTESTM%VW ATTEST:

DATE: OF /2] [z0227 DATE:

Item 12.

233




Item 13.

Ehpywd DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

'| e City of Cedar Falls
AN 220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Phone: 319-273-8600

Fax: 319-268-5126
% www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

Planning & Community Services Division

TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council
FROM:  Michelle Pezley. Planner IlI
DATE:  July 22, 2022

SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant - Grant Administration and
Technical Services
Federal Fiscal Year 2022 (City FY2023)

Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME
funds. In Federal Fiscal Year 2022, funding for the entittement CDBG program is
$259,801. The City has contracted with INRCOG to help with administration and
technical services related to projects eligible for CDBG and HOME funds since February
2018. INRCOG’s support helps the City maintain these programs, without adding staff.

The City recently adopted the Federal Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Action Plan to include
the following activities:

FFY22 AAP
Activity Proposal

Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied $25,000
Rehabilitation
Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied $75,000
Rehabilitation
Prevent Homelessness Through Agency and Organizational $38,970
Support (Service Agencies — capped at 15% of annual allocation)
Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements (i.e Sidewalks, $112,871
Trail, Curb Cuts)
Neighborhood Recreational Amenities (i.e Parks, $20,000
Playgrounds, Trees)
CDBG Planning and Administration $51,960
(capped at 20% of annual allocation)

FFY22 Total (including carryover/reallocation) $323,801

234




Item 13.

INRCOG’s proposed services include CDBG general administration (preparing plans,
reports, and monitoring service agencies), technical support for housing rehabilitation
projects, as well as technical support for the Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements
(sewer lining) and the Sidewalk Replacement Project covering federal requirements for
construction management and Davis-Bacon wages verification. The total cost for
services outlined in the attached contract is $55,000

The City Attorney has reviewed the contract. Staff recommends continuing services
with INRCOG in FFY22 (City FY23). Attached is the proposed agreement with all
required attachments.

This proposal meets Organizational Goal #3: Deliver public services in a cost effective,
efficient, professional, and timely manner and Organizational Goal #4: Equitably
allocate the community’s resources in a manner which cost effectively accomplishes the
City’s mission.

Please contact me with any questions. Thank you.

Xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development
Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager

235




CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
SERVICE/PRODUCT AGREEMENT

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding Project Delivery under Federal Fiscal
Year 2022 in Cedar Falls, lowa

This Agreement is by and between lowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG), 229 East Park
Avenue, Waterloo. IA (“Contractor”) and the City of Cedar Falls, lowa (“City”), and is to be effective on the date last
signed by the Contractor or the City below.

1.0. Contractor’s Services

1.1. Contractor’s services shall consist only of the those services and/or products provided or supplied by
Contractor as defined in this Agreement and as listed on Exhibit “A” attached. (“Services” or "Scope of Services”)

1.2. Contractor shall not commence or perform any work outside the Scope of Services unless and until
authorized in writing by the City. No changes to the Scope of Services shall be valid unless agreed to by both the
Contractor and the City in writing. Any work performed or expenses incurred by the Contractor shall be conclusively
presumed to be part of the Scope of Services unless a written change order covering such work, and the cost of such
work, has been agreed to in advance. If Exhibit “"A” includes provisions for contingent services, such services shall
not be performed until written authorization is given by the City.

1.3. Contractor shali assign qualified and experienced personnel to perform the Services, and Contractor hereby
warrants to the City that Contractor has sufficient experience and financial resources to complete the Services
required by this Agreement. Where the Scope of Services identifies particular personnel who shall perform the
Services, such personnel shall remain assigned to provide the Services throughout the term of this Agreement,
unless otherwise approved in writing by the City. In the event that such particular personnel must be replaced,
Contractor agrees to replace such particular personnel with persons of equivalent or better qualifications, as
approved by the City.

1.4. Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner and in accordance with any schedule set forth in
Exhibit “A”. The Contractor and the City agree that time is of the essence with respect to Contractor's performance
under this Agreement.

1.5. Contractor warrants that its fulfillment of this Agreement will not infringe on or misappropriate the rights of any
third party, and that the Contractor has the complete right and full authority to convey ownership of the Services to
the City. Contractor shall obtain all required governmental and third-party licenses, approvals and permits for the
provision of Services, at Contractor’s cost.

1.6. The person signing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor represents and warrants that the person has
full and sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor.

2.0. Compensation

2.1. All bids and prices shall be shown in U.S. Dollars. All prices must remain firm for the duration of this
Agreement.

2.2, After inspection (if applicable) and acceptance by the City of Services, City shall pay Contractor in
accordance with the payment terms set forth in Exhibit “A”. The maximum amount of all payments for Services shall
be the amount set forth in Exhibit “A” which will not exceed $55,000 for projects delivery costs for CDBG funds,
unless additional Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, in which case the maximum amount of all
payments shall be adjusted accordingly.

Item 13.

236




23. Following acceptance of Services by the City, payment shall be made to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of a proper invoice. The invoice shall include, at a minimum, the name and address of the Contractor, the
invoice number, the date services were performed or goods were shipped, a general description of the services or
goods, total amount to be paid, any discounts or credits, and the net amount to be paid. The invoice shall be mailed
or emailed to the authorized representative of the City listed below, at the address listed below.

2.4, Expenses shall not be reimbursed to the Contractor unless specifically described in Exhibit “A”.

2.5. If services in addition to the Scope of Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, Contractor must
provide a separate invoice for such additional services before payment will be made.

2.6. If the City fails to make any payment when due to the Contractor, the Contractor may charge the City interest
on the unpaid balance at the rate of 5% per annum until paid. In addition, Contractor may, after giving at least seven
(7) days written notice to the City, suspend services under this Agreement until such unpaid balance is paid in full.

27. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City may withhold payment to Contractor for
faulty Services, or if the City is advised of liens or other claims against any Services, including products.

3.0. Taxes.

3.1. The City is exempt from all federal, State of lowa, and other states’ taxes on the purchase of products and
services used by the City within the State of lowa. The City shall provide tax exemption certification as requested.

3.2. Any charges for taxes from which the City is exempt will be deducted from invoices before payment is made.

4.0. Ownership and Use of Documents

4.1, All Services to be provided under this Agreement, and any invention, improvement, discovery, or innovation
(whether or not patentable) made, conceived or actually reduced to practice by Contractor in the performance of the
Scope of Services in this Agreement will be owned exclusively by the City, including all proprietary and intellectual
property rights. To the extent not automatically vested in the City, Contractor hereby assigns to the City all right, title
and interest in and to the Services, including, without limitation, copyright, patent and trade secret rights. Upon the
City’s request, Contractor shall execute any additional documents necessary for the City to perfect such ownership
rights. CLIENT shall have the right to use such instruments of service solely for the purpose of the benefiting the
CDBG Entitlement Program

4.2. Notwithstanding Section 4.1, Contractor retains ownership of its pre-existing and proprietary materials and
other intellectual property that may be incorporated into the Services.

4.3. Copies of City furnished data that may be relied upon by Contractor are limited to the printed copies (also
known as hard copies) that are delivered to the Contractor. Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or
of other formats that are furnished by the City to the Contractor are only for the convenience of the Contractor. Any
conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the Contractor’s sole risk.

44. During the term of this Agreement and following completion or termination of the Agreement, the Contractor
and any authorized Subcontractors shall maintain all accounting records and other documentation generated in
providing Services under this Agreement. The City or its designee shall be allowed to have access to such
information for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying during normal business hours for a period of five (5)
years after the final payment by the City, termination of this Agreement, or resolution of all matters under this
Agreement, whichever date is latest. No additional compensation shall be paid to Contractor for such retention or
inspection by the City or designee.

Item 13.

237




5.0. Termination.

5.1. The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving written notice to the
Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of the termination, at least thirty (30) calendar days
before the effective date of termination. In that event, all finished or unfinished Services, reports and materials
prepared or furnished by the Contractor shall, at the option of the City, become the City’s property. [f the Agreement
is terminated by the City as provided herein, the Contractor shall be paid for all Services which have been authorized,
approved and provided up to the effective date of termination. The City will not be subject to any termination fees
from the Contractor.

5.2. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) calendar days written notice in the event that the
other party fails to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party
initiating the termination.

6.0. Warranties.

6.1. Contractor represents and warrants that Services shall be performed in a manner consistent with the
standard of care of other professional service providers in a similar industry and application.

6.2. Contractor represents and warrants that products delivered as part of the Scope of Services, including each
component, shall be free of defects and shall conform to the quality standards of the applicable industry and shall
meet in all respects the requirements of the Scope of Services. If any defect or sign of deterioration is identified by
the City within one year after delivery which is not due to the acts or omissions of the City, Contractor shall, within 15
days after notification by the City, at Contractor's expense, repair, adjust or replace such items to the complete
satisfaction of the City.

6.3. Contractor shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all
Services under this Agreement. Contractor shall promptly and without charge, provide all corrective work necessary
as a result of Contractor’s acts, errors or omissions with respect to the quality and accuracy of Contractor’s Services.

6.4. Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons as a result of Contractor’s
acts, errors or omissions in performing the Services under this Agreement, and for any losses or costs to repair or
remedy any Services undertaken by the City as a result of any such acts, errors or omissions.

6.5. Contractor's obligations shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be waived by, the
availability or unavailability of any insurance, either by the City or by the Contractor. None of the provisions of this
Agreement shall be construed as a limitation on the City’s right to seek recovery of damages it suffers as a result of
Contractor’s fault or breach.

7.0. Warranties — Intellectual Property.

71. Contractor represents and warrants that the Services produced or provided to the City do not infringe upon
any copyright, trademark, trade name, trade dress patent, statutory, common law or any other right of any person or
entity.

7.2. Contractor represents and warrants that the Services, and the City's use of the same, and the exercise by the
City of the rights granted by this Agreement, shall not infringe upon any other work or violate the rights of publicity or
privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person or entity.

3 Contractor represents and warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute the
Services contemplated by this Agreement.

8.0. Disputes.

8.1. Should any dispute arise with respect to this Agreement, the parties agree to act immediately to resolve such
dispute. Time is of the essence in the resolution of disputes.

Item 13.

238




8.2. Contractor agrees that, the existence of a dispute notwithstanding, it will continue without delay to carry out
all of its responsibilities under this Agreement that are not affected by the dispute and the City shall continue to make
payment for all Services that are performed in conformance with this Agreement. Should the Contractor fail to
continue to perform its responsibilities regarding all non-disputed Services, without delay, any additional costs
incurred by the City or the Contractor as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the Contractor.

8.3. Should any dispute between the parties remain unresolved, the parties mutually agree to engage in
mediation prior to the filing of suit by either party. The cost of mediation shall be divided equally between the parties
except that each party shall be responsible for that party’s own expenses and attorney fees associated with
mediation. The City shall not engage in arbitration of any dispute.

9.0. Indemnification.

9.1. Contractor (including, for purposes of this Section, Contractor’'s agents, employees, subcontractors or others
working on behalf of Contractor) shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and its elected and appointed
officers, its employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, from any and all liability, loss, cost, damage and
expense (including reasonable attorney fees and court costs) resulting from, arising out of, or related in any way to
any claims, demands, actions or suits based upon or alleging personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and
property damages, arising out of or in any way connected or associated with the Contractor’s performance under this
Agreement.

9.2. Contractor’s duty of indemnification and to hold harmless includes, but is not limited to, Contractor's breach
or alleged breach of the warranties found in Sections 6.0 and 7.0 above, and shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.

9.3. It is specifically agreed between the parties that this Agreement is not intended to create in the public or any
member of the public, any third party beneficiary status or to authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to
maintain a suit for personal injuries or property damage.

10.0. Insurance.

Contractor shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit “B”
unless this insurance requirement is waived by the City in this Section.

The City may at any time during the term of this Agreement require proof of such insurance.

11.0. Compliance with Laws and Regulations.

11.1. Contractor certifies that in performing this Agreement it will comply with all applicable provisions of federal,
state and local laws, ordinances, rules, licenses and regulations.

11.2. Contractor is responsible for determining which products are considered to be hazardous chemicals under
applicable standards and to provide the most current Safety Data Sheet ("SDS") with the initial shipment of such
chemicals. Failure by Contractor to do so may be considered by the City to be delivery of a defective product and its
delivery may be refused. It is also the Contractor’s responsibility to provide to the City any updated or revised SDS
as it becomes available for any such hazardous chemicals sold and delivered to the City.

12.0. Independent Contractor.

Both parties shall act in their individual capacities in the performance of this Agreement and not as agents,
employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another. The employees or agents of one party shall not be
deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other for any purpose whatsoever.

Item 13.

239




13.0. Non-Collusion.

13.1. Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has employed any person to solicit or
procure this Agreement, nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of any compensation in
connection with the solicitation or procurement of this Agreement.

13.2. Contractor agrees that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding expressed or implied,
contemplating any division of compensation for Services provided under this Agreement, or in the participation in
such Services, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity, except as provided in this Agreement.

13.3. Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered
into any agreement, arrangement or understanding to collude or otherwise take any action in restraint of free
competitive procurement in connection with this Agreement.

14.0. Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity.

14.1. Contractor will not in the performance of this Agreement unlawfully discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment because of race, sex, color, creed, national origin, marital or familial status, religion, age,
disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, genetic information or veteran status, or any other classification
protected by federal, state, or local law.

14.2. Contractor shall inform all subcontractors and agents performing under this Agreement of this
nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirement and shall take reasonable steps to ensure their compliance with
the same.

15.0. No Conflict of Interest.

Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the term of this
Agreement that is a conflict of interest under lowa law. No employee, officer or agent of the Contractor shall
participate in the procurement or performance of this Agreement if a conflict of interest exists as to such person.
Should a conflict of interest arise during the term of this Agreement for Contractor or any employee, officer or agent of
Contractor, Contractor shall immediately notify the City, in which case this Agreement may be terminated and any
additional costs incurred by the City due to such termination shall be paid by Contractor or deducted from any sums
yet due to Contractor.

16.0. Force Majeure.

16.1. Force majeure shall be any of the following events: acts of God or the public enemy; compliance with any
order, rule, regulation, decree, or request of any governmental authority or agency or person purporting to act as
such; acts of war, public disorder, rebellion, terrorism, or sabotage; floods, hurricanes, or other storms; strikes or
labor disputes; public health emergency; or any other cause, whether or not of the class or kind specifically named or
referred to in this Agreement which is not within the reasonable control of the party affected. A delay in or failure of
performance by either party shall not constitute a default in performance nor be the basis for, or give rise to, any
claim for damages, if and to the extent such delay or failure is caused by force majeure.

16.2. The party who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated, within a period not to
exceed fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to provide notice to the other
party setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall remedy
such cause as soon as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the parties.

16.3. If a remedy to an event of force majeure cannot be agreed upon within a reasonable amount of time, this
Agreement may be terminated by either party.

Item 13.

240




17.0. Assignment.

No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Contractor without the prior written consent of the
City. The benefits of this Agreement may inure to Contractor's assigns, transferees, or successors in interest if
approved by the City in writing in advance, and if such assignee, transferees or successors agree in writing to be
bound by the terms of this Agreement.

18.0. Governing Law.

18.1. This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of
lowa, regardless of choice of law principles.

18.2, Venue for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Black Hawk County, lowa.

19.0. Discrepancy.

In the event that there are any discrepancies or differences between any terms or conditions of the Contractor’s bid or
quote and this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail, even if the Contractor’s bid or quote is incorporated into this
Agreement.

20.0 Public Record.

20.1.  This Agreement as well as Contractor’s bid or quote and all documents submitted with any such bid or quote
shall become public documents subject to lowa Code Chapter 22, the lowa Open Records Law. By submitting the
bid or quote or any document to the City in connection with such bid or quote, the submitting party recognizes this
and waives any claim against the City, its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and agents working on
behalf of the City, relating to the release of any bid or document submitted.

20.2. Each submitting party shall hold the City and its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and
agents working on behalf of the City, harmless from any claims arising from the release of any document or
information made available to the City related to or arising from the bidding or quoting process.

20.3. Notwithstanding Sections 20.1 and 20.2, protection from disclosure may apply to those elements of any
submittal that may be a trade secret, or confidential or proprietary information. Should the submitting party wish to
designate submittals as such, they must be clearly and prominently marked. The City shall make no determination as
to whether or not such documents are protected from disclosure under lowa Code Chapter 22. Rather, the City shall
endeavor to notify the submitter of any request for such information and the submitter shall be solely responsible for
asserting exemption from disclosure by obtaining a court order. As long as the City makes a good faith effort to notify
the submitter of a request for such information, the City and the City’s elected and appointed officers, the City’s
employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, shall not be liable for any damages resulting from such
disclosure, whether such disclosure is deemed required by law, by an order of court or administrative agency, or
occurs through inadvertence, mistake, or negligence.

21.0. Debarment.

21.1. Contractor hereby certifies, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
Agreement by any federal agency.

21.2. Contractor further certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the City or with the State of lowa.

22.0 Confidentiality of Shared Information.

No information shared between Contractor and the City in the performance of this Agreement shall be deemed
confidential unless clearly designated as such in writing by the party seeking confidentiality at the time of sharing. If

Item 13.

241




Item 13.

designated as confidential the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information except as necessary
for performance under this Agreement, unless or until written authorization for disclosure is given by the designating
party, or as required by law, or by an order of court or administrative agency. In the event of a dispute over the
confidentiality of shared information, the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of the designated information
until the issue of confidentiality is resolved. The duty to maintain the confidentiality of such information shall survive
the termination of this Agreement.

23.0. Entire Agreement.

23.1. This Agreement, and Exhibits, which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, contains the
entire agreement and understanding by and between the parties with respect to the subject matter, and no
representations, promises, agreements, or understandings, written or verbal, not contained in this Agreement, shall
be of any force or effect.

23.2. No change, modification or waiver of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing
and signed by the party against whom such change, modification or waiver is sought to be enforced.

24.0. Additional Terms.
241 None

25.0. Notices.

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization required to be provided shall be given or
provided to:

City: Contractor:

Name: __ Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP Name: _Brian Schoon, AICP

Title; Director of Community Development Title: Director of Development

Address: 220 Clay St. Cedar Falls, IA Address: 229 East Park Avenue, Waterloo, |A 50703
Telephone: _ (319) 268-5151 Telephone: (319) 235-0311 Ext. 138

Email: Stephanie.Sheetz@cedarfalls.com Email: bschoon@inrcog.org

242




Item 13.

In Witness Whereof, the City and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the last date listed
below.

CONTRACTOR

INR(_:OG: Kevin Blanshan, Executive Director of INRCOG

TS e

Its: Date: 7».25’,21

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

By:

Robert M. Green, Mayor

Attest: Date:

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

243




Item 13.

Exhibit A

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding: Project Delivery
Federal Fiscal Year 2022 Projects in Cedar Falls, lowa

SCOPE OF WORK
CDBG GRANT PROJECT DELIVERY FOR FFY 2022 CDBG PROJECTS
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

Overview

The lowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) is proposing to
complete project delivery to meet the requirements related to the Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) under which the City of Cedar Falls plans to utilize
funds to support service agencies; repair and rehabilitate housing units, both owner
occupied and renter occupied; as well as complete infrastructure and/or public access
projects.

Qualifications

Housing Rehabilitation and CDBG Experience

As a public agency created under Chapter 28E of the lowa Code, INRCOG serves a six-
county area. The City of Cedar Falls is a member in good standing our staff has built a
solid relationship with the City’s staff. We are located in close proximity to Cedar Falls
City Hall and we are very familiar with the community, including its infrastructure,
services and its elected and appointed officials.

Our agency is proud of the working relationships we have built with numerous federal
and state departments, as we have administered numerous programs on behalf of our
local government members. Included amongst those agencies are the US Department of
Commerce, Economic Development Administration; US Department of Agriculture;
Federal Highway and Federal Transit Administrations; Federal Emergency Management
Agency; lowa Economic Development Authority; lowa Department of Transportation;
lowa Department of Natural Resources; lowa Homeland Security and Emergency
Management; and the lowa Finance Authority. INRCOG also provides staff and
oversight for several regional bodies including the Black Hawk County Metropolitan
Transportation Organization; Regional Transportation Authority; Regional Transit
Commission; Regional Economic Development Commission; and Regional Housing
Council. Further, our agency has acted as the procurement and fiscal agent for multi-
county emergency management regions. Through our work, our agency has developed
relationships with several non-profit organizations, including administration of housing-
related grants which involves working directly with several entities such as The Salvation
Army, lowa Heartland Habitat for Humanity, Cedar Valley Friends of the Family,
Operation Threshold, Exceptional Persons, Inc., Northeast lowa Area Agency on Aging;

244




Item 13.

CDBG Entitlement Housing Services
Cedar Falls, lowa

Northeast lowa Community Action Corporation; Community Based Services; and House
of Hope.

INRCOG has extensive housing rehabilitation and repair experience under the lowa
Economic Development Authority’s (IEDA) Housing Rehabilitation and lowa Finance
Authority’s (IFA) Local Housing Trust Fund programs. |[EDA’s program is funded
through the CDBG program, as administered by the US Department of Housing and
Urban Development, and the IFA program is funded through the State Housing Trust
Fund. We also have a familiarity with the HOME Investment Partnership Program as
administered by the US Department of Housing and Development. INRCOG has
administered housing trust fund grants for the lowa Northland Regional Housing Council
since 2003 and since 2014 for the Waterloo Housing Trust Fund. Through the trust
funds, our staff has developed and administered annual homeowner repair programs
that serve approximately ten individual households per year. In addition to administering
the individual home improvement programs, INRCOG has managed numerous housing
acquisition programs, as funded by the Hazard Mitigation Grant and CDBG Programs,
following disasters in 1993, 1999, 2000, 2008, and 2016.

Our staff writes the grants for these programs for our member local governments and we
perform all administrative tasks relative to construction, finance, and professional service
functions associated with the programs. We have completed all IEDA basic and
updated trainings associated with administering CDBG funds, specifically those
associated with environmental assessments, Davis-Bacon (prevailing wage) compliance,
historical preservation review and approval, Section 3 (hiring practices) compliance, fair
housing standards, lead-based paint testing and certification, radon testing, and
contractor procurement. INRCOG is accustomed to developing the necessary contracts,
developing file and program management techniques, assisting with city audits,
successfully preparing for and completing IEDA monitoring reviews, conflict mediation,
financial management, and closeout processes associated with CDBG projects.

Primary INRCOG Staff Members

The primary contacts for this proposal and program are
o Brian Schoon, Director of Development (bschoon@inrcog.org);
o Cindy Knox, Housing Planner Il (cknox@inrcog.org);
o Rose Phillips, Housing Planner 1l (rphillips@inrcog.org).

Brian Schoon has been employed by INRCOG since September 1991 and is currently
serving as the Director of Development. He is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Planners. His responsibilities include supervision, project administration, budget
oversight, and planning functions associated with INRCOG’s housing, planning, and
economic development efforts, including numerous CDBG projects funded by the lowa
Economic Development Authority (IEDA). Schoon also oversees the lowa Northland
Regional Housing Council and its local Housing Trust Funds and staffs the Waterloo
Housing Trust Fund and its financial programs. He is currently providing planning
services to the City, including updating the Consolidated and Annual Action Plans
related to its current HUD CDBG Entitlement Program. Schoon has a Bachelors’ degree
in Landscape Design from South Dakota State University and a Masters’ degree in
Community and Regional Planning from lowa State University.

245




Item 13.

CDBG Entitlement Housing Services
Cedar Falls, lowa

Cindy Knox has worked as a housing program specialist for INRCOG for 13 years.
Knox has administered nearly two dozen CDBG housing rehab programs, as well as
other housing programs awarded to our member communities from the US Department
of Agriculture, Federal Home Loan Bank, and lowa Finance Authority. She has managed
homebuyer and down-payment assistance programs; housing inspection programs; and
emergency and rural repair programs for our regional Housing Council. Knox is a
Certified Lead-Based Paint Sampling Technician and has knowledge of lowa Minimum
Housing and Housing Quality Standards. Knox has a Bachelor's degree in Design and
the Human Environment from the University of Northern lowa.

Rose Phillips has been with INRCOG since early 2017 and is responsible for managing
CDBG housing rehabilitation programs for our member communities. She also develops
housing needs assessments and manages post-disaster housing acquisition programs
for our member local governments. Phillips has a Bachelors’ degree in Environmental
Studies from Mount Holyoke College and a Masters’ degree in Urban and Regional
Planning from the University of lowa.

Description of Technical Services, Grant Administration, and Organizational
Capacity

INRCOG, through its existing staff, will complete project delivery to meet CDBG
requirements to expend the annual allocation of FFY 2022 funds.

INRCOG will present any necessary approvals or reports to City staff. Further, as
HUD’s subrecipient, the City will be responsible for obtaining HUD reimbursement for all
expenses under this proposal with INRCOG assisting with obtaining said
reimbursements. Likewise, INRCOG will assist the City with any necessary HUD or
CDBG reports, as requested.

Budget

INRCOG is prepared to offer the project delivery services for a not-to-exceed price for
each unit or task completed during the City fiscal year, as outlined below. Said project
delivery expenses will be billed on an hourly basis, using rates that will be defined in the
contract between the City and INRCOG.

¢ General Administration-Environmental Review and Release of Funds
o INRCOG: $3,000 (Program Administrative Cost-PAC)

e Agency Awards Program (to City-Determined Agencies)
e Approximately Six (6) Agencies (Includes Administration Procurement,
Monitoring, and Award expenses)
o INRCOG Expense: $7,500 (Activity Delivery Cost-ADC)

« Single-Family Rehabilitation and Repair
o General and Technical Services
o INRCOG Expense: $11,000 (ADC)

246




Item 13.

CDBG Entitlement Housing Services
Cedar Falls, lowa

+ Rental Rehabilitation and Repair
e General and Technical Services
o INRCOG Expense: $11,000 (ADC)

¢ Neighborhood Access (Sidewalks)
o Spec book, Bidding, Davis-Bacon, Payroll Management, Contractor
clearances
o INRCOG Expense: $15,000 (ADC)

e Reports and Plans
e 2022 Action Plan; CAPER; Davis-Bacon; Section 3
o INRCOG Expense: $7,500 (PAC)

If accepted by the City, INRCOG is willing to negotiate a contract utilizing the City's
standard agreement. INRCOG currently meets the City’s insurance requirements and
has attached a certificate as evidence.

As with prior contracts, INRCOG will provide monthly invoices to the City for services
provided by our staff. Services covered by the agreement will be assigned an individual,
unique program number through which expenses will be tracked and monitored within
INRCOG’s monthly financial reports and annual independent audit. INRCOG shall make
all financial records available to the City upon request.

Time of Performance

Work under this proposal would begin upon execution of an agreement and completion
would be no later than June 30", 2023. INRCOG may propose an extension to the
negotiated agreement, in the event it is unable to complete the services defined above.
Accordingly, the completion date may be extended for a period of up to six (6) months
upon written request of INRCOG documenting a good faith effort to complete
performance in a timely manner.

Project Review

At least annually, but not later than May 1%, 2023 during the contract timeframe, the City
and INRCOG will meet to review INRCOG’s performance with regard to the services
provided to the City. Extending the existing agreement for future years(s) may also be
discussed at that time.

247




EXHIBIT “B”

Exhibit B

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding Project Delivery for

Federal Fiscal Year 2022 Services for Projects in Cedar Falls, lowa

01-19-2022

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
FOR GOODS & SERVICES
FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who perform
work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “Contractor” as used in this document shall be
defined as the general contractor, artisan contractor, or design contractor that will be
performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under contract. The term “Agreement’
herein shall mean the agreement of which this Exhibit forms a part.

1.

All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer authorized
by law to do business in lowa. All insurance policies shall be issued by
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VIl or better in the
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.

The Contractor shall obtain and maintain through the term of the Agreement,
insurance with the terms set forth in this Exhibit and with limits of coverage equal
to or in excess of those set forth on Pages 3-4 of this Exhibit. By requiring the
insurance as set forth in this Exhibit the City does not represent that coverage or
limits will necessarily be adequate to protect Contractor’s interests and such
coverage and limits shall not be deemed a limitation on Contractor’s liability
under the Agreement or under the indemnity provisions of this Exhibit. The City
shall have the right at any time to require liability insurance with greater coverage
than that otherwise specified herein.

Coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. All deviations
or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general liability form CG 001
shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the review and approval of the
City.

Contractor shall maintain ongoing Commercial General Liability coverage for at
least 2 years following substantial completion of the work, under the Agreement,

Item 13.

248




Item 13.

CDBG Funding Project Delivery for
FFY 2022 Services and Projects
Cedar Falls, Jowa

to cover liability arising from the products-completed operations hazard and
liability assumed under an insured contract.

. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not contain
the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially similar
clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage.

. Certificate of Insurance: Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of
Insurance, with accompanying endorsements, to the City of Cedar Falls, lowa for
the coverage required herein. See Pages 6-12 of this Exhibit.

A. Upon request by the City, Contractor shall provide Certificates of
Insurance for all subcontractors and sub-sub-contractors who perform
work or services pursuant to the provisions of the Agreement.

B. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the
Cancellation & Material Changes Endorsement.

. Termination: Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver
of these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure of the Contractor to
obtain or maintain the required insurance shall be considered a material breach
of the Agreement, and at City’s option, shall allow City to terminate the
Agreement for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’'s expense.

249




8.

Insurance Limits

A. Commercial General Liability

The City shall be named as Additional Insured on a primary and non-

Item 13.

CDBG Funding Project Delivery for
FFY 2022 Services and Projects

Cedar Falls, Iowa

contributory basis. The policy will include waiver of subrogation endorsement

in favor of the City of Cedar Falls.

Each Occurrence $1,000,000
Fire Damage (any one occurrence) $100,000
Medical Payments $5,000
Personal & Advertising Injury $1,000,000
General Aggregate $2,000,000
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate $2,000,000

Required Endorsements - sample endorsements Pages 7-11 of this Exhibit

Blanket or Scheduled Additional Insured
Owners, Lessees or Contractors - Scheduled Person or
Organization

CG 20101219
or Equivalent

Additional Insured - Owners, Lessees or Contractors -
Completed Operations

CG20371219
or Equivalent

Governmental Immunity
(Nonwaiver of Government Immunity -
Code of lowa §670.4)

Equivalent to sample
on Page 7 of this
Exhibit.

Designated Construction Project(S) General Aggregate
Limit (if applicable)

CG 25030509
or Equivalent

B. Automobile Liability

Coverage is required for non-owned and hired vehicles, if the Contractor does
not own any vehicles. The City shall be named as Additional Insured on a

primary and non-contributory basis. The policy will include waiver of

subrogation endorsement in favor of the City of Cedar Falls.

Bodily Injury & Property Damage (each accident)

$1,000,000 (CSL)

Hired & Non-Owned Autos

If required

250




Item 13.

CDBG Funding Project Delivery 1or
FFY 2022 Services and Projects
Cedar Falls, Iowa

C. Workers’ Compensation and Emplover's Liability

As required by any applicable law or regulation. The policy will include waiver
of subrogation endorsement in favor of the City of Cedar Falls.

Workers' Compensation Statutory Limits
Bodily Injury Each Accident $500,000
Bodily Injury by Disease Policy Limit $500,000
Bodily Injury by Disease Each Employee $500,000

D. Umbrella/Excess Liability

If the umbrella/excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the
same endorsement as required of the primary policies including but not
limited to additional insured on a primary and non-contributory, and waiver of
subrogation endorsement in favor of the City of Cedar Falls.

Each Occurrence $3,000,000
Aggregate $3,000,000

E. Errors & Omissions/Professional Liability

If the Agreement’s scope of services includes design work or other
professional consultation services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance
coverage for errors, omissions and other negligent acts or omissions (except
for intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services
performed by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors &
Omissions coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the
Agreement, and continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date
of completion of all work completed or services performed under the
Agreement.

| Each Occurrence | $1,000,000 |

251




Item 13.

CDBG Funding Project Delivery for
FFY 2022 Services and Projects
Cedar Falls, lowa

ENDORSEMENTS

ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT

The City of Cedar Falls, lowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its
employees, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, are
included as Additional Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 20 10 12 19 or
equivalent, and completed operations CG 20 37 12 19 or equivalent. See specimens on
Pages 9-10 of this Exhibit.

This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing with any
other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, whether other
available coverage be primary, contributing or excess.

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured)

1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly agrees and
states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa
as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of governmental immunity
available to the City of Cedar Falls, lowa under Code of lowa Section 670.4 as it now
exists and as it may be amended from time to time.

2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of governmental
immunity under the Code of lowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be
amended from time to time.

Sl Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, lowa shall be
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so at any
time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance carrier. Nothing
contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from asserting the defense of
governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa.

4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage under
this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and benefits
accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, lowa under this policy for reasons of governmental
immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has ruled in favor of the
defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of Cedar Falls, lowa.

5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall not otherwise
change or alter the coverage available under the policy.

252




Item 13.

CDBG Funding Project Delivery Tor
FFY 2022 Services and Projects
Cedar Falls, Iowa

CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT

Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction in

coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-payment of premium shall

be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street,
Cedar Falls, lowa 50613. This endorsement supersedes the standard cancellation
statement on the Certificate of Insurance to which this endorsement is attached.
Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 days advance written notice of
cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage and/or limits, and 10 days advance
written notice of non-payment of premium.

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS
OF RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US
(Waiver of Subrogation Endorsement)

To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby releases the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa, its elected and appointed officials, its directors, employees, and agents working
on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, from and against any and all liability or
responsibility to the Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by
way of subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or

any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor's employees. This

provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with respect to loss or

damage occurring during the time of the Agreement or arising out of the work performed

under the Agreement. The Contractor’s policies of insurance (except for Professional
Liability) shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that such release shall not
adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of the Contractor to
recover thereunder.

253




Item 13.

ATTACHMENT D: REQUIRED FEDERAL CONTRACT LANGUAGE

All project contracts shall contain at a minimum the following provisions, as appropriate.

ALL CONTRACTS
1. Access and Maintenance of Records

The contractor must maintain all required records for five years after final payments are made and
all other pending matters are closed.

At any time during normal business hours and as frequently as is deemed necessary, the contractor
shall make available to the lowa Economic Development Authority, the State Auditor, the General
Accounting Office, and the Department of Housing and Urban Development, for their examination,
all of its records pertaining to all matters covered by this contract and permit these agencies to
audit, examine, make excerpts or transcripts from such records, contract, invoices, payrolis,
personnel records, conditions of employment, and all other matters covered by this contract.

2.  Civil Rights

The Contractor must comply with the following laws and regulations:

o Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352).
States that no person may be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial
assistance on the basis of race, color, or national origin.

o Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Fair Housing Act), as amended.

¢ Federal Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259
Equal Opportunity Housing

¢ lowa Civil Rights Act of 1965.
This Act mirrors the Federal Civil Rights Act.

e Section 109 of Title | of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (42
U.S.C. 5309).
Provides that no person shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or
subjected to discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or handicap
under any program or activity funded in part or in whole under Title | of the Act.

e The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 1601 et seq.)
Provides that no person on the basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal
financial assistance.

s Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-112, 29 U.S.C. 794).
Provides that no otherwise qualified individual shall solely by reason of his/her handicap be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be discriminated against under
any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.

¢ Americans with Disabilities Act (P.L. 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213)
Provides comprehensive civil rights to individuals with disabilities in the areas of
employment, public accommodations, state and local government services, and

telecommunications. 254

Source: IOWA 2018 CDBG MANAGEMENT GUIDE — APPENDIX 2 PAGE: 64



3.

Item 13.

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended (12 U.S.C. 1701u).

The purpose of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 ( 12 U.S.C.
1701u) (section 3) is to ensure that employment and other econ